AGENDA
GREENE COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY
Monday, December 16, 2024

The Greene County Commission will meet in regular session at the Greene County Courthouse

on Monday, December 16, 2024, beginning at 6:00 p.m. in the Criminal Courtroom

Call to Order

*Invocation — Commissioner Jason Cobble
*Pledge to Flag — Commissioner Tim Smithson

Proclamations

For The

Joint Proclamation to Inaugurate the 2024 Christmas Season in the Town of Greeneville and Greene County
Joint Proclamation for Queen Emmalee Willis Day in the Town of Greeneville and Greene County
Proclamation Honoring Kylee Renner

Proclamation Honoring Kamryn Renner

Proclamation for Human Trafficking Awareness Month- January 2025

Greater Good

Public Hearing

Approval of Prior Minutes

Reports

Election

Veterans Report

Board of Education Financial Report
Solid Waste Department Report
Committee Minutes

of Notaries

Old Business

Resolutions

A.

B.

Consideration of A Resolution Of The Greene County Legislative Body Appropriating A Total of $3,600 To

The Sheriff's Department For The Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2025

Consideration of A Resolution Of The Greene County Legislative Body Appropriating A Total of $420,000 To

The Emergency Medical Services Department (EMS) For The Re-Mount of Two Ambulances For The Fiscal
Year Ending June 30, 2025
Consideration of A Resolution Of The Greene County Legislative Body Authorizing the Acceptance and

Execution Of The Tennessee Emergency Management Agency (TEMA) Helene Emergency Assistance
Loan (HEAL) Program For The FYE June 30, 2025

Consideration of A Resolution To Authorize The Mayor To File A Request For 2024 HOME Homeowner

Rehabilitation East Tennessee Recovery Funds Grant With THDA In The Amount of $1,000,000 And To

Sign Any And All Documents On Behalf Of The County, And To Approve The First Tennessee Development

District As Administrators Of The Grant

Other Business

Adjournment

Closing Prayer — Commissioner Nick Gunter



Greene County Legislative Body Meeting Agenda December 16, 2024

GREENE COUNTY COMMISSION MEETING INFORMATION
**THE NEXT COUNTY COMMISSION MEETING WILL BE TUESDAY, JANUARY 21, 2024**

**THE DEADLINE FOR SUBMISSION OF RESOLUTIONS FOR THE NEXT COMMISSION MEETING IS
THURSDAY, JANUARY 9, 2024, AT 12:00 P.M.**

GREENE COUNTY GOVERNMENT HOLIDAY CLOSURES

**THE GREENE COUNTY COURTHOUSE, EXECUTIVE OFFICES, AND ANNEX WILL BE CLOSED
TUESDAY, DECEMBER 24, 2024, WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 25, 2024, AND THURSDAY, DECEMBER 26,
2024, FOR THE CHRISTMAS HOLIDAYS. WE WILL RESUME NORMAL OPERATING HOURS ON FRIDAY,

DECEMBER 27, 2024**

**THE GREENE COUNTY COURTHOUSE, EXECUTIVE OFFICES, AND ANNEX WILL BE CLOSED
WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 1, 2025, FOR THE NEW YEAR'S HOLIDAY**

**ALL CONVENIENCE CENTERS THAT ARE REGULARLY SCHEDULED TO OPEN ON TUESDAY,
DECEMBER 24, 2024, WILL CLOSE AT 2:00 PM IN OBSERVANCE OF CHRISTMAS EVE.**

**THE GREENE COUNTY SOLID WASTE DEPARTMENT AND ALL CONVENIENCE CENTERS, AS WELL AS
THE TRANSFER STATION AND LANDFILL WILL BE CLOSED ON WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 25, 2024, AND
ON JANUARY 1, 2025. THEY WILL RESUME NORMAL SCHUEDLED HOURS AT THE CONVENIENCE
CENTERS, THE TRANSFER STATION AND THE LANDFILL AS WELL AS BUSINESS PICKUPS ON
THURSDAY, DECEMBER 26, 2024, AND ON THURSDAY, JANUARY 2, 2025**

“*THE GREENE COUNTY COURTHOUSE, EXECUTIVE OFFICES, AND ANNEX WILL BE CLOSED
ON MONDAY, JANUARY 20, 2025, IN OBSERVANCE OF MARTIN LUTHER KING JR. DAY**

“*THE GREENE COUNTY CLERK'S OFFICE WILL ALSO BE CLOSED ON SATURDAY, JANUARY 18, 2025, IN
OBSERVANCE OF MARTIN LUTHER KING JR. DAY**

Page 2



GREENE COUNTY COMMISSION COMMITTEE MEETINGS

DECEMBER 2024

MONDAY, DECEMBER 16
WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 18
TUESDAY, DECEMBER 24
WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 25
THURSDAY, DECEMBER 26
TUESDAY, DECEMBER 31

JANUARY 2025

WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 1
WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 8
TUESDAY, JANUARY 14
TUESDAY, JANUARY 14
THURSDAY, JANUARY 16
MONDAY, JANUARY 20
TUESDAY, JANUARY 21
WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 22
TUESDAY, JANUARY 28

FEBRUARY 2025

MONDAY, FEBRUARY 3
WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 5
TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 11
TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 11
MONDAY, FEBRUARY 17
TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 18
TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 25
WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 26

6:00 P.M.
8:30 AM.

8:30 AM.

8:30 A.M.
1:00 P.M.
3:30 PM.
3:30 PM.

6:00 P.M.
8:30 A.M.
8:30 A.M.

3:30 PM.
8:30A.M.
1:00 P.M.
3:30 PM.

6:00 P.M.
8:30 A M.
8:30 AM.

COUNTY COMMISISON
INSURANCE COMMITTEE
HOLIDAY- CHRISTMAS
HOLIDAY- CHRISTMAS
HOLIDAY- CHRISTMAS
ZONING APPEALS

HOLIDAY- NEW YEARS

BUDGET & FINANCE

PLANNING COMMITTEE

911 BOARD

ANIMAL CONTROL

HOLIDAY- MARTIN L KING, JR. DAY
COUNTY COMMISISON
INSURANCE COMMITTEE

ZONING APPEALS

EDUCATION COMMITTEE
BUDGET & FINANCE
PLANNING COMMITTEE

911 BOARD

HOLIDAY- PRESIDENT'S DAY
COUNTY COMMISISON
ZONING APPEALS
INSURANCE COMMITTEE

**THIS CALENDAR IS SUBJECT TO CHANGE**

COURTHOUSE

ANNEX

COURTHOUSE & ANNEX
COURTHOUSE & ANNEX
COURTHOUSE & ANNEX
ANNEX

COURTHOUSE & ANNEX
ANNEX

ANNEX

ANNEX

ANNEX

COURTHOUSE & ANNEX
COURTHOUSE

ANNEX

ANNEX

CENTRAL SCHOOL OFFICE
ANNEX

ANNEX

ANNEX

COURTHOUSE & ANNEX
COURTHOUSE

ANNEX

ANNEX



County of Grg_er'\"é and Town of Greeneville =)

PROCLAMATION

By The Honorable Mayors .

us Christmas Season by extending to all our warmest thoughts
rebuild after the greatest natural disaster in the history of our
Jesus has shown through in the countless acts of healing,

ve, and resilience that has-encompassed our
d peace during this holiday season; and

ZAS, on this day, Friday evening, the 6" of December 2024, we unite as a family in the
sgmﬁchﬂgmteﬁ.al celebration of this Christmas season and the joyous recognition
th of Jesus Christ; and

- WHEREAS, more than 2000 years ago in fulfillment of Biblical Scripture, a baby was born in
'q‘ -4 r‘ﬂ‘ﬂﬂahe;g and citizens came from far and wide to honor and observe this prophesied miracle;

sk

I . 3 oy

= WHEREAS, iﬁ:é}@'_t{'_ebherds who were living out in the fields nearby, heard and heeded the
- :JL]T-_‘ voices of all the angels and heavenly hosts singing and proclaiming the birth of the newborn

i Ry ~ King to go in _'s_é‘a'fchiq_f-hthe Savior, finding him wrapped in swaddling clothes and lying in a
- ‘ag - humble manger;and

e L [ (ORER T L

J"' 3 Tf,%d&-lE_BEAS there too were wise men from the east who observed ithe celestial signs and
- traveled from afar to present.gifts of gold, frankincense, and myrrh in wonderful celebration at

~ the birth of the Christ Child; and

[ e WHEREAS, tonight we come together on this silent night to continue the celebration of that Holy
- Nightso long ago, praising and proclaiming the birth of the Prince of Peace; as we

Inaugecvate The 2024 Chvistmas Seasor
JIr The Towr af Greenevitle
" and Greere Courty, Fennessee
' NOW, THEREFORE, We, Kevin C. Morrison, Mayor of Greene County, and C. Calvin Doty,
| 3F ‘Mayor of the Town of Greeneville, do recognize each of you that have followed the example of

|" “E the Shepherds and Wise Men, and have come from far and wide tonight in reverent expectation
= | -and celebration of this sacred season. We, therefore, proclaim today as the official beginning

iy

| of the 2024 Christmas Season in the Town of Greeneville and Greene County, Tennessee.
L ‘Even though this holiday season may look and feel a little different as we continue to support
[ - our families; friends, and neighbors still recavering, in those unguarded moments of crisis we
by will love one another as God loves us. It is our fervent hope and prayer for all citizens to have a
. safe and joyous Merry Christmas and a prosperous and Happy New Year.

&

RoRE -_Ke-:vin C. Morrison, Greene County Mayor.' C. Calvin Doty, Town ofGr_eene'yi




Py
GREENEVILLE

E 3§ E E

County of Greene and Town of Greeneville

PROCLAMATION

By The Honorable Mayors

WHEREAS, since 1958, the United Way of Greene County has been an integral part of our
neighborhoods, encouraging each other to embody the spirit of cooperation with neighbor
helping neighbor to strengthen our community; and

WHEREAS, United Way of Greene County has been a catalyst that brings people together to
build a community that values above ali else the collective responsibility to care for one another
by encouraging financial generosity and sponsoring annual fund-raising events for institutions
and agencies that support the general welfare of the community, especially children and
seniors; and

WHEREAS, services provided by United Way of Greene County's Community Partners help to
monetarily support and bring awareness some of our communities' greatest challenges
including issues such as health, education, and financial stability; and

WHEREAS, the United Way of Greene County is sponsoring the annual “Give Greene™ day in
Greene County on Tuesday, December 3 and encourage all citizens to give back to their
community through their time, talent and donations; and

WHEREAS, the United Way of Greene County has named Emmalee Wilis as their
spokesperson and as part of being given that honor, she was also bestowed the title of “Queen
of Greeneville and Greene County, Tennessee" for the date of Tuesday, December 3, 2024:
and

WHEREAS, Emmalee Willis was selected from a great group of applicants, in part due to an
outstanding letter she wrote as to what her plans would be if she should be Greene County’s
leader; and

NOW, THERFORE, We, Kevin C. Morrison, Mayor of Greene County, and C. Calvin Doty,
Mayor of the Town of Greeneville, on behalf of all citizens hereof, do hereby proclaim December

in Greene County, and Greeneville, Tennessee, urging all citizens to join us in honoring
Emmalee Willis as she rules symbolically during the Give Greene campaign and extending to
her our best wishes for continued success in her future endeavors to lead and guide the realm
on behalf of United Way of Greene County.

Further, we hereby present Emmalee Willis with this Key to Greene County and Greeneville,
Tennessee; it is not a key to any lock, but is the true key to the generous hearts and hands of all

1 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto set
pur hands and caused the official seal of Greene
ourity, Tennessee, and the Town of Greeneville,
‘Tennessee to be affixed this third day of

. December 2024.

/

NN

Kevin C. Morrison, Greene County Mayor

C. Calvin Doty, Town bf Greeneville Mayor

3 Depombern 202y

Date




PROCLAMATION

By The Honorable Mayor

WHEREAS, it is fitting that we should salute those student athletes who, through their extraordinary
efforts, have distinguished themselves as true champions of whom we can all be proud; and

WHEREAS, one such exemplary young athlete is Kylee Renner, a student at Greeneville Middle
School who proved herself to be the fieriest of competitors and truly worthy of admiration by winning
the Tennessee Middle School Athletic Association Inaugural girls golf state championship at Harpeth
Hills Golf Course in Nashville, Tennessee; and

WHEREAS, Ms. Renner shares this victory with her twin sister, Kamryn Renner; the Renner sisters
will continue to develop their exceptional talent on the golf course as they join the Greeneville High
School girls golf team this fall; and

WHEREAS, the Renner sisters were ably aided in their fruitful pursuit of greatness by their coach,
Jason Shelton, as well as their swing mechanics and course management coach, Sasha Catron; and

WHEREAS, when not playing gold themselves, Kylee and Kamryn Renner, along with their friend
and fellow goifer, Brylee Catron, host children’s golf camps during the summer; and

WHEREAS, Kylee Renner epitomizes all that is good in today's student athletes, as she has
achieved a premier level of success in competition and did so while exhibiting the highest degree of

character with grace, elegance, humility, and a genuine love for her sport and her community, embodying
the spirit of a true ambassador and making us all immensely proud; and

WHEREAS, her display of drive and determination on the golf course surely bodes well for her future
success and her accomplishment are a tremendous source of pride for her parents, Matt and Pam
Renner, her school, and her community; and

WHEREAS, Ms. Renner's ability, success, and dedication to excellence make her an outstanding
ambassador for all Greene County student athletes, and she should be specially recognized.

NOW, THEREFORE, |, Kevin C. Morrison, Greene County Mayor, do hereby proclaim that today,

December 6, 2024, we

with our deepest admiration and gratitude for her remarkable achievements as a Greene County
athlete. We extend our heartfelt congratulations on her outstanding representation of our community
and express our sincere appreciation for her dedication to sports, service, education, and
philanthropy.

We encourage all citizens of Greene County to join us in recognizing Kylee Renner's accomplishments
and to support her as she continues to inspire others and pursue her aspirations. May she continue to
be a shining example of the incredible potential within each of us to make a positive impact on our
community and the world.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto
set my hand and caused the official seal
of Greene County, Tennessee to be

affixed this sixteenth day of December 2024.
7)ovTn 0/ /%fmm\

Greene County Mayor

/b begembor 2024

Date




County of Greene

PROCLAMATION

By The Honorable Mayor

WHEREAS, it is fitting that we should salute those student athletes who, through their extraordinary
efforts, have distinguished themselves as true champions of whom we can all be proud; and

WHEREAS, one such exemplary young athlete is Kamryn Renner, a student at Greeneville Middle
School who proved herself to be the fieriest of competitors and truly worthy of admiration by winning
the Tennessee Middle School Athletic Association Inaugural girls golf state championship at Harpeth
Hills Golf Course in Nashville, Tennessee; and

WHEREAS, Ms. Renner shares this victory with her twin sister, Kylee Renner; the Renner sisters
will continue to develop their exceptional talent on the golf course as they join the Greeneville High
School girls golf team this fall; and

WHEREAS, the Renner sisters were ably aided in their fruitful pursuit of greatness by their coach,

Jason Shelton, as well as their swing mechanics and course management coach, Sasha Catron;
and

WHEREAS, when not playing gold themselves, Kamryn and Kylee Renner, along with their friend
and fellow golfer, Brylee Catron, host children’s golf camps during the summer; and

WHEREAS, Kamryn Renner epitomizes all that is good in today’s student athletes, as she has
achieved a premier level of success in competition and did so while exhibiting the highest degree of
character with grace, elegance, humility, and a genuine love for her sport and her community,
embodying the spirit of a true ambassador and making us all immensely proud; and

WHEREAS, her display of drive and determination on the golf course surely bodes well for her
future success and her accomplishment are a tremendous source of pride for her parents, Matt and
Pam Renner, her school, and her community; and

WHEREAS, Ms. Renner's ability, success, and dedication to excellence make her an outstanding
ambassador for all Greene County student athletes, and she should be specially recognized.
\

NOW, THEREFORE, |, Kevin C. Morrison, Greene County Mayor, do hereby proclaim that today,

December 6, 2024, we

with our deepest admiration and gratitude for her remarkable achievements as a Greene County
athlete. We extend our heartfelt congratulations on her outstanding representation of our
community and express our sincere appreciation for her dedication to sports, service, education,
and philanthropy.

We encourage all citizens of Greene County to join us in recognizing Kamryn Renner's
accomplishments and to support her as she continues to inspire others and pursue her aspirations.
May she continue to be a shining example of the incredible potential within each of us to make a
positive impact on our community and the world.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto
set my hand and caused the official seal

of Greene County, Tennessee to be

affixed this sixteenth day of December 2024.

Greene County Mayor

/6 December 2024/

Date




County of Greene

PROCLAMATION

By The Honorable Mayor

WHEREAS, Human trafficking occurs when a person is recruited, harbored, obtained, transported,
sold, traded, or exploited through force, fraud, or coercion for the purposes of sexual or labor
exploitation, involuntary servitude, debt bondage, or slavery, or when any commercial sex act is
committed upon a minor; and

WHEREAS, the malevolent authority of the trafficker facilitates the dehumanization and material
commodification of its victims, corrupting the inherent human rights and dignity of each individual;
and

WHEREAS, we recognize that human trafficking disproportionately affects those most
marginalized in our community, and cultural oppression, including racism and ethnic bias, creates
additional risk for exploitation and generates unique challenges for prevention and intervention.

WHEREAS, no community is impervious to the potential for exploitation of its most vulnerable
citizens; it is vitally important that all Greene County residents are equipped to recognize and
respond to the abhorrent reality of trafficking by disrupting the veil of secrecy that allows it to thrive
for the purpose of restoring hope and healing to those affected, assuring victims they have the
strength of their community to overcome their victimization experience.

THEREFORE, aligning with the State of Tennessee and the rest of the nation, Greene County
hereby recognizes January as Human Trafficking Awareness Month. During this month, we
remember and further our commitment to ending human trafficking in Greene County by:

L. promoting awareness through fact-based community education opportunities to unite and
equip Greene County to report and respond to this crime:

2. fostering and celebrating the new and existing partnerships through fluid dialogue and
candid conversation that pave the way for increased collaborative intervention and more
robust legislation to end human trafficking and protect survivors:

3. furthering an inclusive, community-wide response in which everyone has an important part
to play and a moral obligation to work together in collaboration toward ending human
trafficking and meeting the needs of those affected:

4. creating space to reflect upon and honor the resilience, courage, and perseverance of
human trafficking survivors in our community.

Now, therefore, |, Mayor Kevin C. Morrison of Greene County, Tennessee do hereby proctaim the
month of January 2025, as

Hamare Trafficking Uwareness Month

aligning with the State of Tennessee and community partners across the state to remember the
victims and survivors of this crime and further our commitment to ending human trafficking in
communities across the state and nation.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto
set my hand and caused the official seal
of Greene County, Tennessee to be
affixed this sixteenth day of December

A Mimiar

Greene County Mayor

/b Depeombor 2024

Date




STATE OF TENNESSEE
COUNTY OF GREENE

GREENE COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY
NOVEMBER 18, 2024
6:00 P.M.

The Greene County Legislative Body was in session on November 18, 2024 at 6:00 p.m.
at the Greene County Courthouse in the Chancery Courtroom (Bottom) in Courthouse.

Mayor Morrison called the meeting to order to transact business that has lawfully come
before the Honorable Body. Commissioner Nick Gunter gave the Invocation. Commissioner
Tim White led the Pledge to the Flag.

Commissioners Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter, Clemmer, Cobble,
Crawford, Dabbs, Gunter, Kiker, Lawing, Murray, Peters, Quillen, Shelton, Smithson, Waddle,

and White were present. Commissioner Anderson and Parton were absent. There was

19 — present and 2 absent.



PROCLAMATIONS

A JOINT PROCLAMATION DECLARING NOVEMBER 2024 AS A MONTH
OF GIVING THANKS FOR GREENE COUNTY AND THE TOWN OF GREENEVILLE

Greene County Mayor Kevin Morrison and C. Cal Doty, Mayor of Town of Greeneville,
do hereby proclaim November 2024 as a Month of Giving Thanks and further encourage all our
fellow citizens to join us as we trust that God will continue to watch over and accompany us
through the best of times and through the darkest hours. Throughout this month, let each of us,
according to our own faiths, call upon God for His guidance and express our gratitude for the
love and grace He bestows on us and this County.

NATIONAL FAMILY LITERACY DAY

Greene County Mayor Kevin Morrison by virtue of the authority vested in me by the
people of Greene County , do hereby proclaim November 1* as National Family Literacy
Day in Greene County. To underscore the importance of literacy, celebrate the joy of reading,
encourage family literacy by reading together as a family, and to extend deep appreciation to
children and their educators, and literacy service providers for their tireless efforts to strength
to the family literacy and children and our community.



FOR THE GREATER GOOD

Nicole Rader, Director of the Roby Fitzgerald Adult Center thanked the Greene County
Commission for the funding and the support that had been given to the Roby Center.

Vera Ann Myers, representative of Modern Woodmen, recognized Greeneville/Greene
County EMA Director Heather Sipe and EMA Operations Manager Letisha Ricker as the
“Hometown Heroes” by Modern Woodmen. Vera Ann Myers presented the awards to Heather
Sipe and Letisha Ricker on behalf of the organization for their response during the county’s
recent flooding emergency. As a part of each award, $100 donations will be made to the
charities of Heather Sipe and Letisha Ricker’s choosing.

Mayor Morrison announced that the Resolution J had been pulled.



APPROVAL OF PRIOR MINUTES

A motion was made by Commissioner Crawford and seconded by Commissioner
Quillen to approve the prior minutes.

Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote by voice vote. The following vote
was taken: Commissioners Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter, Clemmer, Cobble,
Crawford, Dabbs, Gunter, Kiker, Lawing, Murray, Peters, Quillen, Shelton, Smithson, Waddle,
and White voted yes. Commissioners Anderson and Parton were absent. The vote was 19 — aye;

0 —nay; and 2 - absent. Mayor Morrison announced the prior minutes were approved.



REPORTS
GREENE COUNTY VETERANS REPORT
GREENE COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION FINANCIAL REPORT
GREENE COUNTY SOLID WASTE DEPARTMENT REPORT
COMMITTEE MINUTES

A motion was made by Commissioner Clemmer and seconded by Commissioner
Murray to approve the Greene County Veteran’s Reports, Greene County Board of Education
Financial Report, Greene County Solid Waste Department Report, and Committee Minutes.

Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote by voice vote. The following
vote was taken: Commissioners Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter, Clemmer,
Cobble, Crawford, Dabbs, Gunter, Kiker, Lawing, Murray, Peters, Quillen, Shelton, Smithson,
Waddle, and White voted yes. Commissioners Anderson and Parton were absent. The vote

was 19 — aye; 0 — nay; and 2 — absent. The motion to approve the Reports and Committee

Minutes passed.



ELECTION OF NOTARIES

Mayor Morrison read the names requesting to be notaries to be approve by the
Commission. A motion was maded by Commission Peters and seconded by Commissioner
Carpenter to approve the notary list.

Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote by voice vote. The following
vote was taken: Commissioner Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter, Clemmer,
Cobble, Crawford, Dabbs, Gunter, Kiker, Lawing, Murray, Peters, Quillen, Shelton, Smithson,
Waddle, and White voted yes. Commissioners Anderson and Parton were absent. The vote was
19 —aye; 0 — nay; and 2 — absent. Commissioners voted in favor of the motion to approve the

notaries.



RESOLUTION A: CONSIDERATION OF A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE
2024 — 2025 FISCAL YEAR GREENE COUNTY SCHOOLS GENERAL PURPOSE BUDGET

A motion was made by Commissioner Bowers and seconded by Commissioner Kiker
to approve the consideration of A Resolution to Amend the 2024 — 2025 Fiscal Year Greene
County Schools General Purpose Budget.

Mayor Morrison announced that all the Resolutions will be roll calls accept for
Resolution F and Resolution H which will be voice votes.

Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote by roll call vote. Commissioners
Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter, Clemmer, Cobble, Crawford, Dabbs, Gunter,
Kiker, Lawing, Murray, Peters, Quillen, Shelton, Smithson, Waddle, and White vote yes.
Commissioners Anderson and Parton were absent. The vote was 19 — aye; 0 — nay; and

2 — absent. The motion to approve the Resolution passed.



RESOLUTION B: CONSIDERATION OF THE GENERAL PURPOSE SCHOOL
FUND A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE GREENE COUNTY SCHOOLS BUDGET
FOR CHANGES IN REVENUES & EXPENDITURES FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2024 - 2025

A motion was made by Commissioner Bowers and seconded by Commissioner Crawford
to approve the consideration of a Resolution to amend the Greene County Schools Budget for
changes in Revenues & Expenditures for the Fiscal Year 2024 — 2025.

Mayor called the Commissioners to vote by roll call vote. Commissioners Arrowood,
Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter, Clemmer, Cobble, Crawford, Dabbs, Gunter, Kiker,

Lawing, Murray, Peters, Quillen, Shelton, Smithson, Waddle, and White voted yes.

Commissioners Anderson and Parton were absent. The vote was 19 — aye; 0 — nay; and

2 — absent. The motion to approve the Resolution passed.



RESOLUTION C: CONSIDERATION OF A RESOLUTION OF THE GREENE
COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY APPROPRIATING A TOTAL $5,828 TO THE
MAINTENANCE DEPARTMENT FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2025
A motion was made by Commissioner Shelton and seconded by Commissioner
Carpenter to approve the consideration of A Resolution of the Greene County Legislative Body
appropriating a total $5,828 to The Maintenance Department for Fiscal Year Ending
June 30, 2025.
Mayor called the Commissioners to vote by roll call vote. Commissioners Arrowood,
Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter, Clemmer, Cobble, Crawford, Dabbs;, Gunter, Kiker,
Lawing, Murray, Peters, Quillen, Shelton, Smithson, Waddle, and White voted yes.

Commissioners Anderson and Parton were absent. The vote was 19 — aye; 0 — nay; and

2 —absent. The motion to approve the Resolution passed.



RESOLUTION D: CONSIDERATION OF A RESOLUTION OF THE GREENE
COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY APPROPRIATING A TOTAL OF $26,000 FROM
THE SHERIFF’S RESTRICTED ACCOUNT ALLOCATED TO THE SHERIFF’S
DEPARTMENT AND JAIL FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2025
A motion was made by Commissioner Crawford and seconded by Commissioner
Murray to approve the consideration of A Resolution of the Greene County Legislative Body
appropriating a total of $26,000 from the Sheriff’s Restricted Account Allocated To the Sheriff’s
Department and Jail for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2025.
Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote by roll call vote. Commissioners
Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter, Clemmer, Cobble, Crawford, Dabbs, Gunter,
Kiker, Lawing, Murray, Peters, Quillen, Shelton, Smithson, Waddle, and White voted yes.

Commissioners Anderson and Parton were absent. The vote was 19 — aye; 0 — nay; and

2 —absent. The motion to approve the Resolution passed.



RESOLUTION E: CONSIDERATION OF A RESOLUTION OF THE GREENE COUNTY
LEGISLATIVE BODY TO APPROPRIATE FUNDS TO THE SHERIFF’S DEPARTMENT
IN THE AMOUNT OF $92,965 FOR THE ANNUAL ALLOCATION OF THE THSO
TRAFFIC SAFETY, THSO NETWORK COORDINATOR GRANTS, AND ALTERNATIVE
ELECTRONIC MONITORING FUND FOR THE FYE JUNE 30, 2025
A motion was made by Commissioner Quillen and seconded by Commissioner Bible
to approve the consideration of A Resolution of the Greene County Legislative Body to
appropriate funds to the Sheriff’s Department in the amount of $92,965 for the Annual
Allocation of the THSO Traffic Safety, THSO Network Corrdinator Grants, and Alternative
Electronic Monitoring Fund For The FYE June 30, 2025.
Mayor Mayor called the Commissioners to vote by roll call vote. Commissioners
Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter, Clemmer, Cobble, Crawford, Dabbs, Gunter,
Kiker, Lawing, Murray, Peters, Quillen, Shelton, Smithson, Waddle, and White voted yes.

Commissioners Anderson and Parton were absent. The vote was 19 — aye; 0 — nay; and

2 —absent. The motion to approve the Resolution passed.

Commissioner Anderson joined the Commission Meeting at 6:20 p.m.



RESOLUTION F: CONSIDERATION OF A RESOLUTION TO DECLARE
COUNTY OWNED PROPERTY SURPLUS, OBSOLETE, OR UNUSABLE
PURSANT TO T.C.A. 5-14-108 (EXHIBIT A)

A motion was made by Commissioner Clemmer and seconded by Commissioner
Smithson to approve the consideration of A Resolution to Declare County Owned Property
Surplus, Obsolete, Or Unusable Pursuant To T.C.A. 5-14-108 (Exhibit A).

Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote by voice vote. Commissioners
Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter, Clemmer, Cobble, Crawford, Dabbs,
Gunter, Kiker, Lawing, Murray, Peters, Quillen, Shelton, Smithson, Waddle, and White voted

yes. Commissioner Parton was absent. The vote was 20 — aye; 0 — nay; and 1 — absent. The

motion to approve the Resolution passed.



RESOLUTION G: CONSIDERATION OF A RESOLUTION OF THE GREENE
COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY TO APPROPRIATE FUNDS TO THE JAIL IN
THE AMOUNT OF $15,640 FOR THE MENTAL HEALTH TRANSPORTATION
GRANT FOR THE FYE JUNE 30, 2025
A motion was made by Commissioner Carpenter and seconded by Commissioner
Waddle to approve the consideration of A Resolution Of The Greene County Legislative Body
to Appropriate Funds To The Jail In The Amount of $15,640 For The Mental Health
Transportation Grant For The FYE June 30, 2025.
Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote by roll call vote. Commissioners
Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter, Clemmer, Cobble, Crawford,
Dabbs, Gunter, Kiker, Lawing, Murray, Peters, Quillen, Shelton, Smithson, Waddle, and

White voted yes. Commissioner Parton was absent. The vote was 20 — aye; 0 — nay; and

1 —absent. The motion to approve the Resolution passed.



RESOLUTION H: CONSIDERATION OF A MEMORANDUM OF
UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN GREENE COUNTY COMMISSION AND
GREENE COUNTY MAYOR

A motion was made by Commissioner Quillen and seconded by Commissioner
Waddle to approve the consideration of A Memorandum Of Understanding Greene County
Commission and Greene County Mayor.

Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote by voice vote. Commissioners
Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter, Clemmer, Cobble, Crawford,
Dabbs, Gunter, Kiker, Lawing, Murray, Peters, Quillen, Shelton, Smithson, Waddle, and

White voted yes. Commissioner Parton was absent. The vote was 20 — aye; 0 — nay; and

1 —absent. The motion to approve the Resolution passed.



RESOLUTION I: CONSIDERATION OF A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING
THE GREENE COUNTY SHERIFF’S DEPARTMENT TO SELL AND TRANSFER
A 2010 CHEVROLET HHR AUTOMOBILE PREVIOUSLY DECLARED AS SURPLUS
PROPERTY TO THE GREENE COUNTY ANTI-DRUG COALITION FOR THE
SUM OF $3,000.00
A motion was made by Commissioner Carpenter and seconded by Commissioner
Waddle to approve the consideration of A Resolution Authorizing The Greene County Sheriff’s
Department To Sell And Transfer a 2010 Chevrolet HHR Automobile Previously Declared As
Surplus Property To The Greene County Anti-Drug Coalition For the Sum of $3,000.00
Mayor Morrison called the Commissioners to vote by roll call vote. Commissioners
Anderson, Arrowood, Bible, Bowers, Burkey, Carpenter, Clemmer, Cobble, Crawford, Dabbs,
Gunter, Kiker, Lawing, Murray, Peters, Quillen, Shelton, Smithson, Waddle, and White voted

yes. Commissioner Parton was absent. The vote was 20 — aye; 0 — nay; and 1 — absent.

The motion to approve the Resolution passed.



RESOLUTION J: CONSIDERATION OF A RESOLUTION OF THE GREENE
COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY TO ACCEPT AND CONSENT TO THE TRANSFER
OF ALL ASSETS, LIABILITIES, MANAGEMENT, AND OPERATORS OF NORTH
GREENE UTILITIES, INC. SUBJECT TO APPROVAL BY THE NECESSARY
REGULATORY AGENCIES

Mayor Morrison announced that Resolution J had been pulled by the sponsor.



OTHER BUSINESS

GREENE COUNTY SHERIFF’S DEPARTMENT NOTIFICATION TO
CIVILIAN GOVERNING BODY AND LOCAL COMMUNITY

Mayor Morrison announced that the Greene County Sheriff’s Department Notification
to Civilian Governing Body and Local Community to be spread across the minutes.

The Greene County Sheriff’s Department may request the below controlled property
items from the Law Enforcement Support Office (LESO), or other Federal source:
Pursuant to EO 4074 (Section 12), this memo fulfills the requirement to notify the Civilian
Governing Body (CGB) and Local Community of my agency’s intent to request the controlled

property items listed in the notifications.



ADJOURNMENT
A motion was made by Commissioner Bowers and seconded by Commissioner Shelton
to adjourn the meeting.

Mayor Morrison announced without discussion and objection we stand adjourned.

Closing Prayer — Commissioner Jason Cobble

Greene County Commission Meeting Information

“THE NEXT COUNTY COMMISSION MEETING WILL BE MONDAY, DECEMBER 16, 2024”

“THE DEADLINE FOR SUBMISSION OF RESOLUTIONS FOR THE NEXT COMMISSION MEETING IS
THURSDAY, DECEMBER §, 2024, AT 12:00 P.M.”

GREENE COUNTY GOVERNMENT HOLIDAY CLOSURES

“THE ANNEX AND COURTHOUSE WILL BE CLOSED THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 28, 2024, AND
FRIDAY, NOVEMBER 29, 2024, FOR THE THANKSGIVING HOLIDAY”

“THE GREENE COUNTY EMPLOYEE BREAKFAST WILL BE HELD ON TUESDAY, DECEMBER 10, 2024,



STATE OF TENNESSEE
GREENE COUNTY VETERANS SERVICE OFFICE
101 LONGVIEW DRIVE
GREENEVILLE, TN 37745
(423) 798-1707

December 2, 2024

Monthly report for November 2024

Electronic claims submitted: 172
Mailed claims, documents, etc.: 85
Telephone calls: 259
Walk-ins: 65
Appointments: 92
Referrals to other agencies: 55
Veteran'’s Organization’s Meetings
1. Veterans of Foreign Wars Post 1990
American Legion Post 64
Disabled American Veterans Chapter 42
Elbert Kinser Detachment Marine Corp League
Veteran’s meeting held monthly at Farmer’s Daughter

wopwN

e Other: We had our annual Tennessee Department of Veterans Services
Accreditation Examination on November 18 & our scores were 96 & 98

Sincerely,

&m&n Rl
Sonja Forbes
Director/VSO



20C '1s1€ 18q010Q0
JJoday |eloueul
s|ooyog AJunon ausaln



50'126"%1 BIFSIURL JO NS 0L 3nG - OESIZ-W1
(00°000°057) SPUNJ J3I0 0) 3Ana - -00STZ-EpT
000 PaWY - T6ETT-EVL
000 'S'd'd - -S8ETZ-IPT
(¥8'982'T) Anuuy JlleA - -bBETZ-THT
000 seuy - -18E12-Tut
000 SUDRINPIQ UOJUN WP3D) - -DBETZ-THT
00'0 Aupgesia aiqesn - DLETT-THT
000 NJewnsru | - -99¢TZ-1p1
00'0 N0y SBUARS L3IEBH - -S9ETZ-TbT
000 SS3U|T [E2MHID) JIqesn - H9ETZ-TH1
000 WOl/IN 21qesn - 29E1Z-1p1
00'0 2411 10A @qensn - ~[9€T12-1p1
000 S3IATT puy SuBLYSIILD - H05ETE-THI
000 USLIPAaM UIBPO - =/SETZ-EbY
000 3N LBuLe] IISSIUUT L - -SSETZ-THT
000 13DUeD 3Igesn - -E£SETZ-I¥T
000 SU] 31 uuel DI0H - -ZSETTTHT
000 {@uag spuRgdwny - -TSETZ-TbT
00°0 slauag dwol - -0SETZ-T¥l
000 SUJ LPJE3H 0395007 < -8PLTZ-TFI
000 UAPIY 3jgesn - 9pETZ-THT
00 JSV4. - BUIpURCS X3y - eleq 19RS - -SPETZ-THT
000 Sul S13323) JPUONEN - PPETZ-THT
000 Sul AIBpY ueiBuN - EPETT-TbT
oz'Le 317 3jqesn - TYELZ-TP]
80°851'T suf Jaipea] 03 49 i At (2]
€1 119EIS PLIGAH JuBWINY - -CECTZ-THT
000 1S9M 10349 AT0Y - -1E€TZ-1p1
|Vi: 2 140] SUOANQIAUOD JuBWIIY - -DEETZ-TbT
000 UoINPaQ 81e31p31Y 33A0|dILIY - -GZETZ-TH1
000 xe] Auroas |eos - OZETZ-IbT
000 Predun puy PIRYYIM XeL 3du] - -QIETZ-IpY
(ST'6H£00E) aiqeded SJUNody - -001TZ-IbT
90°ZZTY'S¥E'SOT S20UN0S3Y JO SMOLAND PALIIQ PUE K255y [€101
90°TTP'SPE'SOT sassy nog
0b°895'bb8 U3 524 $014 Jo4 BnIasY o) poyD dxg -009+1-1p1
ES'9L9'161'ST (10u03] 183 JALNG - SBAPpUSdx] = -DOSPI-1bT
0£'658'ESL (100u0D) sIULIWMLT PEHINbIUN = 00ZPT-TbT
00'00£°696'€9 SSNUBASY PoIRWNST - -00T¥1-TH1
(00°8+1°59T) Xe) ApRdoud 3(qe1ajieour) Jog SIemolry < -DISTT-TH1
00'¥8LLE'L BiqeAjanay saxe | Apadeld -~ -D0STT-T¥1
SZ'687'L88 SIUSWLIBA0Y RIRG WOk 3Ng = DEPTI-TbT
(0z'e) Jlqeamday SHUNoRy = OIPII-141
16'069°612°¢T 231SNUL YUM ysed < OFTTI-IPT
281009 Rieg Uy yseD = DETTV-THT
Wduejeg uoyduOsa(] Junooy 42qUUINY UNCIY
[o0YPS Isodary Jeuan THT : purd
2 40 1 dbed $Z0Z 139010 pung gns B puny
WY BE:8 bZOZ/DZ/TT dunyjejeq puni-qns pue pund Aq 199ys eduereg 4q 139ys Sougen :Aq pajeasy

piome) RARY RN

uoNEDNP3 JO PIEOE AUNOD FUINID

AsUyag 397 :eweN aleidwa)



oo’ looyos Isoding (€s2u99 % Sje30L puny
(90°ZZ¥'sv6'507) souejeg pung pue ‘'se U JO SMOPU] PILSIRQ ‘SR Q0L
(66°£Z5'650°9T) saqmnby |WoL
(00°000°007) zbl o) uean - paubisseun - ZHT- -0006E-TbT
05'298'26 pauBisseun 16png . - -000BE-THT
(BT 528"vEVET) peubisseun - -0006E-THY
(911£2'191) weaB0.q [0OUPS PAPUAINKI - 73S JSUT-UON JO UogesadQ 104 paubissy - 453 OLLYE-TBT
(15'v+9'68Y) 3ANUBIL] JUAWANY - UONEINPT JoJ PaubISSy - BL¥ -BSZVE-THT
(09'969'2€} S5300NG 0 Sabplig - UOREINP] 104 paubssy ~ 01T~ -S5SZpE-TPE
(£Z2'596'28) uoneInpy 104 pIUbssy - - -G5ZBE-THT
(1e'220'9) 13PPE 4331ED) - UCHIINGSUY 104 PRLOSIY - VD~ -09ShE-I¥]
(90°¢6€16Z'T) 1BIA JOL - STOURIGUITIUT - = -OTIPE-THT
{0E'6S9'ESL) BB JUBLND - SDULIGWINILI - - OTTHEIBT
(£0°86¢'548'68) ssqiqer] jaoL
(sz'687'¢88) INUBAIY JJqelieneun)/pa.iRRg P20 - < -0B66Z-THT
(00°6£0°121) soxe] Auadoid Juanbuyeg paLapg - - -ShEEZ-1bT
(00°€82°5£6'9) saxe ] Auadold JuaND paLgag - -OKEEZ-THT
(66°b6v"LE) (1021403) Spuny Y10 WWAIJ SIDYSURIL = -OISHZ-THT
(10'£20°20€"£T) {1013u00) sanuanay - -00S8Z-T¥1
(05'795'290°¢9) (10nu07) suoneudoxidy - -00T8Z-TH1
asuejeg uoRAWSIQ JUNO3NY JaqunN Junoxy
[00Lps Isoding jeiauag THT: pungd
ZJ0 2 bed PTOT 259100 PUNJ GRS R puny
WY BE:8 b202/02/1T Pwu jayea puni-gns puz puny Ag 3224s ouneg 4q 139ys Souren :Aq pagyeasy

pigmen) ezy o8N

UOREINP3 JO pieog AJUNOD UIRID

PRURQ 391 PweN RNEKduR]



TET09C0L) %80 Zt (S ZS6SeCT 8V Cve 189) _ ODOOL ZZZT 000 OO0 ZZZ T SNNIASY VOO0 1 B3HI0 V101  O00FF
000 %80 9 027799702 (ot sec 1) 00000 2Z 000 000002 SonUoAd [B20 90 0BbER
(00°281°'+2) %LET 00'69L'£2€°T (00'1£2°28) 00°000°09€'T 000 00°000°09€'1 SIS g SUCHNGLIUCD 0L5bt
{00552} %00°'S8 00'Sk (00'552) 00'00€ 000 00'00€ [ENPIAIPUT WIOI4 PRI2A0DSY SabEeWeq 095+t
(99'99999) 12bpng oN {99'999°99) (99°999'99) 00'0 000 000 AHSU0Ld JO 3JBS oV
000 %S9°ZIS (00°£52'8) (00°£SZ°0T) 00°000°Z 000 00°000°C JuBWdmbs jo ates 0£SH
(55'852°9) %L0"8T L8SLEEHT (ET°429°1€) 00°000°S4T 000 00°000°G4T SpuUNyaY SNO3UR|IPISIW 0LTHY
(08'1ST) %90'8E 61°868'1 as THI'T) 00°000°€ 000 00'000°€ S|euslel PIPAITY JO 3jes ShTbt
(S2'6£0°2) %699 00'£2T'ET (00°2£2'9C) 00'000°0b 000 00°000°0% siguay/asea V404
{08°£p0°86) %SLLLT {85'550’9¢1) {85°550°11¢€) 00'000°SLT 000 00'000°S4T paLues 35353 o1k
T6TELVS) %598 SOCSOVIE 156 L1ZF 62J 00 ¥L% OFE 000 D0PLS UPE  S3OIAGIS INSHUND 304 SIDEVHD w101 DOOEF

000 %00 G 000001 000 CO000 T 000 00000 T 59U puncibyoeg [eului 191
000 %S2'8 ST'zIg’ssT (58112791} 00°'+25°202 00°0 00'+25°202 PIYD-$834 S0IAIS AJUNWWO) 185¢h
(6T°£L1'S) %S9 1£'9£9'pL {6z°cze’s) 00°000°08 00°0 00°000°08 5/00YIS |ENPIAIPUT W04 SIAIRIOY 0/SED
000 %09°bT 61'70L°20 agez'e) 00°000°05 000 00'0000S SWaISAS JBI0 uoneyodsues| TESEY
000 %000 00'000°T 00°0 00°000°T 000 00'000°T Saulyoely buIpuaA 08£EP
000 %TET 00°198°S (00'6€T) 00°000°9 00'0 00°000°9 APUPaI3 jo Jes 1837
R0 2 T24] YolU ZC BLECS T L8 949) OO 005 © (1] BU005 ¢ SiIWY3d ONV 535N3011 W10OL O00iv
[0r'SZ2) %Z0'LL 8T E¢8 1 (8929) 00005°¢C 000 00°005°¢C 25000(1 obelIep oTTIY
TZ0 500 9Fv 1) okl LT TS 6L6 I65¢L  \GEDZLOprEt)  DOODZBEODT U0 0 UU'U0Z BED'IT SIXVL Vo011 W10l D0o00P
000 %05 L1 D0 0EE {0607 00 00% 0070 00'00F SIXE] (€30 AICINIES JoWI0 D6E0F
00'0 %00'C 00°000°02 00'0 00°000°02 00°0 00°000°02 xe] 350x3 yueg oesor
(2€'£9¢) %SO'TT 89'Lbb'p (2e'Tss) 00°000°S 00°0 00°000°S Xe] uuq XiW SL20¥
{bb"525068) %86°67 TU6£6'T0E'D (88'090°869°7) 00°000°000°6 000 00°000°000°6 Xe| Ses uondQ 2207 0120%
00°0 %bT'1 TEPIL'YT (89°587) 00°000°52 000 00°000°SZ 13YI0 Saxe] JO NBIT Ul SJUSLUAE] €910V
(86°£Ep7SS) %LS VL 8HEIT'99 (25'988°€61) 00°000°09¢ 00'0 00°000°092 ADIRN 18207 SAXE] JO N3N Ui SIUBLWAE 7910%
{£9°02¢) %6E'1Z 16914 (6b'€82°T) 00°000'9 00'0 00°000'9 VAL S3XE] JO N3 Ul SJUBLIAEG 19T0%
00°0 %000 00°001°T 00'0 00°001°7 000 00'60T'T saxe| dn-}did ostor
(1£°09L'F) %85'0¢C £L'v29°18 {LTsLest) 00°000°S9 000 00°'000°SS Ajjeuad g 1521901 oviopb
(90°zzb't) %TL'0C 98'£52°09 (PT°2bL'ST) 00°000'92 000 00'000"9L 343D WN2ID) octop
(96'0) %Sb T TT°IST (68'8¥} 00'002 000 00'002 Ad1dnnjueg UOHD3Y|0) 9IS (41014
(68°£71'61) %ET 8T 8T LLT'6ZT (2L 2z8'0s) 00°000°08T 000 00°000°08T YA 101d-5UONIB||0D) 5,235 oIk
(b '2b9'2LY) %65, 95'/SE°/76'S 2y eLy) 00°000°00%°9 000 00°000°00%9 xe| Ayadoid JusLIND 0T10P

INUIAIY JUaLND pazjleay  pazieasun pazijeay ALA pIjewnsy (€301  SjudWpUIWY 153 |euibuo

% |00UDS Is0dINg |R18UBS) IbT & pund

2Jo 1 abed PZT0T 13Go10 pung gns Aq

WILLILIS ANUIAIY
WY SZ2:8 te0T/0/TT awig /ajeq punj-gns Aq S3INU3ABY JO JUIWIILLS 9 1Aq pajeasd
plojmer) ejaey 25N uoneosnpy Jo pieog AJUNCD) UBIH pauLyaQ DO FWeN Ijeidwa L



TSSEL6950°D) ToIT 22 ODCBLOES OF (DO BIS GEEZ1)  UUDOZGOGED 000 DO U0Z 656 £9 TPV 1pund 03 [E30L
TOO obb BF TOS05 25 66 TV LE) U0 000 52 OO0 VDO O0USL TIVBNOS UIAL0 1VI0L 00060
000 %000 00°000°SZ 000 00°000°54 000 00°000°SL Siajsuel] bugeisdy 0086F
0070 obpng oN (66'v6b°LE) (66'b6b"2LE) 00°0 000 00'0 AJaA0IY 3DURINSUT 00L6b
TOUETCL) %G TEr  Z6TPVEST  (t0Z8Zbl) _ UOOE6Z9Y 000  UOOE6Z8T — INJWNUIADD 1VHIA3d WVIOL DUOZY
[iV) %00°0 0000001 00’0 007000701 0070 0000001 JAISS 150104 089/¢
[CTA1 a1 9] %69¢ 92 61U LET' TP (1879 °b1) 00°000°9S 000 00°000°9S juawassnquiiay J10Y [¢]°T44
(¥8064°L) %LS'8 8£°506'901 (2Z'v20°01) 00°0£6°9TT 00'0 00°0£691T a3e3s ybnoy | |espa4 1PYio 06SLY
000 %000 00°000°S 000 00°'000°S 00°0 00°000°S paddedipueH 3y} JO vonesnp3 |3 2944
TEOICT DBE ) Fobl BT TOTILBCLCE  (BEWIGBICEL) OO OPLZvs ab G00 OO0 OVL L¥5 57 JIS5INNIL J0 J1ViS IVI0L  0009%
000 %000 GOOLTE 000 00 0ZTE 000 [ETANS Suels e BU0 09690
{96°¢bE'0E) %b0°0¢ ¢1'896'11Z (89'T£0°16) 00°000°€0€E 000 00'000°€0E Spung uogednp3 s3e)s sylo 0655
000 %0070 00°000°TE 000 00°000°TE 000 00°000°1E uonednp3 sidAlQ 0659
000 1ebpng ON 00°0 000 00°0 000 000 lappen Jsale) 0199
000 9%9LTT DL TES'OPE'T (O£ TT19'8LT) Q0°EP1'61S'T Q00 00°EPT61ST N-ald 3jers ST1S9b
(L0°LLL'6HE'Y) %L8'6C 08'T0T°ZH9°0E {02 TEE6L0°ET) 00'EEH'TRO'EY 000 00°SEP’T69'EL WUDIPMS Ul JUSUISTAU] DISSDUUD | 015%¢
SNMUIAIY Juain) pazije’y pazieaiun pazijeay aLi pajew}sy |ejo) SJUIWpuILY 1S3 jeuIbuQ
% [00Y3S 850d1ng |eleusD b1 :pund
Z Jo 7 abed yTOT 12q0PO pund gns Aq
Juswajels anUIATY
WY S¢:8 tzoe/oe/TT PDwil/aneq punj-qng Aq S3NU3AdY JO JUBWIAS 91 Aq pajeas)

piojmer) ej4ey

oS

uogesnpg JO pieod AJuno) Iuaaln pauyag Ho1 weN ANejdwd |



%0L°T (€9'5£8'824) £5°695'pT Y850 000 (00°000°008} 000 {00000'008) Juswdinbz uomonnsu] tenbay 724
%b6'8y  (LT'6STTET) 000 EL'8bL'9TT 00°00¢'26 (00'800°65Z) 000 (00°200'652) sbieyy 20 665
%sz'69  (09°TOT'TT) 0c'o 0b'866'vT 000 (00°001°9¢} 00°0 (oaoot'9g) sjeiajely puy salddng o0 66F
%IS 18T  62°S18'S9 000 67'595'941 00°00SET (00°0S. 08) 000 (00 052’08} asemyos  TZb
%5018 {ZE'Viv'6) 000 89'szS 0V 000 (00°000'0S) 000 (00°000'0S) punog - HooqpaL bbb
%000 (00°000°S) 00°0 000 ooo (00°000's) 00°a (00"000'S) Juond3(3 - Sjoeqpal  0Eb
%89°0ST  63°96b'2L $E'897'8 $S'8Z/'907 (06°806) (00°005'2HT) 000 (00°005°Zb1) soyddng jeuamonasul - 6CF
%wag'ss  (00°092'02) 00°000'0¢ 00°0vT'LT 000 (00°000'82) 000 (00°000°82) SOIAIDS PIPERUT) BYD  66E
%abbz  (65'SL6'ET) 61°261"% ZT'CEE 00°0 (00"005'81) 000 (00"005'8T) sdinb3-sanniag sieday puy aaueusiulel  9EE
%00°00T  00'DSL'Z 00’0 00°05£°T 00°056'T 000 000 000 sapuaby 332Aud YWIM Speauo)  CTE
%EL 07 (25798b'SS) 000 SEEIS'HT $5°020°Z (00'000'04) 000 (00'000'02) uonezES PUGAH - wawanay  L1T
%wb0LT  (6£7950°092) 000 19°90+'€S 1S'8EY'ST (DO'E9V'ETE) 000 (00°£9¥'€1E) P3N RAodws  ZTT
%zL'ss  (9T°€1STT) 00°0 $2'98b'bT 000 (00°000'92) 000 (00°000'92) uonesuadwo) juswAoidwaun  OT¢
%0Z'£ (00"v69'85) 00°0 00°00°t 00°05€°T (00°569'Th) 000 (00°¥69' 1) soveinsuf jewag 802
%EE'PE  (81'€LE'S9E'D) 000 Z8'110'0p2'7 9%9T1'0TE (00'585'509°€) 000 (00'58€'509°€) uensuf edIpa £02
%86'TE  (SEbL0'P) 00'0 SSTH’T £6°S6b (00°066'S) 000 (00°066°S} @oueunsuf a1 90T
%EL BT (90°€55°£2T'T) 000 $6'5b8787 TET6T'PET (00'66£'015'T) 000 (00°66€£°015'1) weuRmay =S HOT
%891  (80°€S9'PTI'T) 00°0 T6'149's2 09'259°201 (00 SZEOBE'T) co'0 (co'szgiove’T) Awnsg jenos  10C
%£0°ZE  (SO'TEE'TL) 000 56'899'EE s6Ler’ot (00000501} o0'e (00°000'50T) SIaueay aImNIsgns paymal-uoy 86T
%8c¢z  (59's£8°08) 000 SEHOT'61 842£2°E {00000'02) 000 {oo0c0'0s) siayea] annsqns payusl  S6T
%sL'Tt (£9°20b'659) 000 €EELL'S6 21°659°2€ (o0 1817182} 00'0 (00°181'154) sabem, @ saueles ;Bi0 68T
%0681  (L¥'166°1Z0°T) 000 £5°0ST'8EC [T°766'98 (C0"Z¥1'092°1) 000 (00'zeT’09Z'T) syueisissy [euopeonpl €91
%00'0 (00°000°09) 000 000 000 (00°000'09) 000 (00°000'09) s]Ie.ju0) papuxy Jappe ey LT
%608 (89'p56°St) 00'0 ESH0Y 99'7z0'z (00°000'0S) 0070 {00°000'05) wesboug Jappe ;2ased /11
%989T  (£ZTT9'E09°LT) 000 £L°9VE'695E 1T°esk'8ve’1 {00'696'24L1°TT) 00°0 (00'696'2£1°1T) spyeay 91T
00TTL
ax3 Juejeg sadsueiqunoul  seanjipuadxy  saanypuadxl 32bpng sjuswpuswy junowy 19bpng uondiasag JUNOIIY  JAQLUNN JUNOIDY
196png psssquimduauny  Bupueisang Yeq-03-iea)  eq-03-{uoK papuswy
30 %

joods asading |essuan IPT : pung

$T o 1 9beq $Z0T 1200
WY 1€:6 b202/0T/11 ow) /ajeqa punj Aq [qo Aq Aseliwing saJnypuadx] Jo JuaW)eIS 291 :Aq pajeas)d

pIomeI) BIARY HE uonesnp3 jo pseog Auno) ausaug pauyaqg 591 ewen ejdwa)



%581 (167018'022°T) 000 60°Y08'LL2 $S'S08°001 (00'219'86p'T) 000 (00°Z19'86+°T) sioyedy 911
D0ETL
%L0'TZ  (PTSYE'9SP'E)  L8'SVL'9L 66"881'9H8 £0°'TZL'0SE (c0'E88’6LE'Y) 000 {00'e88°'6LE'Y) wesbosd uopednpl [eRdS  00TTL (830l
%00°007 b Erl'ss +8'81'89 000 000 000 00°0 oo wawdinbz uoneonpy eads  SZ/2
%00°0 (00°052°€) 00'D 000 00°0 (00r052'e) 00'0 (000S2'E) sjenajey puy Suddns ;syl0  66b
%816 (1€°981°T) £0°£65'8 9991/ 91'80L'E (00°005'p1) 000 (60'00SvT) sayddns [euoganasul 6k
%000 (00°00%) 000 00’0 000 (00°00S) 600 (00" 00s) 1dinb3-sanaias weday puy sdueuajuey  9EE
%000 (g0°00S) 000 000 000 (00°005) 00°0 (00°008) Bunsa) puy uonenieA  CZE
%BETTYy  (LTEEE'SH) 0070 ££°999'T€ 577296 (00°000°£L) 00°0 (00°000°22) 5913Usby S1eAld Yipm senuo)  CTE
%Iz0z  (€5°€8€'9) 00°0 LH919'T ¥bL08 {00°000'8) 00°0 (00°000'8) uonezqeIs pugAH - juswaidy  L1¢
%109t (b1'7£8°8E) 000 98'20t"L ST'60b'E {00'+EZ'9b) 000 (00" bEZ oY) aiedpap Jokojduy  ZTC
%00'0 (00°052'2) 000 000 000 {00°052'7) 000 (00°052'2) uopesuadwo) wawiodusun 0T
%EL'T (00°0SE'S) 000 00°0ST 00°0ST (00°005'S) 00°0 (00"005'S) sdueinsu] [musg 80T
%90°€E  (92'166°99€) co'0 Y2 SLT 18T 6E°760'LY (00°¢97'8bS) 000 (00°292°8%S) 2uesnsu] jenpan  L0Z
%lcge  (85'058) 000 75'85¢ 85°69 (00'601'T) 000 (00°601°1) aueinsul 3y 902
%8Pl (29°bbS'8ZT) 000 9E'269'8E 7€'2L0'8T (00°2£2°¢9T) 00'0 (00°££2'49D) wswaaay s POT
%20°'ST  (6£'100'89T) 000 19°769'62 £E°S66ET (00°p69'¢61) 000 (00°v69'26T) Aunoas epos  TOC
%/0°60T  06'bSE 000 06¥SE°L 0S°09+'T (00°000"0) 000 (00°000°2) 5133831 2IMASANS PAYRID-UON 861
%96ST  (66°T0T'Y) 000 10°86/£ 05°66T (00°000°S) 000 (00°000°S) siayes] aymisgns psuie) 6§
Y%L6°ET (84°Z89'¥EE) 000 S'6HE'PS 81°560LZ {00'Z€0'68E) 000 (00'ZE0’68E) jsibojoped yoads  TL1
%S0' T2 (85'VZI'bZE) 000 2+'96E'98 £9°L48'TE (00'1Z5°0TH) 000 (00°125'0TH) sjuelsissy jeuogeonps  £9T
%z0'1z  (00°986°Z6) 000 00°S2'bT §2'981'9 {00 TEL"L1T) 000 (00" T€2'£TT) s;ped] punoqawoH  8CT
%BEEET  (89'99%'E) 000 TEEES 99992 (00°000'y) 000 (00°000'%) weuboid soppe 13312 LTT
%9591 (S9°L15'¢68'T) 000 SEOPS'9LE 6T°80L'P8T (00°850'5£2°T) 000 (00°850'¥LT'T) siayea)  9TT
00ZTL
%IZ°0Z (98°0EP’9T¥'ST) S0°0E0'LS BO'SY6'8LED TT'869'945T (00"90¢'TS8’'TE) 00'0 (00'90¥'258'1E) 00TTL (2300
0OTTL
dx3g Isuejeg souequnoul  seanypuadxy saunypuadxy y2bpng sjusWIpuUaWY  Junowy 126png uondidsag JUNOJJY  JIQUINN JUN0IDY
196png pasequnouaun Buppuersyng 2)eQg-03-Jea) I1eA-01-{UoH papuawy jabpng
30 %

looyds asoding |R12URS T pund

b1 Jo g 3beq $Z0T 42900
WY TE:6 b202/0Z/31 swil/areq puny Aq [qO Aq Asewwns sasmipuadxg Jo JUWAIRNIS 291 :Aq pagearny
pLOMEL) BlARY s uoneInpz jo pieog AJuno) sUsDH pauysq D97 :oweN Nejdwa)



%00'0 (00002} 000 000 0o'o {00 002) 000 (00°002) sjeuajeyy puy saiddng 1By0  66F
%OT'E0T  TS°STE'T 157621t 000 00°0 (00008'Z¥) 000 (00'008°zy) SIINIBG papenue) B0 66€
%08'TE  (S£'TEL) 000 STIbE e (00°€£0'T) 000 (00°€20°T) S:eipaw hodw3  CTY
%000 (aa-651) 000 000 000 (00°05T) 000 {(00°051) uonesuadwo) ewAodwaun 01T
%999 (00°5¢) 000 00°0SY 00°0ST (00'522) 000 (00°522) PDueinsu] eywag 802
%b6' 9>  {00°S79'9) 00'0 00°098'S 00°'59%'1 (00's8r'zT} 000 (00°s8¥'TT} aoueinsu] |edipan £0T
%Pty {0vTh) 000 09'6 0bZ (0072) 000 (00z) souzansul 2y 90C
%pEzeE  (9£°6E8'P) 000 vY9'TIE'C L6'99¢ (p0°2s1'2) 00'0 (00°Z51°L) wewauRy A& YOT
%6L'TE  (L8'0ET'E) 000 ET'6SH'T 9£°'7TS (00"065'%) 000 (00°065'%) Aunaas jepos  T0C
%E6'9T  (9T'Pb6'2S) 00'0 v8'882°01 TrveE'S (00°c€2'E9) 000 (00 EE£°E9) sobem g sawejes oo 681
%iree  (0z'107'80) 00'0 08'096'€T 0p'8E9°E (00°Z91°2H) 000 (00°Z91°2P) lauuosiad e3> 297
(119 Y44
%00'TE  (LT'SHP'LL6'T)  BTTLETIT v0°S0S‘L18 TTPPLVIE (os'zzs'e06'T}  (05798'26) (00"090’s19°T) weiBoig UDRIEDNP [RUOREIOA  OOETL JeIoL
%6y 02T Z6'OER'LT L1°¢65'59 ST°268°9€ 000 (05°£90'58) (05°€18°02) (00°05Z'pT) Wwawdinbg uopongsuj jeuoiesos  0EL
%ee6z  (00922'vD) 000 00°000°071 000 (00°922'vE) (00°6¥0'22) (oo zev'e) sabieys RYI0 665
%ET'OIT  00°TTL'E 00 TH5'61 00'0£2°L 00'89E°T (00'000°€2) 000 (00" 000°52) s|eL2IRp puy sdlddns syl 66%
%bve  (pp7£992S) [48 2144 '86E'C 9T (00'000°88) 00'0 (00°00088) saiddns jeuoidngsul 676
%000 (00°000°T) 000 00'0 000 {00"000°1) 0oo {(00°000'T) wdinb3-seoiaias nreday puy dueuduew  SEE
%s6'€9  (0Z'vLZ081) 00'0 08°'522'61€ §5°918'(ST (00"000'005) 000 {D0°000°00%) SWRISAS [00LDS DO YUM speauc)  TIE
%EZ'S (1+°659'02) 000 650pT'T S9° 15k (00°008'12) 000 (00°008'127) uonez(iqess pUgAH - Juawsndy 12
%TzZl  (80°890°Z€) 000 6'85b'y v'BK'T (60'cz5'9e) 000 (00°22579€) aseopal sakoduss  ZTL
%00°0 (00°002'€) 000 000 000 (00°002°€) 000 (00°002'c) uonesuedwa) JawAoidwaun 012
%000 (007058°2) 000 00°0 000 (000582} 000 (00°058'2) asueinsul jveq 80T
%eL'ST  (£v'(9E°007) 000 (S H0P'69 6£75C1'91 (00°7£2'652) 000 {00°2£2'692) Jouensuf leapan L0
%S1'8 (oz'oz1'T) 00’0 08'€0T H0'SZ (00'p£2'1) 000 (00y22'1) aoueinsur 3t 90C
%8 TT (88°662'99T) 000 [ARAY N 44 [4y774] (00" zey'98T) 00°0 (00°2e'981) wswaigay AAs  POT
%EE'ST  (98'¢91°Z0T) 00'e PI'E0S'8T ST°£94°9 (00°999'0Z%) 00°0 (00°599°021) Aundas tepos 10T
%06'cz  (S9°STHIT) 000 SEVBS'E Spbes (00"000'sT) 000 (00'000°ST) siaydea) IMNsqnS payuad-uoN 86T
%ib9z  (097161°6) 000 0b°80E'E 9Z'260'7 (06°00s'21) ac'o (00°00s'2T) SI90e3) JNISgNG paynay  S6T
%00'00T 166090t 000 16'609'0b ¥Q'8TE"8T 000 000 00°C jouuosad sdveping €71
%95°S (peee8’z) 000 99991 ££°€8 (00°000'€) 000 (007000°€) weiboig Jappe saaied L1
DOETL
dx3 aduejeg soJuBJquINOUZ  $umjipuadx3y  SNppURdx] 3ebpng SjuswWpUsSwWY junowy 336png uondpPsag JUNCODY  AIGLUNN JUNOIDY
186png pausgqumdusun BulpueIINg IeQ-03-JEIA  33BA-01-YIUOKW papualy yabpng
s0 % [ooyas asoding [e13u29 Py :pund
b1 Jo g abeg $70Z 499010
WY T1€'6 $202/0Z/11 townl/ajeq pund Aq [qO Aq AJewang 52uMIpuadxy Jo JUIWNRS 291 :Aq pageasd
piojmer) ejAe) asn uoijedNnp3 4o pieog AJUNo) U pauyRg D97 PweN IejdwaL



%26'2z  (81°08+'09) 000 78'986'41 9p'sEE’L (00°29v'82) 00°0 (00" 29%'8¢4) Juswainay Aers PO
%sk'zz  (¥2'8L1'0S) 00°0 97'875'¢1 85'066'S (co"20L'¥9)} 000 (00"£04'$9) Ayumas jepos  T0C
%000 (00°000°2) 000 00 C0'0 (00'000°2) oc'o (60°000'2) siayiea] Jrupsgng pRuRiad-uoN 861
%000 {00°000'2) ooe 00'C 00'0 (po°000'2) 00'0 (00°000°7) SuBPe3| YMNSANS payny 561
%b8°L (99'965'011) 000 bEEOL'6 910" (oo'000'0Z1) 00’0 (o0-000°021) sabep B sauees oC 681
%wep0e  (TT°91E°8S) 00°0 68'T0S'ST 655058 (00'818'¢8) 00°0 {00°818°€8) swepuany P91
%90z (PG '69€'08¢) 00'0 9P UV YOT ¥'2£8'S8 (00°Z¥8°86) 000 (00" zv8'vS6) [2uuosRd aoueping LT
%00'0 {00°000°T) 00°0 000 000 (00°000'1) 000 {00°000'1) weibold eppe sasey  LTT
DETZL
%€z (9'£8S'ETH) Tv'886'Y TV LSY'TTT $6'006°2L {00°cE0'158) 00°0 {00°€E0'TS8) 0Z1ZL =30l
wZl'ce  (00°€10'%) 09'508°T Ob'181 00°09 (00'000°9) 000 (00°000'9) wewdinb3 yyeaH  SEL
%699  (69'SLE°S) 157082 08 LTH' L6458 (008001} 000 (00'v80°0T) sableyd 210 665
%000 (00005'T) 000 000 00°0 (00005'1) 00'0 (00°00S'1) wRwdopAaQ gersfainas-ul - bEs
%weZz'97  (00002'9) 000012 00°000°T 0070001 (00°008'1T) 000 (00°008'11) sleuie puy saiddng B0 66¢
%00°0 (00°005°4) 00'0 000 000 (00"005'2) 000 (00°005'2} sal|ddng {edipajy puy sbnig  ETH
%000 {00'051'9) 000 000 000 (00"051'9) 00°0 (000519} S9IUDS Papenud) AW 66E
%0:Ty (947148} 00°06 ¥ZObS'E 96'S6€E (c0'z0s'8) 000 (00" 205"} [aaesl  SSE
%00'0 (00°002) 00°0 000 00°0 (00'004) 00°C {00°00£) sabiey) fes0d  8HE
%5595 (05'€69) E3r4 73 617061 60°8E (00°9865'1) 000 (00'965'1) vogeaunwwo)  Z0f
%ES'ET  (GLL61'9) 000 57°988'T 66'559 (00'+80'8) 000 {00'¥80°8) auedpajy sBhodun TTC
%00°0 (0005t} 00'0 00°0 00°0 {00"05¢) 000 {(00"05b) uonesusdwo) Juawhoidwaun  OTZ
%00°0 (007051'2) 000 00°0 000 {007051°2) 000 {00°051°2) souesnsuy [eauag  BOT
%9908 (ZEWCE'ETT) 000 89720108 9572182t {00 ZEV'EST) 000 (00°Zep"€9T) saueinsuy [eaipa L0
%210 (00°y8t) 00’0 o008z or'0e (00657} cao (00'652) aoueinsug 3y 902
%8sbZ  (61°T90°v) 00°0 18'8SE'%1 6b'650'S (00°0Zb'85) 000 (00"0z¥'85) wewamey NEs  H0T
%eEeZ  {69°105'92) 000 1£'590°8 6408'T (00°£95'+€) 000 (00" £95'p€) Aundass epos  TOZ
%85z {(00°€8E'E) 000 00°9£2'T 00°888 (00°611'21) 00°0 (ozréT1'2T) safiepy g sayejes Py 68T
%LELT  (90°0€0'TEE) 000 bE'6EL VLT 19°¢20°sy (00°0£2"5SY) 00°0 (00-0L£'s5%) |ouuDSIad [EoIpal  EET
%66°¢T (DS P08'0S) 000 05°SPT'TT S2£°2L5°S (00°'056'19) 00°0 (00°056°19) sopsng/ioswdns  S01
SIVIADS )|edy O0TTZL
%EZ'Sy  (ET¥89'S6) TS'STTU'vb 9Z'ZBRYE TLY90°TT (00°Z69°'vLT) 000 (00T69°FLT) 0TTZL (2301
%000 (oo ooT) 000 000 000 {00°001) 000 {00"001) sabsey Y0 665
0T1ZL
ax3 9duejeg sasueiqunauz  saampuadx3y  saunppuadxg wbpng SjUdWpUBWY  Junowy Ja6png uondidsag Junoddy  JSqUINN JUN0dY
106png passqunousun  Bupuesang Ijeq-03-1ea)  I3eg-0)-1UOK pspuawy 0bpng
o
0% {ooyas asodind |erdudn TI¥T : pund
$T 0 ¢ 2bed $70T 19q000
WV 1£:6 b202/07/11 Pwi) /azeq pung Aq [qo Aq AJewwng saanjipuadxy Jo Juswalels 97 :Aq pajeasd
pioMeI BlARY aIsn uopednpy 4o paeoy Auno) sudsun pauysq D97 :RPwen Nejdwa ]



. .

%000 (00"008) 0070 00°0 000 (00°006) 000 (co°006) vonesuadwo? wawAoidwaun  0TC
%971 (00°€TO'E} 000 00°LEY 00°00€ (00°05t'€) 000 (00°0SK'E) aduensuy jewaq  80C
%blbe  (18°S8L°28T) 000 61°116'96 £8°L15EC (00°£69'¥827) oco (00°£69'v87) 2ouesnsu] [edipew  £L0Z
%ogze  (09°¢vE) 00°0 0Z°0L1 8€'t (00°815) 000 (00°815) souelnsup yn - 90T
%bese  (9p'95p'S0T) 000 $5'295°9€ 87'S0E°CT (00°610'25Y) 000 (00°610°Z0T) wwaisy Ras 0T
%ITez  (£8'665'8) 000 £T08L'ST 15°8E0°6 (00°0£E'TTT) 000 (o 0EE TIT) Apmoss jepos 10T
%IETT  (SLHEY'D) 00'0 52595 000 (00°000'S) 00'0 (0o 000's) siaLpes | FIMASqNS payniad-uoN 86T
%00°0 {00°000°2) 000 00°0 0o’ (00°000°2) 000 (00"000'2) s1auoe3) AMESANS paunsd  S6T
%05'vz  (08'8£5°901) 000 0Z°065'vE 91°€26'01 (00°69T'TH1} 000 (00°691°THT) sabep @ saueles oYl0 68T
%00°00T Z1'658'€ 000 " (T658€ L8°56E'T 000 000 00'0 sjuawsed snuog 88T
%eEEZ (4L PBT'SE) 000 92'791°01 9Z'8EY'E (00 L+ 'ED) 000 (00" Lbb"ED) sjuesissy jeuoneonpy €91
%08 (0T£49°¢2) 000 08'00EZT 0T'SL0'E {00°8£6'6€) 000 (00°826'6£) (suucssed lexwRp 291
%00'00T  SS'I6E'9 000 S5°16E'9 000 000 000 000 jauuosIad PIndwon jeuondnnsu]  BET
weeee  (E€°GEB'TIE) 000 49658557 £4°0L0'vb (00°169°£9V) 000 {00'169°L9%) J3uu0siad elpajy uogeanpy LT
%6091  (99°£09'E8L) 000 YE ZOE0ST LUTST'SL (00'016°cE6) 000 (00°016°€€6) suewesgry  6CT
%0001 (20°008'P) 00°0 86°66% 6667 (00°000's} 000 (00"000S) weibosd oppe 3a1e)  LTT
%LZEE ($96E0°91T) 00’0 9705848 657901 (00"068’€L T} 00'0 (00°068°€LT) lopaugoswedns  SOT
0TZTL
%y vz (9E°0E9'LET'T) PYISLE 0S°61T'S0F 69'0E6°65T {00°108'r¥9's) 000 (00°108°v$9°T) DETZL 1101
%00'0 {00"00Z) 000 00°0 000 (00"002) 600 00002} wawdinbg syl 067
%99'6s  (5£°¢60°7) 98°S8¢’T 669141 ¥8'1L9 (00"002'S) 000 (00°00T'S) sobieyd BYC 665
%000 (00°005°T) 00°0 000 000 (00°005'1) 000 (00-005°1) uswdopAaag yasfeanas-ur  bIS
%61€9  (00°6¢0'T) 87°59€ TLSEY'T 61°96€'T (000587 00°0 (00°0S8'D) sjeudlel puy sNddns R0 66¢
%EEPS  ($9°6ZE'TS) 000 9£°0£0'19 OV £SP'9Z (00'00p'Z1T) 000 (00 00¥’Z11) SSDIAIIS PRIRRNUCD RYID  B6E
%0000 95°Sk 00°0 95°Sh 000 000 000 00°0 joARlL  SSE
%00°0 {00°000°0€) 00°0 000 000 (00°000°0€) 000 (00-000'0€) Bugso) puy uopenjeas  2ZE
%LbvE  {0T78E9'T) 000 08198 07'95¢ (00'005'2) 000 (00'005°2) uogeziigeIs PUGAH - ywewanay  L1¢
%ebzz  (92'SEL’1T) 000 bLL6E'E Z0'T0H'T (00 €ET'ST) 00°0 (00°€€T'ST) aienpop kodwy 212
%000 (00°005) 000 000 000 {00°00S} 00’0 (00°005) uonesuadwo) wawhodwsun  0TZ
%b1¢T  {00°006'2) 00°0 00°009 00°00€ (00°005'¢) 000 (00°005°¢) ouminsul [ueg  80¢
%ewiy  (b0'008°69) 00°0 96°560'9 08'ST6'01 (00"968'¢ET) 000 (00968'€€T) asueunsuf [expa  L0Z
%es'sE  (08'481) 000 02'€07 09°(2 {00'8872) 000 {00'887) uensul i 902
0ETTL
ax3 ajuejeq souRsQUINOU  SAINYpusdxl  seanypuadxa 396png SJUSWIPUBWY  Junowy Jabpng uondidsag JUNoIDY  JOGUWNN JUNODY
jbpng pasaqunouaupn  Bujpuesing  91eQ-03-JESA  33R0-0X-YIUOW papuawy 1ebpng
30 %

jooyds asodind |esusH TYT :pung

#T 4o § 3bed $Z0T 439090
WY 1¢i6 ¥202/02/11 ‘aun ] fajeq pung Aq [0 Aq Atewilsng saanypusdxy Jo JuawA|S 291 :Aq pajessd

piogmeld) ejiey HEL

uonednpg Jo paeog Ajuno) ausauy

pauyaq D97 ewey ajedwal



%0098 (00°0HT) 000 00098 000 (00°000°T) 000 (00'000'T) Joinb3-5931uas seday puy dueuduely  9EE
%0070 (00°0SS) 000 000 000 (00'059) 00°0 {00'055) SUBWARY Y]IgS/ased  OEE
%9S'eT  (ST'EO8'E) goo SL'965 05°60F (00°00%'v) 00°0 {00"00v'b) s213u3by MANd JARO WIM sPeRue)  0TE
%0008  (00°DDE) 2LUNULE BZ'822 81°9¢ (60'005'1) 000 (00 005'T) uogeyunuiwo)  L0€
%00°00T  OE'bTH 000 9€'HTt LEEST 00'0 000 000 uoReziqels PUgAH - Juawaunay  LTC
%zg6z  (01°Zb8'p) 000 06£50'C 76'099 (00'006°9} 00°0 (00°006'9) aJedipay s2hoidwy  TTT
%00°0 (00°0sT) 000 00'0 00’0 (00'0ST1) 000 (0070ST) uonesuadwio) JuawAojdwau  OTZ
%00°0 (00'sz8) 000 000 00’0 (00'sz8) 000 (00°sZ9) 3dueinsu lewag  80¢
%6k 1E  (bT'BYE'0R) 00°0 97' 128’81 88'$S0’S (00°0££'6S) 000 (00°0£L°65) 3sueinsul |EJIpAW £0€
%00°0¢  {00°t8) 000 00°9€ 09'6 {00’0z1) 00'0 (60 0z1) ouensur 3y 90T
%96'92  (28°LLE'6D) 000 81°Z29'01 0r'z9e'e {o0"000'0%) 000 (00°000°0b) wawaunay Aws  H0Z
%650 (19°0£6°61) 000 6£°66L'8 01'928'2 (00°0¢£'82) 000 (00'02'82) Aundas jeros 10T
%ossz  (18°544°86) 000 61°S90'vE £9°841°01 (00 THS'ZET) 000 (00" 1HS°ZET) sabep, 3 saueEs B0 6BT
%000 (00°z£0'02) 000 000 000 (00°z£0'07) 000 (00°ze0'07) (S)umpoag 191
%bg'8Z  (Z1'959°61) 00°0 88°€71'07 10°1+0'9 (00°08£69) 000 (00°08269) {3uuossad wewssassy  SET
%00°00T  +E'60Z'6 000 PE60Z'6 {909 000 000 000 ouuosiad |Epap TET
%2z’0Z7  (8£°898'66T) 0c0 62'008'0S £p'EE6'9T (00°699'052) 000 (00°699°052) 1uuos.Rd lebojodtsyq  HET
%000z (00°00¥'2) 000 00°009 00°00€ (00'000°E) 000 (00°000’€) weiboug Jappe] Jaasey  LTT
Bt EE (P9HTO'YS) 000 9£'§ST'Z¢E ¥B'8£0°8 (00°0£1°96) 000 (00°01°96) sopaag/rosivadng SOT
0zTTL
%0ELT (SHISE'TO8'T) E6TEC'PE ¥9°160'Z99 $S°T88°90C (00°989°LL¥'T) 000 (00°989°2L¥'7) 0TZTL 18wl
%00°0 (c0'000°'t} 000 000 Q00 (00°000'1) 00’ (00°000°T) wawdinby 2WO 064
%ILTLT  £SE9E ooe £5°€98 oo'e (00°00S) 000 (00°00S) sableyd o0 665
%000 (00°000'S) 000 00'0 00'0 (00°000'S) 000 (00°000°S} JuswdopAaq Yeisfannas-uy ks
%SHTT (22'v58'9) zeegs 90°£5¢ faardas (oo-oo0°01) 00°0 (co'000°01) sjeuely puy SNddns Jayi0 66
%iS6s  (00€z8'S) 00'0 00°2£9'TT 000 (00°005'87) 000 (00'005°82) eipan/sioog Aegr  TEP
%L9°99T  96'666'bT 79'998'62 PEEETOT 00'00b'E {00°000'ST) 000 {00°000°ST) S3JIAIRSG PIPEQUOD B0 66E
%LIPE  (TSE9’ST) 000 85HIT'e 80'155'7 (00°052'€T) 000 (00'0SL°ET) [orRly  SSE
%000 (00°001) 00’0 000 000 (00°007) 00°0 (00001} 10INb3-5331AI35 Nied3y puy Idueuajuel  9EE
%000 (00°000°S) 000 000 00°0 (00°000'S) 000 {00'000'S) sweynsuo)  BOE
%ESeL  (00°008'T) 60'8Lb'E 16°1Z51 9T'EES (00'008°9) 000 (00'008'9) uogeounwwoy 20§
%0c92  (20'Lgl) 000 86'792 6v°IET (00°000'T) 000 (00°000'T) uogezi|iqeys pugAH - Juswemy  LT¢
%ZEET  (PHI6'6T) 000 95'2£0'9 LL0Tr'e (00°££0'92) 000 (00°2£0'92) aseoipayy BAoidwy 212
0TTTL
ax3 asuejeg saueiqWNOul  SAanyipuadxa  saumpuadx3 wbpng Ssjuawpuay  junowy 3abpng uonRdPsag JUNCIDY  JIQUINN JUNCIDY
wbpng paequnoudun BupuRIsING 3JRQ-03-4B3A  33BQ-03-YIUOKW papuawy 3abpng
30 %

Iooyos asodind jessuss YT pung

1 J0 9 abey ¥Z0Z 199030
WY 1€:6 $202/0Z/11 awi) faeq pung Aq [QO Aq Alewung SANYPPUIEXNT JO JUWBIEIS o, :Aq pageas)
piomer) ejiey IS uopesnpy Jo pJeog AJuno) JIUIIY pauyaq D97 :awep Iejdwal



%00'¥6  (00°005'T) D60 00°005'€2 00005’y (00'000'$2) 000 (00°000°50) saxas Jpny - SOE
%09 ($5°0T6'T) 000 9'$56'C 1885 (00'598') 000 (00°S98'%) asenpop LAoduwy  ZI¢
%96'HT  (£2'H99'58€) 000 EL'SET'L9 £9'16T (00'005'€SH) 000 (00°00S'€SH) aueinsuf joIps 202
%(9'8 (0g'ses’'T) 000 vl Se0 (00°010'7) 000 (00°010'2) uesnsur a1 30¢
wizLe  (26'98S) 000 80°0FE dyra:] (00'¢88) 00°0 (00°z29) wawagay Aexs  H0L
%e/09 (118918} 000 68°7€9'CT Ly'152 (00" 108°02) 000 (00°108°02) AQumss jeros 10T
%8,2T  (00'0SS'€T) 000 00°0SH'E 00°0S+'E {00°000'£2) 00'0 (00°000°22) 5934 SJBqURY dSMUUWOD puy pieog 16T
%689 (Ep'ZzZe'zOT) 000 £5°2£9'¢61 00°0 (00°000'00€) 000 (00°000°00€) Aeg Awasbuot 981
%EE'EE  (89°999'S) 000 TE'EER'T £€°80/ (00°005'8) 000 {00'005'8) pieog o) Aiepias  8TT
0TEZL
%95'68 (0Z'6E6°TT) 00°6Z0°TY 0B'TEL'SST 000 (00'002'612) 00°0 (00 002’672} 0STTL @01
%Ies9  (0000TL1E) 00°65b'LE 00 1€8°4Z 00'0 (00°000°26) 00°0 (00'000°¢6) aemyos  TiF
%0¢'98  (00'0EE'T) 00'04SE 00°001'S 00°0 (00" 000"01) 000 (00°000°0T) buigey 04y
%96'80T  08°00T'0T 00°0 08°008'2Z1 000 (0000030} 000 (oo"00£'21T) Aaauuoy e 0SE
0sZZL
%061 (LE'T90°S8) 00°0 £9'9€8'6E £T'T66'6 (00°868"¥ZT) 000 (00°968'vZT) 0ETTL (201
%8b'S (e5°861°S) 00°0 Ly T0E £6'2S (00°005'S) 00°0 (00°005°S) jores)  SSE
%ss'ee  (B6'9Z6) 00°C z0'89% SELIT (o0's6e'T) 00°0 (00°56€'T) Auedipajy BAodws  ZT1¢
%00'0 {00°'b€) 000 000 000 {00¥E) 000 (00'¥E) uonesuadwo) wawhodusun  0TZ
%000 {000sT) 000 000 800 (co'osT) 000 (000ST) souesnsup [quag 80T
%S6'0€  (00°806°S) 000 00'8¥9'C 00°799 (009558} 00'0 (00°955'8) aoueinsuy [epa  L0Z
%6ZvE  (0'6) 000 08'v 0z't {00'p1) 000 (00'v1) adueinsuy ay1 90T
%s9'ee  (0T'8S0') 000 08°£50'T £9°21S (oo-911'9) 00'0 (00'911'9) wawamey a|ms  H0Z
wosee  (T¥196'€) 00°0 81'100°Z 81208 (00°£96°S) 000 (00°€96'5) Apndss jepos 10T
%000z {00°008) 000 00002 00°001 (00°000°T) 000 (000001} weiboud Jeppey joaied  L1T
g A U ) 00’0 9E°SS1ZE ¥8'8E08 {00"0£1'96) 000 {00°0LT°96) sopanqpioswisdns  SOT
0€TTL
%0T'8z  (Zb°6TH'TES) STBLL'ST BU616'S6T 6Y'ETL'TY (00" £T1'6€L) 00'0 (00" £LTT'6EL) 0zZTL 1201
%Zy1T (PSPITR) 000 94582 000 (00'00S'7) 00°0 T {0000s'D) sobreyd Y0 66S
%l te (0Z'S6E) 000 08'+00'T 08041 {00 00b'1} 00°0 (00'00+'T) wowdoRAsg yers/mmnas-ur  bEZs
%eZ1E  {bb'8SS°L) 98'LbS°T 0L°€68 S6°007 (007000°11) 000 (0000011} s(ewajely puy s3)ddns ssyio 666
%b5'LST  TEE09'p 49°852'8 ¥'phe'y 11208 (o0"000'8) 000 (00°000°8) ARl SSE
0zzTL
ax3y aouejeq soouelqunouy  saJnjipuadxy  seanyipuadxy ybpng sjuawipusiny  junowy }abpng uondsag Junoddy ..ﬂmE...z JUNoldyY
Pbpng pasequmousun  bujpueisino 3)eQ@-03-ded)  93eq-03-YIUOK papuawy yabpng
30 %

[ooYyds asoding |[el3uad IPT : pung

¥T Jo ¢ 3beq ¥T0T 41290120
WY T€:6 $20Z/02/11T rPwiL/a3eq pung Aq [qO Aq AJEWIWNS SIINJIPUSAXT JO JUSWL)S 7 ‘Aq pajeal)

piojmes) ejAey

uIsn

uoRe>np3 jO pieog AJUnNo) SUdIIH

pauyaq Do :ewey ajejduwal



oTvZL

%IETPy (T6'€8STHT) 9€'596'91 TLETH'TI9T SS'89L'1E (00"eL6'0ZY) 000 (00'€£6'0Z%) 0ZETL 1=W0L
%00'0 (00°009) QU0 000 00°0 (00°009) 000 (00°009) BwWdinby uonensuwpy T2
%000 {00"00S) 000 000 000 (00°008) 00°0 (00'008) sabsey) B0 665
%SS'6s  (00°005'7) LT0E°T ££'869 YSIE (00°005'S) 00°0 {00°005'S) saddns oo SEb
%90°8TT  00°HS2'T 89'TL19 ZET60'T £0'8pL (00'000°2) 000 (007000°2) SIS papenua) BYI0  66E
%95 (19°¢6v°T) 000 6£°705'T 00°1S€E {00°000'y) 00°0 (007000'%) pAay)  SSE
%lSZT  (BEVEI'D) 01°58Z'1 75025 o9 (00°000'8) 000 (00'000°8} sabueyd |esod  8bE
%0070 (no*00€) 00°0 00’0 00’0 (00°00€) 000 {00°00€) Jdinbg-seonsas Jleday puy duevue  9EE
%8106  (00°5E8) 000 00'599'L 00°0 (00°'005'8) 000 (00°005'8) sdiysiaquan puy sang  OTE
%e6'58  (69°0ZS"E) 1£°64L 00°002'0Z L8'SBB'T (00" 000°'s2) 000 (00°000'57) uoneswnwwe)  LO0E
%00'001 000 00°82+'9 00°ZLS 00°0 (00"000°2} 00°0 (oor000°2) Buispuaapy  ZOE
%EppE  (PI'E0L'TY 00°0 9EBTHT LLLE (00°€CT'p) 000 (00'€21'v} seip shodu  €TC
%000 (00°0%1) 000 000 00°0 (o00¥T) 000 (cooF1) uonesuadwiod uawAodwaun 012
%000 (00°009} 000 000 08°0 (00°009) 00°0 {00°009) aaueinsuf [e1wsq  BOT
%Z9'%  (ZB'ZOY'ET) 000 864811 £5'96£°T (00'z8r's2) 000 (00°Z8Y'5T) Qaueansuf oIpal  £0T
%559z (09°Zp) 000 or'sT SCE (00r8s} 000 (00°88) soueinsul 3y 902
%ZU'SE  (€6'£2Z'ET) 000 L0'091°L 66'89°1 (0o0'ege’02) 000 (co'sse’0e} wewemay a1ms  FOT
%EP'HE  (10°095°TT) 000 66'890'9 SL'BSE'T (00°629°¢1) 000 (00'629°21) Aunses epos 10
%SL0E  (09°566'0€) 600 0b'992'€T 09 Wb'E (00°29¢'vb) 000 (00'29L'vb) jsulosiag ouRp  T9T
%00°0 (00°000°1} 00°0 000 00'0 {00°000°1) 00°0 (00°000'1) weiboig Jappe Joaed  LTT
%zyob  (b9'928'09) 000 9£°€92 v 1T°0L5°8 (00'060°Z07) 000 (00°060'201) (shuesssy  E0T
%ECEE  (00°102'Z6) 000 00°001°9% 0052811 (00°TOE'8ET) 00'0 (00 T0E'8T) 200 PARRLSIUIWPY/EPYO Auned TOT
0ZETL
%Ll 'vE  (08'BEL'S6L) SS'PIR'E $9'6SE'0TY 9R'EIL'EY (00'€16°6TT'T) 000 (00°E16°61Z°T) oT€£TL 1MoL
%ge'zs (00046 S5P99°E SHS9E’T £0°912 (00'000"8} 00°0 (00"000°8) sabieyd 1p0 665
%6667  (SB'15L'8) o0 ST8KL'E SELL0T {00°00527) 00’0 (00°005'21) gL - syuedddy Jo uonebnsaau] jeuw)  £€S
%ee'sT  (S6'902°222) 00°0 S0E6LtL 15992 (00°000°00E) 000 (00°000°00¢) uoissiwwe) sl 0TS
%9679 (00005'2) 000 00052y 00°0 (00°052'9) 000 {00°052'9) SIS papequa) Bg  66€
%bb iy (SL€88'L) 00°0ST §7°996'9 9518 (00°000'ST) 000 (00°000°ST} 2AR1) SSE
%eb'es  (05°92901) 000 05°ELE"YT 05'SSE’S (007000'52) 00°0 (00'000°52) saonss [eba1  TEE
%0L {00sz9'6) 000 00'5Lb 000 (oo oo10¥} 00°0 {00°00T'07) sdiysoquapy puy ssng  OCE
0T€ZL
ax3 ajuejeg souRiqwnoul  SeJmjpuddx3y  ssunyipuadx3 ¥ebpng SJUIWPURWY  Junowy B6png uondsaq JuUno3dy  ISGUWNN JUNOIDY

196png passqunousup  Guipueisang 93eg-03-4edA  33eQ-03-lAUOK papuawy yabpng

30 Y%
looyos asodind [esRudn T S pund
#1 Jo g 9bed £Z0T 43900

WY T€:6 b20Z/02/TT Punlfajeq pund Aq [qO AQ AJewWNS SAINJIPUDAX] JO JUBLLIDIES o9 :Aq pajeslsd

pIOIMEL) BJAR) 1asn

uogQesnp3 jo pieog AJunoc) sulaug

pauyag D97 :awey ajejdwel



%b9'se  (00°59) 0c'o 00'9¢ 00'6 (00°T0m) 00°0 (o0°101) aouemsuf J - 902
%6 (v82£0'1€) 000 9UBIZ'EY PSHOE'E (00" 1621} 000 (00°t62'pb) JawaIgsy Aes  YOT
%Ip'6c  (60°00Z'ST) 00'0 16°05L'9 989791 (00'156'22) 000 (00'156'72) Aunag lepos 102
%Is6c  (OFEp0’022) 000 0950126 [T dx4 (00°611°21E} oc'o (00°6+1'21E) jouuossRd s 79T
wHZ1E  (9T'866'9F) 000 ¥8'ESE’TT 95'8£€’S {00°z5£89) 00°0 (00'ZSE'89) Jopaugfioswadns  SOT
o1szZL
%85°6Z (DE09L'E66°T)  EV'ETE'OE LTSEEOTTY T6'LT'TYE {00'605'05Z'¥} 000 (00'605'0ST'Y) OT¥TL (8301
%00°0 (00'000°7) 0070 000 00'e (00°000'0) 000 (0070002} Juswdinba vonenswiwpy 102
%00°0 (00°000'7) 000 00°0 000 (00°000°'T) 000 (00°000°1) sobiey) PYIOD 665
%EE'8  (00°006'T) 00°09Z'€ 00°0v8 00°0b8 (00°000'9) oo (00°000"9) s|euajep puy saddng JSRO  66b
%6888  (00°000'S) {5°¢L9T'EE EV'ZEL'D BE'EEL'E (00°000'sY) 000 (00°000°St) SEIAIIS PAVRNUOD PO 66E
%000 {00°005'2) 00'0 000 000 (00°005°2) 00°¢ {00°005°7) |ones)  GSE
%0070 (00°000'1) 000 000 000 (00°000°T) 000 (00000'T) 1dinb3-5331A135 sreday puy ddueudjuieW  9EE
%eszz  (08££5°2€) 9g'$8¢ ¥E'9£06 60'887°E (00°000°z1) 000 {00°000°2) uagesunwwo)  Z0€
%00'00T  99°HSE 000 99'¥5€ TTBIT 00°0 000 000 uonezNqels puUgAH - W3Ry L1¢
%oe'8z  {00°T90°TE) 000 00'£62°21 66705€'E (00°85€°€w) 00°0 (00°8SE'EY) a.ppay RAoowz  ZTZ
%00°0 {00005} 000 000 000 (00°005) 000 (00'00%) uonesusdwo] wawdodwaun  0TZ
%L1S {00°052'8) 000 00°0S¥ 00°0ST (00-002'8} 000 (00°'002'8) sjueunsu] leuag 807
%6267 (O£ TES'ESH) 000 0L°CT6'L8T LEBLE' LY {00°5bS'1¢9) 00°0 (T )] asueinsu] [edpaW  £0T
%bE'1E  (02°€65) 000 08'D/2Z 0E'89 (00°+98) 000 (00°98) aoueinsur N 90T
%1687 {S¥'LL0'ETT) 00°0 £6'EE€°99 $S'880'61 (oo 1Ub'622) 000 {00°TI+'622) wewemay Aes  bOZ
%0£'87  (8/'SE6'ZET) 00'0 2T 6SH'TS ££°68Z°%1 (00'S6£°58T) 000 (00's6£"58T) Aunoag lepos 10T
%100E  (82'166'29) 00°0 LR00LT 81°75.9 (00'000'06) 00°0 {00°000°06) ssbem g saueles Jaio 68T
%09'be  (LZ'€0L'995) 000 €4°916'b8T 89'THE'6S (00'029'154) 000 (00°029'15¢) (syeepes 191
%86'vZ  {0E'6SE'SET) 000 0L LpS'I1E LELTT0L {00°206'9+8) 00°0 (00" £06"968) sjedpuud wersissy 6T
%046 (81°814'5) 00°0 28185 16°062 {00°000'9) 00'0 (00'000'9} weuboud Joppe 132180 LTT
%el'bE  (0b'9ST'z88) 000 09°'255'65% ST'£9Z°21T (00°602°9¥E'T) 000 (00'60£'9bE°T} siediuug  $01T
oIvtL
ax3 Jduejeg sssueiquundul  saunypuadxy  sarmypuadx3 126png QWatUPUWY  Junowy Jabpng uoNdpPsag JUNGJTY  JBGUINN JUR0IDY
Wwopng passquimoudun  Buipuasino BQ-03-JEIA  21Q-01-YIUOW papuawy ¥6png
30 Yo

[jooYyas UUOA_._:& jelRuay Iv¥T  punj

1 Jo 6 2beq +$20Z 43900
WY T€:6 b202/0Z/11 Pdwy fajeq puny Aq [q0 Aq AJelung S3INIpUBdX JO JUDWIIR)S 291 :Aq payeas)

piopmen) ejie)y J9sn

uonesnpy jo pleog AJUno) audaug

pauyag 397 :awey ajeidway



wse6r  (26°€0P°TITY 000 B0'965'LY 62°L66'6T (00°000°031) 00°0 (00°000°09T) 1Bmas puy lep  bSh
%s201  (6£°T8K0ZY) 000 172181 LT'%29°E (00°000'SET) 000 {00°000'SET) seg jeineN  vEb
%6908 (b2'064'2LL) 000 9£'602°TH€ S8 1026 (00°000'ST1'T) 000 (00"000'STT'T) Apupan ST
%I0'2,  (b1°£68'TE) 86922 80'6€8'6L 2L'€60°T (00"000'¥11) 000 (00°000¥1T) sayddns jeporsnd - 0T
Wb (PT  (BSEE'ET 0D'E9T'ET (8TETBT 009447 (00°000'82) 000 (00°000'82) SIIMIDS PRPRILOD BYID  66E
%b6pT  (PEZOVE) 00°0 99'¢65 00261 (00'000'p) 000 (00°000°%) PAelL  GSE
%0009  (00°000°C) £E'946'T £9°€20'T 29988 (00'000'S} 00'0 (00°000°S) 1dinb3-530IAI2S Jieday puy dueuajuield  9EE
%00'00T  9¢'v 000 9Ed 000 00'0 00'0 000 uonezyiqers pugiy - juswamay  LT2
%08'vz  (I1'6L5'81) 000 68'921'9 95°'186°1 (00'90£°vT) 00'0 (00'90£'v2) uRpa shojdwy  ZTT
%00'0 (00°005'2} 000 000 000 (00°005°2) 00'0 (00°005'2} uogesuadwo?y wawAodwaun 012
%00'0 (00°000°S) 000 000 000 (00°000°S) 00’0 (00°000°5} ssuensuf (eag  8OC
%8'97  (9£'89H'81E) 000 $9'6£69TT T1°9%€'62 (00°8b6'bED) 000 (00°86'VEY) aduensu] eaipaly L0
%ZE6T  (LZETB) 000 ELP6T ST'ES {00°800'T) 00°0 {(00'800'1) uemsul a1 902
%5857 (68°Z8Z'LET) 000 IS8y 0EbSHTT (00 v£1's8T) 00°0 (00 bET'58T) wawaimy A5 H0C
%9592 (L6'T0v'2L) 00°0 £Q'T6I1'9Z 05729£'9 (00-+65'86) 000 (00°v65'86) Awnsas jees 102
%b0'se  (00'6b1'£8) 000 00°291"Lb ze082'T1 (00 TTS'VET) 00°0 (00°TT9'bET) sobem 12 sauejes 12un0 681
wIEv  (55'599°28T°1) 00°0 S5 T8E §6°£96°00T (00'061°695'T) 00°0 (00061'695°T) [BuuosRd feipoysny 99T
0T9TL
%EO'EE  (68°P6E96E) 00°LTO'S TT'0ES V6T 80°6¥S°6€ (00Zv6'TES) 00'0 (00'z¥6°169) 01SZL eoL
%L6°E {10°188°2) 000 66'811 00’0 (00'000°¢} 00’0 (007000'€) Juawdinbg uonensiwwpy 104
%00'0 (00°005) 0c'0 000 000 (00'00S) 000 (00°00%) sobseyd BYQ 665
%000 (00"00S'T) 00’0 oo'e 00°0 {00°005'T) 0o (00°005'1) slewajely puy sanddns 310 660
%0000  TI'TTH'IE 00'0 2UTTHTE 000 000 00'0 000 amemyos  T/b
%9L5L  (ECvBY) LE'R0L 06°908 00°0 (00°000°7) 00°0 (00 000'2} sa|ddng soyo  SEb
%9862 (L9802} £9°80€ 0LTBY'T 000 (00°000°9) 000 (00"000'9} sayddns buissadalg eleq  TTH
%Z0'0 (s§'z6t'2€) 00’0 S¥L 000 (00°008°Z€) 000 (00°005°ZE) SIS PRIDRALOD 1BYIO  66E
%00'0 (00°005'%) 000 000 00°0 (00'005'y) 000 (00°00S'%) presy  SGE
%00'0 {00°000°1) 000 800 00 (00°000'1) 00°0 {00'000'T) 1dinb3-5301A135 Jleday puy 3dueusjuie  9EE
%00°0 {00°019°1) 000 000 000 {00°0T9'T) 000 (00’0191} sdiys1aqusiy puy sang  0ZE
%Iv6z  (02'682'E) 00'0 08'8¢5"1 [4%: 713 (00'89€’S) 000 (00°89¢'s) aiepa RAodwy 212
%00'0 (00'0bT) 00'0 000 000 (00 ort) 000 [( i3] uopesuadwo) Juawhodwaun 012
%58z (00°05L) 000 00°00€ 00°0ST (00050'1T) 000 {006S0'T) 3dueinsu] jeuaq 802
%S8'67  (9€°185°6S) 00°0 $9°BL€'ST 0L'see's (00°0£6'$8) 000 {00°0£6'+8) sueinsuy epa Z0T
01S8TL
ax3 aouejeqg saJueIqWINIUT  Sa4N3Ipuadxy  sasnjipuadxy 326png SJuUdWpUs3WY Junowy }26png woidosag JuNCodyY  JAqUINN JUNODY
y@bpng pasequnousun Bupumsing  eg-03-iedA  JILA-03-LIUOW papuawy wbpng
©
ey j100Yy2s asoding [el3Uad TPT :pung
¥1 j0 01 abed ¥Z0T J2q00
WV 1£:6 b20Z/0Z/11 2wl /a%eq puny Aq [0 Aq AJewiwing s2Jnypuadx3 Jo Juawaiels 291 tAq pajeasd

piojmel) ejlAey 1Jasn

uonesnpg §0 pJeog AJunod) auddlH

P3uyaq DD Pwey aedwal



%6767 (£6'799°€ST) 0o'o £0'129°09 2EH9E'BT (00 ¥8Z'bTE) 00°0 (00°¥B2'p1E) sabepm % sauejes a0 681
%yl'v?  (06°€98°220'T) 060 0T"L10°42€ 5T (00 T88'bSE'T) 00°0 (00 188'¥SE'T) sisaugsng SbT
%909¢  {(ES'bLp'ELT) 000 LY vT8'L6 9/ 'E8S'ET (00'662'1£2) 00°0 (00'662'1£2) (s)hweynw  ZhT
%sosz  ($7°989'79) 00'0 9£'8b6'07 26°786'% (00°S£9°€8) 00’0 (00°5£9'€8) sopaaq/iosiiadns  SOT
0TLZL
%909 (S6°T9T'pSP) 89°0TT'86 LE00V'T09 68'ZHB'LST (00°€£9'bST‘T) 000 (00°€L9°YST'T) juejd JO dUBURUIRW  0ZITL BI0L
%00°00T 00'8TT'T6T 000 00'8IT'161 000 000 000 000 Jawdinba Y0 064
%00°0 (00°0SL'v) 000 000 000 (oooss'y) 000 (00'0SL't) wawdinbl ssueualuely  LTL
%EL6C  (OTHET'SE) 09092 Yz 1L 0Z°00£"T (00°000°05) 00°0 {00°000°05) sabieyy BP0 665
%se S8 (257902°€) 86°$66'p1 05867y 6E°TLTT (o0'005'22) 00°0 (00'005'22) sleudjely puy S(ddns 5BLp0  66%
%EEEOT 00005 6b°LTb'9 15°2£0°6 0£'508° {00°000'ST) 00°0 {00000°ST) syeq Asauidel puy wdwdinby 874
%8657  00°'SSE'PS 66'606°6 10°Stb'8L LOEPO'BT {00000"¥E) 000 {00°000'vE) SINIIG PIPERUC) SBYI0  66E
%00°0 (00°005) 00'0 000 00°0 (00°005) 000 (00°005) jeae))  SSE
Wl (6S9TEBT) £E'89b°8T POSTZ'LT 1Z°€90' (00°000'05) 00°0 {00°000°05) Jdinb3-s20143G Jeday puy 3dueuwiey  9€E
%260, (Zv'951'8S) 1£'ISTLE LT°T65¥01 ST'IPR'YS (00'000°002) 00°0 (00°000'002) 1pINg-sa0A4aS leday puy dueuduiel  SEE
%00°00T 00D 80'926'2 26’1407 v9'v0L (00'000°S} co0 (00°000'S) MRS ApuneT  6ZE
%98'zy (007008} 98'G8¥ [28211 60°8€ {00°00%'1) 000 (0e00v'1) vogeunwwo)  £0€
%6287 (6L°SbEY) 0c'0 12°186'1 19'+0S (00°268'9) 00'0 (00 268'9) Jenpapy RAodwy 1T
%00°0 (00°08€E) 00°0 000 000 {00°08¢) 00'0 (00°08€) uonesuadwo) uawioidwaun  0TC
%EE (00°059'T) 00’0 007051 00°0ST {00"008'1) 00'0 (00°008°1) aduensuyl |ewag  80¢
%IrET  (88'vEG'ZE) 000 4 §:307°14 87°688'9 (00°€S£°807) 000 (00°eSE'807) dueinsul (eapaw  L0T
%E9'zz  (Ob'SET) 000 09°6€ 08°01 (00°521) 00°0 (00°s£T) soueinsul 3y 90T
%p0'bz  (TT'ST0'6h) 00'e 8£°805°ST PE'S60"Y (00 +25'»9) 00°0 (00 pZ5¥9) wawamay Ayes  H0T
%8S €T (69'TH2'92) 000 1€°£60'8 16'201°C (006EE'HE) 000 {00'6EEVE) Aundag epos 10T
%6FET  (PPOET'PEE) 000 95°885'Z01 9€'5b5'2Z (00'SZ2'9ED) 000 (00°'S522'9€Y) fouucsiagd ueudyely  L9T
%80°LZ  (Y9TEL'Ls) 000 9E'£00'bT 89'T6E'C (o0-0£L'18) 00’0 {00'0££°1S) [3uuosiad (3D Z9T
%06 (0Z'60T'9Y) 00°0 08'06+'0C 0L 'S (00°009°99) 000 (00°009'99) sopvagfsidns - 50T
0z9zL
%8887 (S8'6LL'TL8'T) (6'8BLLY ST°ZZU'BET’T 89'008'L8T (00°169°2€0'v) DO'O (00°169°£E0"Y) 01927 1301
%8E9s  (05°Zps'9) 000 05°25t'8 00°0 (00°000°5T) wo {00°000'ST) Juswdinby uonesado Juely  0ZL
%0005 {00°00S) 98°68¢ [4A8 23! 60°8€ (00'000°1) 000 {00"000’1) sobieyy w0 665
%00°0 (00000's) 000 oo'o 000 (00°000°5) 00 (00°000's) Sleusiely puy SANddns YO 66k
019TL
ax3 souejeg sajuBiquniug  saJnppuadxy  sainpypuIdxy 32bpng SJUSWpUIWY  Junowy 3abpng uondinsag WNOIDY  JIQUINN JUNnodIyY
bpng pasequmouadun bupueisyno 2)eQ-03-deaA 1eq-0l1-yUoW papuawy yebpng
i [ooyds asoding jeiauas IFT : pung
tT 4o 11 abeg +70Z 49q010
WV T€'6 202/0Z/11 @wiL/azeq pung Aq (qO Aq Alewwns S9JNYIpUadx] JO JUIWDIEIS 91 :Aq pajeas)
piojmern) ejiey HED uoedINPJ JO pieog ATUNOD) UIAH pauyaq D97 :awep pejdwy



%000 (00'ss) 000 00°0 000 (00's¢) 000 (00°se) uonesyadwo) juawAodusun  0TC
%000 {p0"goE) 000 000 000 (00°00€) 000 (0o 00€) ueinsu] peuag 80T
%IT0z  (B0+ba'ST) 00'0 65K 8+'€19'T {00'860°2¢) 000 (00'860°ZE) 2sueInsu jeoipA  L0T
%0T'ce  (Ov'61) 00°¢ 09'6 0¥’z {00'62) 000 (00'60) souensul 31 90T
%81°9z (0L 1E6') 000 OL8PL'T S5'ZIS {00°089'9) 000 (00"089'9) wawaunay Ners  H0Z
%6187 (55°€99°€) 000 SH'y18 89'pI¢ (00°82%'Y) 000 (008zv'v) Aqundag [epos  T0Z
%8L0c  (09721Z'¢S) 000 0¥'010°ST 09'66€"Y (ooecz'es) 000 (00'€z2'es) safiep g Sauejes Jsylg 681
018ZL
%BE6Z (TT'6L0°E99°Z)  9EPIV'EZT TS 1E9°vB6 65°Z52'0TE (00'SZT'TLL’E) 000 (00'sZT'TLLE) oTLZL 0L
%01 1S (00°T0%'%) 00'0 00'665'Y 000 (0a'000's) 00'0 (00"000'6) Juswdinby uopepodsues) 624
%9588  (Zv°02L'S) TE$Z0°0T LTSSE'PT L0 EV'T {00"000°0S) 000 (00°000°0S) ssbieyd BYI0 665
%Z0%  (OT'9bb'6) 12'S8€°L 69899 SO'E6E {00"00521) 00'0 (00°005'£T) sjelRiel puy sa)jddns a0 66%
%eB'Y9  {00°6£2°0L) 90'82Z'6E $6°'122'06 SR'9/LTE (00°6LL'66T) 000 (00°62£'66T) sued appA  ESE
%00°00T 00°C 08'065'2h 0Z'60v'T 0Z'60+'2 (00°000°S) 000 (00'000°5Y) sagqny puy sai)  0Sk
%IT19  {00°000'2) 20°£99'9 B6'TEED 747089 (00"000'81) 000 {00°000°81) sjueougm  £€b
%6.:92  (19'506'P5) 000 6€'¥60°0T 6800 (00°000°S£) 000 (00°000°5¢) auoseg  SZb
%z'88  (Z1°SH9) £9°8291 50°922°E 16°¢L1 (60°005'S} €00 (00°005'S) so|ddns abees  beb
%S69T  (£2°€TH'TTE) 000 £2'9¢5°€9 [ TA:T4 (00'000°s2€} €00 (00°000°S££) erd psaiq  CTb
%0009  (00°002) 00'00€ 000 000 (60'00S) 000 (0o 00s) SIS PEBNUC) B0 66E
%LS8E  (£9°9¢Tb) 000 L1'€09'T SZ'8TE {00'052'9) 0o’ (007052'9) ARy SSE
%00°0 {00"00€)} 000 000 000 (00" D0E) 000 (00°00¢) sy ISE
%1091  (00°8L1°CT) [so0] 00°22E"C 00'225 {00°005"+1) 000 (00°005°PT} S3JIAIBS JRUSQ puy |edpa  ObE
%0005  (00'000°v) LTHSTT [ 71744 £S°HED (00°000'8) 000 (00°000°8) HHUSA-S2IMBS seday puy soueuautey  BEE
%00°00T  00°0 +I'86bE 98'705°1 75'85k (00°000'5) 00’0 (00°000°5) 231A3s Apuney  62F
%0L'ES  (BST(ST'T) TLLEs 0L %05 09'96E (00°005'2) 000 {00°005°7) uopesunuwo)  £0E
%gL'ST  (68°668°00) 000 A wixard 12'SSET (oo se'82) oo'o {00°2E1'82) ey 1hodwy  ZTT
%00°0 {00°002°€) 000 00’0 00'0 (00 00z’s} 000 {00700Z'E) uoiiesuadwo) Juswdoidiaun  0TZ
%EE'9 (00"009"9) 000 00°0Sk 00051 (00 0s0’L} oc'e {00°050°4) aouelnsu] jquag 807
%EETE  (EH'TOT'HOE) 000 £5'€£5991 £T'655°EY (00'9£9°0€S) 00'0 (00°9£9'0€5) asueunsu] j@ipay 0T
%y9'61 (956421} 000 S0E [3 74 (00'5s5'1) 00'0 (00°555°T) Sueinsu] 3)n 90C
%BED'EZ  (T8'8TH'VLT) 000 61°¢61°2S 60°006°LT (00919'922) 000 (00°919'922) wawamay aers  $0T
%Iy (bbLTT°68) 00°0 95°58¢'8Z 0z'10Z'6 (oorg0s’£11) 000 (00°£05°21T) Andas jeos  10¢
0TLTL
ax3 Iouejeq s uRiquIndug  saJnppuadxy  Sssamypuadxy 3ab6png SjuaWpUaWyY junowly }a6png uondirsa@ JUNOIDY  JIquInp JUNCIDY
1¥6png pasaquniuaun  Gulpueisino 218-03}-1Ed5  I1Rq-03-FUOK papuawy 126png
%
. jooyas asoding |elauan IPT  pung
T Jo 1 abed +Z0Z 4990320
WV 1£:6 ¥202/02/1T Bwii/aeq pung Aq g0 Aq AlRwwng $24N31puadx3 JO JUIWDJELS 291 1Aq pajeal)
PIOIMELD BJARY 43S uonReINp3 o pieog AJuno) auaaln pauyag D91 :awep ejdwd]



%0T9T  (¥8'9E1'604) 000 ST'ETT'9ET 85°950'89 (oo 0s2'sy8) 00°0 (00°052'518) sspeal 911
%ET'9E  (OT'TIT'PI) 000 098508 0£°600'C (00705272} 000 {00°052'22) JopaNg/iosnadng SO
O0PEL
%bT'6z (PI'TZ5'SET’T)  EO'IL£0TY £8°7T6°50V 56"995'STT (00'SZS‘209‘T)  00°0 (00'S25°T09'1) 00EEL €301
%Lb'eSs  (3£°806°ZT) 65°£88'S SO8KY'ET {8S8L°T (00°0+8°9€) 000 (00"0¥8'9g) sabseyd Y0 665
%bZS  (9E°0FE) 00'0 08'76Z 000 (91°€€9) $8 8T (00°z59) JuawdopAsg JMS/ENMaS-UT  BTS
%SS'S0T  05°#Z6'1 p1'869°67 9£°9Z6'9 6£2HP'E (00002'pE) 000 (007002'vE) sjeudiey puy s9king Rwig  66b
%68z (89°6v6'€T) rHTE0°9 €9°€ET'E €6'ESk (S9'$12'EE) 00°0 (s9'p12'€E) saddns jeuoganisul 62
%00°060T 600002 9gLIb'T +1°285 00°0 000 00°0 000 saiddns pooy 224
%ES P (0£'995'6) 000 $1OTTE 90968 (b8'9/9'21) (ya81) (00'859'21) fnel  SSE
%00°060T 000 00°000°81 00'0 000 (00r000'81) 000 (00"000'81) sweynsuo)  8OE
%00'00T L7718 000 L2718 Y ar#4 000 000 00°0 uonez)iqels pugAH - wawauay  LTT
%00'00T  LOTBZ'Y 00'0 20182'Y 91°Z1Z'T 0o 000 000 aledipai JRkodwy  ZTE
%00'00T DO'ETT 000 00°ETT 000 000 000 000 aoueansy] jewag 80¢
%9b'E (€££'850°0b8) 000 Z1°6L0°0€ p1°£00'6 (sgrLeT'0s8) 00°0 {58 2e1'0£8) asueunsu] [eapaW  £02
%00'00T  ES°ZT 000 €5el 92'9 000 00°0 000 adueinsur 3y 90T
%00°00T  69°€ETL'TZ 000 69'€T1L'1T LE7E05°9 000 000 00°0 wewamay Iy@s  H0T
%00°00T  6Z"SOE'ST 00’0 67°SDE‘ST LT1'E8T'S 00'0 000 000 Aunoag epos  10¢
%8¥05  (50'062'S62) 00'0 SH'ZEO'TOE 90°6/9'68 (05'22£/965) co'o (05'22£°96S) sabem R saliejes aylo 681
%0000 6£70TL'Z 00'0 6L'0T2°T 64 vLE 000 000 000 |2uuosiad [eusp 9T
00€EEL
46202 (99'T0L'T6) 00°0 $S LTV 26'T6L'9 {00'0£6’91T) 00°0 (00°0£6'9TT) 0I8TL J2I0L
%6181 (£67958) 000 1061 1208 {00°Ly0'1} 00'0 (00°2p0'T) aseoipap ;RAodwy 212
018ZL
ax3 aJuejeg saoueIqUNDUI  SIsnjipuadxy sainmyipuadxg 36png sjuswpuawy junowy }abpng uondidsag unoxdy  JSquINY JUNCIIY
wipng pasaqunousuny  Sujpuelsang 3jeq-0j-Jea) 9eq-ol-tRuopw papuawy 3abpng
0 Y

[ooyds asoding [eiauan IPT : pung

1 4o €T abeg 207 439010
WY TE6 +Z0Z/0T/T1 swny/ageq pund Aq GO Aq Alewwng S3ANJIpU3dX3 JO JUIWEIS 91 :Aq pajeass
promen] eiaey 98 uopReINp3 Jo pieog Ajuno) aualsn pauyaq o1 :Rwep Aejdwa)



%68 b7  (£9'9T0°£1T'8Y) OE'6SS'ESL €5°949'T6T'ST 69°'SLS'6TT’S (05295'290'v9) (05'Z98'T6) (00°00£'696°€9) THT :pung Jog jE301
cw68'vz  (£9°9T0°LTT'8Y) OC'658’ESL €$'9L9°'T6T'5T 69'S/5'6TT'S (05'295290'¥9)  (0S'T98°T6) (00'00£'696°€9) =01
%68'bZ (£99Z0°LIT'8r) OE'6S8'ESL €5'9£9T6T'ST 69'SLS'6TZ’S (05'T95'T90'¥9)  (05°T98°T6) (00'00£°696°€9) lejoL
%000 (00°000°S) 00°0 00'0 00°0 (00°'000°s) 00'0 (00°000'S) 0019Z =101
%0070 (007000'S) 000 000 000 (c0000's) 00°0 (00°000'S) spapl  POE

0019ZL
%28'6T (SS'9V0'8TT'T)  SH'OST 00'9¥6°00E 8T°ZSB'6TT (00°EvT‘615'T) 000 (00'€p1'61S'T) DOPEL (2301
%00°00T EH'EE6'T Sb°0ST B6'TBL'T +9°0t6 000 00°0 000 sanddns jeuodrisu] 62
%SL'67  (CFYTLEIT) 000 81°€S1'8b 80'1S0°9T (00°828'191} 00'0 (00°828°'191) sapuaby J(|and 13410 Ym speaucd  OTE
%1961  (#£436) 000 9T'SET £9°411 (00°002'T) 600 (000071} woneziyqels pughy - wewamy  LTE
%S8'ST  (Z0'66'TT) 000 86'057°Z 82°550°T (o0"00Z'b1) 000 (00 00Z'p1} Queoipap PAopdws  ZTe
%00°0 {00 0b8) 00°0 aoe 00°0 {00°0v8) 00 (00°0v8) vonesuadwo) juswAoidumuny 012
%00°0 (00°00+°€) 00°0 000 000 (oo 0o%'t) 000 (00°004'E) soueinsu |ejuaq 807
%056z (ZI'TIEbbT) 000 §8°88E09 15'9Z8'€T (00°002'$02) 000 {00°00£ '#02) uelnsu [e1p3y  L0T
%os'6r  (¢6°£T2) 00'0 £0°£6 60'€T (00'STE) 000 (o0 sze) saueinsur N 90T
%EGET  (T0°0BS'EL) 0o'0 86°606'TT b€ 108'S (00'005's8) 00°0 (00°005'58) wswamnay ;s YT
%88°ST  (90°626'0S) 00'0 b6'b79'6 Lb'PIS'Y (00°009°09) 000 (D0 009°09) Awniag lepos  T0Z
%95¢T  (0zZ2l'Y) 000 08'/L8 08'SHE (00"000's) 000 (00"000’S) SJayea| AMISQNS payia-uoN 86T
%66'p (z9r0sL'y) 000 8E'6VC §L°66 (00°000°S) 00'0 (00°000'S) SIBYIES) NSNS payny  S6T
%G5 8T (LE'9/4'88) 000 £9°€7Z'07 £6bIe'L {00°000°60T) 006 (00°000'60T) suesissy jeuonesnpy €91
00¥EL
ax3z ajuejeg ssoueiqumug  sainypuadxy  sainjipuadxy 1°6png sjuUSwWpUaWy junowy 326png uodDsSaQ JUN022Y  JIQUUNN JUNOIIY
Wwbpng passqumuaup  Guipuesing 32g~03-Jeax  eQ-01-YIUoK popuawWwy =6png
10 %

looyas asodind jerRuan T . pund

T 40 pT abeg $Z0Z 200330
WY T€:6 b202/02/T1 1wl /e3eq pund Aq [q0 Aq Asewwns s3injipuadx3 jo Juawajels 291 tAq pajeasd
plopmes) ejhey BET uonednp3 jo pieog Ajuna) ausaun pauyaqg D91 cewepN ejdwa)



spoloy [213p34 OYPS  TET S[EI0L pung

PIoMer) BARY B0

co_wuo.nvm 30 pagog Ajunod suaasn

000
(zs'L19°6v2'0T) SaduRIeg PUd PUR ‘S93IN0SY IO SMOJUT PALS)IQ ‘SANIIQENT |0l
(€9'100°EY8) sopnby WOl
(00°£¥0°025) uoneanp3 104 pataLnsy 1bpng 5SSYE
68'1£6°68 LOREDNP3 Jod PaDLNSSY SSSbE
B2 bbb OE Jeaj JoUd - SauRIqUINIUT (4149
(ST TEE'EVS} 1EBA JBUNY - SARWNOUT 14473
(68°ST9°906°6) saqgigen  jmoL
(28'950°840'7) (nua)) sanusaay 00582
(E1'SBL'2E8'L) {psuon) suoneudo.ddy 00182
000 PoIY [<J3¢4
000 Ayunuuy duea »eETZ
000 SUDIPNPI( UOIUN IP3L 08E12Z
000 Aigesiq ajgesn 0LETZ
200 pewsn| 99¢12Z
000 WNoY sbues Y3y S9ETZ
000 SS3UN [EDGUD Hges YOETT
600 WPOT/IN 34gesn [ 14
000 3417 10A Sqensn 19€TZ
000 591A37 Puy SIUBLIYSILIES D9E12
000 . 31 SsLLRY BASSIULD | SSETT
000 BuE) AAqes() €SET2
000 Su 3 Uuely DRI0H [473 14
00’0 imuag uoedud TSETZ
000 spjpuag dwo) 08€1Z
000 APV J|qesn 9IPETZ
00°0ZF 25V - Buipuads xayg - eteq YIRS SHETZ
000 SU[ S53LPE3] |eudneN PPETT
0T6l 3y aigesn (2374
(00'v5T'1) Sup S3YIe3| 03 19 TPETZ
(6¢'6) 1IGRS PUGAH UGy [<3374
000 IS9M 1249 AT0% 1€€12
WL SUORNQLAUOT JUILIBIGSY DEETZ
000 usIINPAQ 31eNP3IN aAoKdw [Y4n ¢4
000 xe) Andag jenos 0ZETZ
00°0 PlRCUR PUY PIRULIM XEL SLOU] 0TETT
(19'92£'€T) a|geseqy SJUNOITY 00112
TSLT9°6¥2'01 SI0UNOSDY JO SMOAND PALISSAG PUR YISV |EI0L
T5'L19'60L 0T SSSY 0L
£5'7ST 3u3 S1, J0Ud 104 dARSIY o) P dx3 00991
T8'E6L°L19°C (1louoD) Jeax Wwalng - saumipuadxy 0051
STTECEW (l0.uoD} sesuesqunaul payepinbiun 00Z¥T
£1°ZE8'TS1E SNUBARY ptewls3 001pT
000 Spund JAN0 wold ang OpbIT
SE'HOE SIUBWIUIRKAQD JBYID wWol4 3nQ oEvIT
(£8'4H5'299) 33SAUL LA YSED OFITT
(z£152'0) Aueg uJ ysed [i1244¢
acuejeq Guipuz uordusseq wnesy JequInNIunodY
spaloid [e13pa4 (0OLPS T¥T pund
} 40 | aBeg #T0T 199020
WY 50:6 $202/02/1T 3wt /a3eq PAS pazurunggy :Aq pRERL)

193y acuejeg pauysq D97 eHueN deidwe)



§8°£88'ST9°T

(BE"S8Z'9SE) %9T'ST L0'66LVOT’9 (z8'90£°Z50°T) 68'S0S'LST'S v0'819'TES’9 oL
9L'EL9'Y

(00'059%) %6b'66 LTA x4 (00'089) 9L'EL9'Y 000 PY ued 3MDS3Y uedLBWY OvLY 00
£0°Z62'80L

000 %bb EE Q9 vIb'66L"T (€b"8£8°€06) £O'E62'€0L°T 00'966'466'T 1Y ue|d 3n353Y uesHBWY 0Lt 6
£2°507'65

(69'0£8'£1) %802 0Z'1£7'66C (6£7v65'9L) 66'598'SLE 9/'09L'91€ 40id Jamoyuasiy 681/b 1174
051659

000 %00+ 88°01H'¢02 (6£7€9£°€€) PR 74 B i24 L1'€8E'SLT uanesnp3 jedny SYILb 60S
££°T0S'ES

000 %¥3°C 8£'889°09 (¥0'SH9°T) T'EEET9 69'T€88 uonisinboy abenbue ysibu3 1LY {3
65°98€°LS

00°0 %69°E 10°158'%0T (85°810"%) 65°698'801 00°€84°TS (00Y253.g UoreInp3 [eidads SHILb 016
SS'ET6'EVT

(90" 1H1°€ST) %0T'6T 91'1H0'789'T (6£°T10'268) §5°250'6£0°7 00°6£1'5£8'T 0] sjuess) - uoneInp3 |edads EbILY 006
00°025'T

000 %00'0 00°0Z5'T 000 00°025°1 00°0 0] s)uel9 - uoieanpg [enads EvTLY 68
¥Z'96

000 %00°0 TE°90b'6Z 00'0 1679062 £0°01€'62 3np3 2207 04 SjuetD T AL (2722 011
TTT09'8LY

(b 15€°£ST) %S0T 95'$EL'869°T (2e-098°L€5) 88'¥65'96C' 99'266'£08'T anp3 307 0L SIURuD T SpL 2944 00T
00°000'E

000 %861 E1°BIT'EET (¢8'1£8°28) 00°000'991 00°000°€91 3np3 2307 0L Sues T SPIL Wiy 010
00'0

(61 eLz'cd) %590t 80'692°88 (19°25+'09) 69'122'8v1 69'12L'8kT Siseq - INp3 [BUOHRICA [§4 927 008
000

00°0 196png oN 000 00°0 000 000 SpuUnY SNO3UEHIISIY LT €6
000

000 196png on 00°0 00'0 000 00'0 SpUNYY SNOSUE|[AISIW 0LTHY 010

anuaAay Juadin) panjeay pazijeaiun pazieay QLA pajewpsy 2301 sjuawpuduy uondinsaq wnody 19

% /353 |euibuQ
s3lo1d |esapay jooyds TPT :pund

2 40 T obeg +Z0Z 1290320 pajie=Q

WY £0:6 $202/02/11 RBwiL/aeq Pal1E3aQ SANUBASY JO JUBWAlE]S 1USWaRIS INUIHBY :Aq pajeas)

plogme.) eiiey Rsn uoneonp3 Jo pieog AN0) UdAID paulag 397 sswep ajejdwa]



§8°L88'SZ9'T

(8E"5829SE) %9T°ST L0'66L'P0T’9 (z890£°2S0°T) 68'S0S’LST'8 $0°'819'T£S'9 TPT  pund Jod |e3oL
INuaAIY JUSLIND pazie’y paz)easufn paz||eay A4A pejewnsy (&0L SsuBWpURWY uondussag uncy 19
% /353 [euibLO
spalaud |esepad jooyds TYT G pung
2 40 2 abeq ¥20z 49900 pafeeq
WV £0:6 bZ02/02/TT 2wl /sl Pa{IeIaQ SSNUDADY JO JUBWRNRS UBWSIRIS ANUIABY :Aq pa3easd
pliomEr) BlAR)Y HEL)) uoneaInp3 jo pieog Ajunoy susan9 pauyaq 197 oweN ejdwdL



%89'6z (08628} 000 0Z'6€% 429 {00'69v) 00°0 (00°69%) sauemsur 3y 907
%81z (60°006'09) 000 16'H0'( 1T 0£°419'9 (00°sv6'2L) 000 {00°S¥6°LL) wouRmRy As b2
%8Z°¢1  (07'€0Z'pS) 000 08°9Z€'TT 0£°¢2Sy (00'0€5'59) 000 (00°0ES'S%) Aunos epos  T0Z
%I0bT  (0b'89€°0T) 00'0 01'689'1 01529 (05'£5021) 00'0 {05°£50'21) sI12Le3) MRS paynd-uoN 861
%89 (/8'602'S) 00'0 £0°962 000 (06'595") 800 (06°59%'S) siupea) ymnsgns paye)  S6T
%zl (06°ST6°0ZT) 000 Q114482 CYELE'PT (00'£89'6V1) oo (00 289°6HT) sibojoaed yosads 141
%6ETZ  (06'¥58'bED) 000 02 L0£"BIT 05'068'0b {01°291°€55) (55€16'cH2) (55-8¥Z'60¢) suemsissy jeuoneanpy €97
%9Z's1  (91'996°C2ZT} 00°0 PEHIT'OY r'280°0T {00°1£1'€92) 000 (00°TET'€92) s;aypes]  9T1
weisboid uonednp3 jeasds DOTTL
%8b'LE  (96°TRE'ESY'T) BLTET'VIX 19'88€'S8L 64'SLOTTE (seeov'e69'z)  (£5°0£5°TSB) (8£°T68'0¥8'T) weibaid vondnnsul senbay  DOTTZ 18308
%¢6's8  (ZUEp8'es) LTUSTLT 19 881 T€°00£°181 (09'192'61%) (09°192°08¢) (00°000°6€) wawdinb3 uopanasug Jenbay 224
%eL'6.  (26'STT'E) 00'0 SL8SE'TT 000 (9'v20'sT) (£9v20'y) (00"000°TT) sieien puy saiddng B0 56
%9068 (£0°980'Lb) $£°100'72 ZT090'vbT 00'19£'52 (o0r8r1's1€) (00'8pTSZT) (o0"c00’e6T) siemyos  TLv
%OEVE  (99°9504'592) 9£'812'82 9£'ZIE 0TI 9°09£'81 (¢4 266"c00) (30°064'¢82) (1L evp'otT) s9ddns jeuonanasul - 62t
%000 (1€'90¥'62) 000 000 000 (1£°90+'62) (b2'960°T) (£0°01£°87) S3IAIBG PIPRNUE) N0 66E
%0070 (00°000'+) 000 000 000 (00°000°p) 000 (00°000'%) PAYILa)-UON - SIPIL QNS 104 SPAU)  OLE
%000 (00°000%9) 000 oo 00’0 (00°000'9) oo (000009} PaYII3) - S13e3| gns tod spawd  69E
%EYT  (€£'96€£'9T) 000 (e’ §5L66 (00'005'81) (00'00Z°2) (00°00£'97) auedipaly Jokoldw3  TTC
%00°001 000 00'¢ 00°00£°T €00 (00001} 000 (00°004T) uopesusdwo) Juswiiojdwaun 012
%289 (00°0506'2) 000 00°057 co'0 (00002°2) 00°002 (000047 Souednsu] jewag  BOC
%897 (26'622°GET) 000 ' 0LLT5 80'62L'21 (00°000°¢81) 000 (00°D00"£81) aoueunsut jepa L0
%ED'8Z  (¥T°69T) 000 98'59 SELT {00'5€2) 000 (00'5€7} uemsuryn 90¢
%ee 1T (EL°€TT'2L) 0c0 (reLL's 6€'T9L'y (00°000'Z8) {00°000°6) {(00°000'€2) wawainsy e P
%ESTT  (96p69'€9) 00’0 $0'S0E'8 £'S60°Y (00'000°'22) {00°005'%) (00°005'£9) Awmss jenos 10
%00°00T S9°6ET 00'0 G9'6ET SS9 000 00°0 000 SI19UPR3L IIMPSGNS payad-uoN 86T
%0000T  ST'EL 000 ST'EL STEL 00’0 000 000 siaupea) anisqns paymsy  S6T
%9Z'T (00°060°'12) 000 00°016 05261 (00°000°2L) (00°000'22) 000 sabem, g sauejes gy 68T
%0eZl  (£6'851°0L) 000 £0'THR'6 85°66b"p {00"000°08) {007000°6E) {00°000'TH) sjueisissy |evonesnpy €91
%08 bl (83'€ZZ'6€8) 00°0 2€°9LL'SHT ' 1p8'69 (00°000°586) 00°000°2Z {00°000°¢50T) siaypeal 911
weibolg uoidrujsug Jenbay  QOTTL
ax3 ajuejeg sadsuesquinouy  sadnjipuadxy  sasnjipuadxy 1e6png SUAWIpUSWY  junowy }ab6png uoiydiasaqg JUN0IIY  JaqLUNYN JUNOIIY
19bpng pasagqumdusun  buipueisng ajeq-0)-1ea)  93eq-ol-IuoK papuawy 326png
4O %

spafold [e1epad [o0YdS vt pund

v Jo 1 abeq #20Z 1290170
WY 90:6 ¥202/0Z/11 P /aeq pungj Aq {qo Aq Alesuwng SaINPUSAX JO JUWIILIS 291 tAq pajeal)
pJojmen) ejAey 19s) uo}ednp3 Jo pieog AJuno) AudD pauyag 297 :awepy Aejdwa]



%00'00T 000 000 00°001 000 (00'001) 000 (00'001) uonesuadwo? uswhodwsun  0TZ
%000 (00'0ST1) 000 00'0 Q0’0 {00°0sT) 000 {00'osT) duensu] |ewsq  80¢
%6227 (09°LSE'ST) 000 02’6156 08'999'T {0g°9:8'vE) (089£'p1) {00°005'02) adueinsu fexpa L0,
%21tz (0852} 000 09’6 0Z'1 (ov's€) (ov02) {oo'sT)} saueinsuf 3y 902
%EPY (¥6'525'ET) 000 0 tes SEETE (F9'gsTpT) (r9ess'e) {00"00b's) owamay s #0Z
%Ikt (1E'666'11) 00'0 68'ES5 ¥6'942 (ozess'zn) (oz'esp’s) (00°001°5) Aunxes ewos 10T
%000 (00°005'22) 00°0 000 000 (00'005'22) 000 (00'005'22) sabem g saueles 20 681
%55 (99'0£2'891} 000 pE'698'6 L9'bE6" {00'00T BLT) (00'009'611) {00'00S'8S) PuuosRd Jueping €71
poddng wapms 84310  0ETTL
%000 (TT'TE€8'90T) oo 00'0 00'0 {ZT 7E8'90T) (zz'1£8’90T) 00°0 SIARS YHROH  0ZTZL 1eI0L
%000 (+6'081°'T) 00°0 000 00'0 {6'081°1} (b6'081'T) 00'0 uepay plodwy  ZTC
%000 ov12'01) 000 000 000 (+9'p12°01) (y9'vr2’0T) 00'0 asueinsuf [e3pal  L0Z
%000 (00'8T) 000 000 000 (o0'81) (o083} 000 aoueinsul 3y 907
%000 (98'c26'8) 000 00°0 000 (98'€26'8} (98€z6'a) 000 wewsiny NS H0Z
%00'0 (vS'610°S) 000 000 000 (¥5'610'5) (b5°650'S} 00'0 Aunes jepos 102
%00'0 (b rob'18) 000 00'0 600 T rPP'18) (bT b 18) 00'0 [puuosRd feapal  TET
SIVIAIDS YIjeoH 02TZL
%eg vy (69°610°€9) 00°09’T 00TIS'BY 00°Z6T'E {69°3ZT»TT) 00'0 {69°1ZZ'vTT) weiboid UOREINPI [EUONEI0A  ODETL JB30L
%000 (b2 b66°LT) 00'0 00'0 600 (b v66'L2) 00'0 (b ¥66'£2) juswdinbg uendnnsul jeuopesop  0CL
%E9'9€  (00°8v6'8T) 00°0¥9'T 0021’6 00°Z61°¢ (00" 006°62) 000 (00'006°62) sieuMely puy s3yddns sapo 660
%97, (66°9£0'9T) 000 00°0SZ'0r 000 {56'92£°95) 000 (56'9Z£'9S) alemyos 1/
wesBoid uonednpy [RUCNEICA OOETL
%S9'8T (TT'TBT'V6E'T) 66'SE 6T E6¥'61E €8'1S9'SCT {6 1TL'€TL’T) (PT'OOE'TOE) (SETTY'TIP'T) weibosd U0REINPT |ed3dS OOTTL ¥IOL
%000 (65 1ZH'ST) 00°0 00°0 00°0 T (6sTEHSY) (65'10€'€) (00°0Z1°ZT) JuaWdinbl uonednp] [eads  STL
%90 (14°£56'6) 66'GE 000 000 (0b'£66'6) 000 (0b'£66'6) s|euely puy SdAnG B0 66
%00°0 (00°050°7) 000 000 000 (o0050'D) 000 (00°050°2) sayddng evomdnosuy  62b
%00°0 (00°057) 000 000 000 (00'052) 000 {00'0sz) SIIIBSS PIPRIUOD YD 66E
%BEEYB  (£L4'99L°7) 000 £5°E88'FT TUPETHT (00°059°2T) (00"000"%} (00 0SS'ET) Jdinb3-sa3wuss Jleday puy asuzusiue  9EE
%0L'T (0z'828'SH) 000 08°95Z'v 00'8+0'T (00'580'052) (00°580°0S) {00°000°002) sopuaby 3jead YIM spesuod  CTE
%8TLl  (B6'8L9°CT) 000 Z0°6¥9'C 18'850'T {00°8ZE'SY) 00°0 (00'8ze'st) uepay Lpodwa  TTT
%9T'T (9e'802'1) 000 $9°9Z 000 (00'5£T°1} 08’0 (00°SE2'T) uonjesuadwo) wawAodwauny  OTT
%LT'9 (00°095°F) 000 00°00€ 00'0ST (00°098"} 00°0 (00c98'v} svensuf pwag 802
5%85'67  (88°TTL'68T) Q00 TUBLY'6L 8T'L9T'1T (00° 16£'692) 000 (00°'16£'692) ueunsur P3N L0T
weiboig uoneanpy jepads  00ZTL
ax3y Jduejeg saduRIqUINIUT  SasMipuddxd  saumypuadx3y 326png SJUAWIpUDINY  Junowy Jabpng uondidsaq JUN0JDY  SPGWNN JURCIIY
«w”ﬂ\:n pasaqumouaun bBupuersino 2jeq-03-1e3aA  9JeQ-0I-YIOW papusury yobpng
(-]

syaloud (e13pad [0oYdS YT puny

¥ 40 7 abey $20Z 4290350
WV 90’6 bZ0Z/02/11 Bu) /33eq PUny Aq [q0 AqQ AlRWIWUNS SIIMPUIAXT JO JWAWANRIS 291 :Aq pajeasd
plojmes) ejAey SN uonednpy Jo pieog AJuno) 2ud3ln pauyaq Ho1 awepn ejdun)]



%G2'0C  (£6££9°LT) 00’0 W'6LhE T2'S8L'T (ep'¢1T'e2) EFBPT) (00'696'12} wwagay R|s  H0T
%9641 (STL9%T) 000 YO'EET'E 62'SLET (66°000°87) 66'8L) (00'zee'L) Aqunas [epos 10T
%28'9T  (85°666'04) 000 95°2SE"vT B9'91Z'9 (11°z5€'sB) G (00'820'v8) sabem g saueles 20 68T
%oe'6c  (09°8vE'8e) 000 0b'0SL'TT D9°LE6T (00'660°0%) 00 (00°660"0%) (s)eppss 19T
%8S LT (P6TLB'SET) 000 90°746'87 £0°98%p1 (00'++8'p91) 300 (00" p#R'b9T) jBuuosRd 1eoipay  TET
weiboid uoneodnpy [ePRds  0ZZZL
%IL 0T (88965°0¥9) §5°SSE'S 0L'TLE'TIT 90'Z0T’oy (£1°s26°208) (957095°69¢) (£5°¥9£'8ES) weiboid uonpniisul JenGay  01ZZL 1801
%0070 (00°005°7) 00°0 000 00°0 (00'005'2) {00°00%) (00'000°2) wawdinby ;0 062
%00°0 {(00°008'1} 00°0 000 00°0 (00'008°1) 100°008°T) 000 uswdinb3 uonesadp weld 022
%00°0 (80'620°82T) 000 00'0 00°0 (80°620'84T) brZ58°0LT) {¥9'9£1°2) sbiey) 2y10 665
%e8' 0t (p5'6£6'59) T6'11S°T [4aa:: 9k £S'T0E6 (89°E££'56) {15°06€°22) (£1°€86'£9) swdofaaeQ yas/eamias-ul - bZS
%0T'LE  (667¢ETI'ET) £9'ELR'E LE'906'E 00°002°€ (66'¢88°02) {eTc92'6) (9r7079'11) sleusjel puy salddns 8YI0  66¢
%9001  {(0€°¢+0'%) 000 05 01'251 (00"00s'%) {00°005) (007000'%) PaeiL 5SE
%0S'EC  (69°915'p) 000 1£°¢BE" [47:14 (ov'v06'S) 0¥ ¢9¢} (00°2£1°5) 2mipap BAodwy - TTT
%000 (00°062) 000 000 000 (oo 062} 00 (00°062) uonesuadwa?y uawiodusun 012
%005z (00°05¥) 000 00051 000 (00°009) 00’0 (00°009) aoueunsu] eeq  80C
%%$9'1€  (69'8£6'9E) 000 1eTer's ZEPOLE (00"001'¥5) Do'0 (00°00145) Suednsul jeaipel L0
%Z5'EE  (bTEE) 00°0 9L'91 6% (00°05) 000 (00°05) uemsu] yn 90T
%ze'er  (6E7161'€2) 00°0 61°250'2 65°¥SH'T (8s°¢pZ'0€) (85°+80°5) (o0es1'52) wawaugey e POT
wiZbz  {ZLTIS'BT) 00°0 89°€€6'S L9'S12'T (ov'orb've) [ov'861°€) (o0'B¥2'12) Aunoas epos 102
%8e€z  (09°1€0°68) 000 0¥'89T°£2 000 (00°002°911) (00°002°0S) {00"000°99) sabep g sauejes 2o 681
%9577 (00°Cee'9zT) 000 00°082'9€ 0009221 (00°000°€9T) D00 {00 000°£97) saydeo) jeuonnasul  TLT
%p02  (02'566'92) 000 08'+00°01 0Z'105°C (00°000°¢£} 000 (00°000"€) (s)uejanes 191
%HOEE  (HHEBE'SE) (o)) 95'9TT've »1'620'9 (oorgo0’eL) 000 {00'000°€2) lopang/osinedns - SOT
wesboig vononajsur seinbay  0TZZL
%T6'ST  (£07TTS'T6T) TLPT6'ET ZT66Z'TY ¥1°609'9T (xr6'stL'ovE) (16'09Z'€97) (00°59v°€8T) Hoddns JUapMIS RIROD  0fTZZ 1RI0L
%EV'T (o0'008°c1) 000 00°00Z 000 {00°000°FT) 00’0 (D0"C00'PT) ssbieyy B0 66S
%6876  (65'888) 00'007 WIT'TT 0T €40 (p0°005'Z1) 000 (00°005°21) JuawdoRrlaq yeisfaomas-ur  bIS
%9zZy  (Z1°¢£€°0E) TLPILET 87'58v'8 Ay 43 (¢1°2£5'25) {z1°2£5%T1) (00°000°2k) sjeLey puy sayddns Pyl0  66F
%000 (c0°008) 000 00°0 000 {00"008) {c0-008) 000 SIDIAIBS PALRIILOTY PYID  66E
%IT9C  (¥8'90T'T) 000 91'E6E ¥TSLZ (00°005'1) 000 (00°00S°1) Paely  SGE
Yoty {91°062°2) 00°0 b§'62T LL%9 (0£616'0) [02°612'D) (00°002'T) a;eapap Bhoidwz  TTT
poddng Juspmis 1SYI0 OETZL
dx3 aduejeg souRiqunzug  Saunjpuadxy  sasmpuadxy Ja6png SuMLPpUAMY  Junowy Pbpng wondidsag JuNooy  JAQUINN JUNOIDY
uwnﬂwem pasaqunduduny  Buipueising 21eQg-0)-J83)  21eg-03-YIuoK papudwy wbpng

sy32(0.4 |e12pad Jooyds YT :pund

¥ J0 £ 3bed $T0T 43qCP0
WY 90:6 $20Z/0Z/TT P /a3eq pund Aq [0 Aq AJelwns s34n3ipuadxy JO JUSAIRIS 91 :Aq pajeasd
PIOMED) BlARY 1asn uopedNp3 Jo pieoq AJUN0D) SUIAIG pauyag D9 :swep ajejdwa)l



%IL Ty (£0°¢z8'89s'y)  STTEE'EV9 19'00£°679°C S6°TZO'TPS {68'8s5v'¢c8’e)  (s3'zam'szo’t)  (#O°TLS'1TZ'9) (443 ipung 403 [e30)
%ILTH (€0°(TB'89SY)  ST'TEE'EPY 19'00€'679'T S6'TTOTYS (68'8SP'LEB'C}  (sBe8e’szo’T)  (vOTZ5'11Z’9) 20y
Wity (€0°ZZR'RIS'Y)  STTEE'EVY 19'00£°SZ9T S6°TTO'ZVS (6B'8S¥'ZE8Z)  (sme88'sz9’t)  ($#0°TLS°1TTY9) oL
%000 (95 LvL'0s) 00'0 00'0 00’0 (95°£¥£°0%) (95 ¢¥2'0T) (00°005°0E) g sa3ysuell  00T66 I=OL
%000 (95'2b2°'05) 000 00'0 000 (95" £b£°05) {95°¢p2'02) (00"00s°0€) 180D paspul  H0S

INQ ss\jsuel] 00166
%06'T0T 09°T0T'v¥ T L90°L6E ST LEL'ELT'T 0070 (69'109°025'T}  IT'EOP'68 (00°500°'919'1) Aepng jede) seinbay  00T9L 12101
%0501 00°89T'bY Sb'865'9bE 06°620'p8¢ 000 (9€°09€'980°T) (oc882'821) (00°2£0'856) juawdinb3 uonesad Jueld  0TL
%66'66  (0b'S) 52°89v°0S 8E°20L'68€ 00°C (€5 15T'0b) Lr169°L1T (00°€£6'259) uopansua) buiping 904
Aepang [eyde) 4enédy 00192
%000 {(00°00S°Z) 00'0 00'0 00°0 (00"00s’¢) o0 (00°005°2) uopeyodsues)  0TLZL €301
%00'0 (00°000°S) 00'0 000 000 (00"000°s) 006 (00"000's}) ssbseyd s3I0 665
%00°0 (00°005'2) 00°0 000 00°0 (007005°2) 000 (007005'2) SIBUMQ SPIPA AW Sizenuo)  STE
uoneyodsuesl 0TZTL
%99'0T {(T9'ELSE) 00'0 8E'9TY t+v'88 (00"000"y) 00'0 (00-000’v) weifosd uoneInpy JeUOREIOA  DETTZL (€A0L
%96t (b1'119'2) 000 98'88E bo88 (00°000'€) 000 (06'000°E) uswdojaAag yersfaamias-ul  bES
%SLE (85°296) goa TS'LE 000 (00'000'1) 00°0 (00"000°1) fones)  GSE
wesBoiqd uonednp] jeuonedon  OETZTL
%0E0T (TY'v8T'TLE) 00°SZYT ETITP'E6 69°86Z'FE (59'0EL'59%) (00'0ZS'T) (s9'0TZ'PoP) weiboiqd uonednp3 |eRads  OZTTL 190l
%00°0 (00°002'1) 000 000 000 (0000Z'1) 00¢ (00'00Z'T) sobueyy BLRC 665
%ST°59  (98'88¢°T) 00°SZTT 6LBIT'T P6'ES'Y (59°2€1°) 000 (s9'zet's) wawdapA3q YEs/omes-ur  HZS
%00°0 (00°005) 000 000 000 (00008} 000 (0g-005) sieuAe puy sayddns B0 66
%000 (00°000°1) 000 000 000 (oo 000'1) 00°0 (00"000°1) SIMAIS PAPRNLOD N0 66E
%i67l  (58'996'9) 000 ST'EED'T ST'EEQ'T (00°000°8) 0070 (00°0008) PaelL  SSE
%000 (00-001) 00'0 00°0 000 (00°001) 000 (ocoot) sobiey) jeisod  8HE
%00°0 (oo-001) o0c 00°0 00’0 (00 00T) 00°0 (oo 001} 1dinb3-s331A195 Jleday puy jueudquiel  9EE
%EE'ST  (00°007'05) 000 00°008'6 000 (00°000'03)} 000 (60"006'09) SOUBbY a)eALd YUM spequod  ZTE
%S6'LT (B1'9SH'E) 000 62'95L 79°'T2€ W'y (evgr} (00'+6T'w) aienpap LAodu3  CT¢
%00°0 {00°LET) 000 000 000 (00°ZET) 000 (00°2€1) uonesusdwo] wawiodusuny  0T¢
%0b'8T  (00°599) 00'0 00'0S1 00'0ST (00°578) 000 (00518} duensul )quag 802
%I80E  (25°06E°L€E) 00°0 8b'6v9'9T LET9T'Y (00'0v0'yS) 000 (00"0v0"bS) ajuesnsu] [eipaly  L0T
%05 1€ (08'%5) 000 0Z'sT 0£'9 (00°08) 000 (0008} soueinsur 902
weiBbold uonEdNp3 jePsds  07ZZL
ax3y Jduejeq sSouelquindugz  s3umyipuadxy sainyipuadx3 ja6png sjPwpUawWwY jJunowy }abpng uo3diosag JUNOITY  J3GUINN JUNOIIY
uwnw.\.on pessqunousun  bBuipueising  9eq-03-iea)  3jeq-03-lRUOW papuswsy 196png

spafold [eiapad jooyds Tyt pund

b 40 ¥ 2beg #20Z 13qoR0
WV 90:6 $202/02/11 2wl fayeq pung Aq QO Aq AleWIWNS SAINJIPUIAX] JO JUILIIRS 2917 :Aq pa3eas
paoymes) ejiAey asNn uonRedNP3 Jo pieog AJUnoD Ul pauyaq D91 2wepN etdwa ]



00°0 euNaje) Raua)y (344 5oL pungd
(og'£9e'029°8) pund pue ‘s3a $0 SMOYU] PILR)3Q ‘SORHIGRN 1WAl
(ZT°8T9°E86°T) saginba |woL
00°000°00¢ 195 1SUJ-UON JO UDAEIRC( 404 PAILSSY 18bpng - OLSYEEPT
(++'08€°262°€) 195 JSUI-UON 4O ueResadQ 203 PaNSaY - -QLSHE-EbL
00°£68'£61 B34 JDI - STURIGUINOUT - OTIPE-ERT
(8L ¥¥1'bRT) JEDA, JUBUM) ~ STBIGWINIL] - -OTIPE-EMT
(80°s£2‘98%’S) saquiqen QoL
(s990¢"SLT'T) (tonuoD) sanuaaay - -00S8Z-E¥1
(00'60Z°22L'%) (10qucd) suoneudosddy - -0018Z-E1
000 |gueq wouedwo) - -TSETZ-EvT
000 31 3igesn < -THETZEPT
000 Suj 18R] 0J 19 < -THETZ-EHT
000 SUONNGLIUC) WALUAINY - -0EETZ-EVT
000 uorPNPaq a.eAPSlY 39AoKiwg - -STEIT-EHL
000 xe} Aunias |enos - -0ZETZ-EMT
£5°088 3|qedeq SNy - -0011Z-gbl
0cE9c’048’8 SSANOSNY JO SMOYING PILJ3() pUR SIaSSY  |=0)
0E°E9E'0LB’S 0Issy QoL
LL895'9pT'T (1loguoD) Jea), Waund - sumpuadxy - -DOSPE-EVT
8L ppT'PET (10000) SIURIQUINIUT pAIRPIIUN - -00ZPI-EHT
00°60Z°TL¥'¥ SONUDATY PIlewins3 = -00THU-EpT
000 SUSURLBACH B0 WA 3ng - -OEbTI-EpT
000 AGeARIDY SN - OIPTI-EbT
9£'0b2'996'T 399SNI1 YIM USRD = OpTTE-EpD
66'66T'T Hueg up used - DEITE-EPT
0oueieg UonduUOSaQ JUNCoTY Rquny junony
L) [EnUa) 913 pung
1 40 1 abeq $70Z JaqoPo punZ gns 1 puny
WY T7:6 p202/02/11 aunyfajeq punj-gng pus puny Aq 13aYs ourjeg 4Aq 138ys Sougieq Aq peyeas)

piopmery ejiey asn

UolIEINP3 4O pieoq AJUNOD FUID

pauyaq D97 PweN Rejdwa)



(9€'09£'86%) %$6'HT SE'Z08'9SE'E  {S9'90P'STT‘T}  00'602TLY'D 00'0 00°607'TLY'Y £¥T :pung Jog |30l
TOO Tab0 0 D00 000 000 000 000 SUIISNVHEL DNILVHI30 1VI0L 0006F
000 J20png ON 000 000 000 600 000 Siajsuel] bupelsug 0086%F
Tegaeviav) %Il 6L B0 ZPG PEEC |G C0D856) OO IIPE6L L 000 OGO TIFE6L L TNIWNU3A0D 1v83a3d V101l OO0Zb
\S6°¢556) %8¢ 0E 16290 vt B0 Z6L7%T) 00’098 8 [£1)] 000988 B0 - YAsh 3§ ¥4
(18'8p2'221) %8 EE 85 1Iv95 (T 09°2ET) 00°910°669 0a0 00'910°665 lsepjeasg [ ¥44
00°0 %000 00°22E°10E 00°0 00°22£°10¢€ 000 00'22£°10€ SalipowIliod yasn (48 ¥4 4
(90'pTE'SSE) %OL'TE 9T 1SL'TES'T b8 19%°112) 00°E1TbbT’T aco 00'E1ZHE'T YOUNT-pUOAIRS 11140
500 000 00 088 2C 000 00088 ZE ~000 GO OBB ¢t TI5SINNIL 30 J1VIS V101  0000F
000 %000 00°088°CE 000 007088°ZE 0C'0 00°088°Z¢ 22IAI3S pO0 [OOU2S 0255
e o1l bl vior TZE TPV 8P 2L 191 6P) DO 000 T 000 TOOO0 T — 3INNIAIY Vo0 T 93H10 V101 0D0FY
00’0 1=20png ON 000 00°0 000 000 000 SPUTLay ISHN [TAT
(S PEY'TT) %b1vi6b (LETHT'8Y) (LE' TP '6Y) 00'000'T 000 00°000°T pauJieg isalaul [)) 8544
B0O Vo8E & ZGOI5 ZE0'T (S YOPZUL) OO BIGPPL T U0 0 OUBIE 7PL T S3JIAUIS INIUEND 50d SIDUVAD TVIOL O0ULE
000 %8 L S0 126 89€ S5 THETE) D0 €9¢ 00F 000 00 €92 00% SIES SHED BTV GIath
000 %L0'E 55°Z6¥°TST (SH'1E8D) 00°62€2ST 000 00°62€°¢S1 1SEeag WOS BLoIUT £25€b
000 %Vb9°'1¢ LLTn'ss (8T°€15'87) 00°TH5°98 000 00°THS'S8 SHNpY-SiuswAed youm CI5EY
000 %1501 G2'690'6¢ (62'a1£°2S) 00'G8/°105 000 007582108 UaJp[Iy)-SjudwAed youni 1258
BNUARY JUBLIND pazijeasun pazieay dLA pajewnsy [e3ol sjuIWpUIY 353 jewibuQ
eualRseD [RNUSD) £bT : puny
140 T 3beg $Z0Z 43900 pund gns Aq
JUBLLSIS SNUADY
WY 60:6 $202/0Z/T1 1wy /areq pungj-qng Aq SNUIAIY JO JUIWAELS 91 :Aq paieald
plomer) ejAey| 19sN uoeanp3 jo pieog AJuno) SUIBIg pauyag o1 aweN Syedwa)



%86'6Z (SH'S6Y'IVE'E)  SLYPT'VET £L'895'9¥Z't 16'ES8'9LY (00'60z'zLL'Y) OO0 (00'60Z°ZLL'Y) EPT ipunyg JoJ [R3o)
%86'67 (SYS6Y'THE'E)  BLPPI'¥ET LL'895°9%T'T T6'ES8'9LY (0060z‘zLL'Y) o000 (00'602°2LL'Y) lelel
%86'6Z (SP'SEr'TYE'E)  SLYFI'VET £L895'9%T'T T6'ES8'9LY (oo60z'222'Y)}  00'0 (00'60Z°TLL'Y) LT
%86'6T (SPSEV'IVE'E)  BLYPIVEE LL°89S'9PL'T T6'€S8'9LY (oo's0T'TLL'YY 000 (00'60Z'TLL'Y) VAIIS pood  DOTEL (B30l
%05, (99°916°TET) £5'¢L6b'6ST LLOST'LET LT8b9'P1 (00°1£5'828) 000 (00°1£5'82S) Wwawdinbg axm2g pooy  GTL
%y6'b8  (SE'E06) 00°0€8 S9'99Z't 000 (00'000'9} 000 (000009} sabieyd o0 66S
%00°00T  bZ'T 000 [Z4 000 000 000 000 uoissuwo) saasniL 018
%L6'9s  (10°205'S) 98'059'T £1°059'S 00°26L' {00°862°2%) 00°0 (00°862°Z1) s|eusiel) puy saNddns J2yi0  66b
%00°0 (00°zze'10€) 000 00°0 000 (oo"zze'10E) 00°0 (00°zee'106) solypowwo?) - epsn 69k
%0000T  00'C 1061 65°608'Z 000 (00°000°€) 00D (00 000'c) seyddns a>y;0  SEb
%6167 (TZ'+65°058°7) 060 6£°016'656 SLSER b (00°s05'018'€} 00°0 (00°505°0T9’¢) SIAIIG POYRNUC) BRD  66E
%159 (89'vt6) 00'0 Z1'S9 68'TE (o0°000'T) 000 (060°000°'1} @aelL  GSE
%00°0 (00°000°S) 000 000 000 (00"000°%) 00°0 (00°000°S) swiuo4 puy Assuoness ‘bunuug  6HE
%000 {00'000') 000 000 000 (00°000°¢) 000 (00 000°¢) sebueyd Imsag  8PE
%6THIT  00°000°S $6'586°T7 90'$T0'ST 79'621°8 (00°000'sE} 000 (00°000°SE) 1dinb3-5351u3G Jleday puy dueudjuiel  9EE
%371 (b179/9°S) 00'0 99°€78 00°0 (00"005‘9) 00°0 (00°005'9) uonesunwwe)  Z0E
%0c6z  (bE'8ED) 000 99°TRI [sr4l 12 (00079} 00'0 (00°029) uipay RAojdug TT¢
%0070 (00°'0E) 000 000 000 (00-0£) 000 (00°0€) uonesuadwo) Jwawhoidwaun  0T2
%00'0 (00°051) 000 000 000 (00"0ST) 000 (00°0sT) asuensuf ([uag 80T
%00 1€ (C0'8bE'S) 000 00'258'C 00°€TL (00°002'6) 000 (00°00Z'6) aueinsul epay  £0Z
woo'ze  (0z'oT) 000 084 0zt (Do'sT) 000 (o0'sT) oueinsul 3y 90¢
W66 (bH'9ZH'E) 000 95'995°T $9°99¢ (ooe68'y) 000 (00°£68'p) wowamay aes 02
%28'67  (97°828T) 000 b 9L 26T (00°509'2) 00°0 (00'509°7) Andag epos 10
%667  (0ZTT'62) 00°0 08'835°21 0Z°2bT'E (00°000'21} 000 (00°000°2¢) |13uuosIag |eaRp 29T

001€L
ax3y asuejeg s3juesquinouy  saunypuadxy  ssumipuadxy yabpng SUIWpUIWY Junowy 136png uondidssg JUNOIJY  JIGUINRN JUN0DDY

@26png passqunoudun  Gulpuesino aQqeq-03-4e3  A}eq-03-Y3UuoK popudiuy 33bpng

3O %
euapse) [enua) EYT :pung
1 J0 1 abeg +Z0T 49G010

WY 21:6 ¥202/02/11 iswl/aeq pund Aq [0 Aq AJewWUNS SAUNFIPUSAXT JO JUIWIIIRYS 291 iAq payeasd
piogmens) ejdey uasn uonResnp3z jo piecg Ajuno) susaln pauyag 591 eweN aejduws)



00'0 x3loud pEyde) uonednpy [744 IR0 punyg
(6£°8S£’S19°07) Suejeg pung pur ‘SIJNOSIY JO SMOyu) Pauajaq ‘seRigel] jBoL
(E£€°6T6'86L°LT) sagmb3 )moL
17650°SH2'E1 paubisseun = = -0006E-LLY
{00'115'580°1) sasoding Ja0 04 PAPILISTY © =« -0BSKE-LLI
(08 1Z¥'¥S6'ET) 10 - sER(04d 1eade) Jog PRSI - A1 -G8SPE-LLY
(b2 b61°98E'9T) 1R3A I0Ud - SIIURIGWINIUT - s 0TIE-LLL
(00'198'STT) Je3A WALM) - SIDULIGWINUI - - QUTBELLT
(9v-6Z9'918°7) saqliiqert 1eL
{00°EbS'IE) s3xe) Apadold Wnbuwaq PILRRQ - - SMEETLLT
(00°8¥6'0£7°1) saxeL Apadold JUILIND PaLB)RQ - Op66C-LLE
(9¢'882'991) {1011u0)) s3nUaAY = = <00S8T-LLF
(00°0$9°£8E°T) (1onu07) suoneudoiddy - - -0019T-LLT
000 3|qeded Suncdxy = = Q0T1Z-LLT
6L 8SE'STS'0T SADINOSIY JO SMOLANE PALIJAQ pue N2SSY 2304
6£'85€'S19'0T Qassy |00)L
12'$59'598"1 U3 SIA J01d 104 3ARS3Y 0L POWD dx3 = -D09BI-LLT
LT'6TL'SL (10.0u0D) 1834 Ju3LN - SaUMpuadxy - 0OSLT-2LY
00'198'STT (1pnu03} sITURIqWINOUT pRYepinbiun < - 00ZkT-LLT
00°059'285°T SoNuURAY PIIBLLGS] = COTPI-LLT
(00°¢0£'5€} xe | Ayadoug 3jqEITay(CaUf) 104 3IURMOIRY < - DISTI-ZLT
00°05¢'Z0£'T Jqensdy saxeL ARdosd - = -00STI-LLT
000 2|qeAad3y S;UNODY = DIPTI-2LT
[+ 122°€06°ST 33051 YIM USED <= OPTTT-LLT
uejeg uondidsag Junody 12QUINN JUNONY
sdafold (Rde) voRENp3 L1 pund
I 40 T abeq $TOT 52900 pund qns g puny
pun4-qns pue pung Aq 193ys UMy Ag 193us aoueyeg Aq payeasd

Z(ﬁ“mvmowxow\:"u-c.n_.\nu-n
piomen epey 1IITN

uopesINp3 jo pieoyg AJunod FUIFNH

pauyag J97 eweN sleidumy



(ez'sv8'0ZT) %86'TT 00'0S9'Z8E'T 000 00'059°Z8E'T 12301
106 00p 11) V558 U8T TCC 601 OL) WL 60T BE) DO'000 0L VOO0 o000 0C . 3NN3A3Y 19007 B3A10 1vi0L  OUOF®
(06'00%'TT) %S8°081 (Zz'691°91) (ZZ'691°9€) 00°000°02 000 00°000'02 pawe3 sl OTIbb
TEE TSP art) EASK SLOESZELT  \PLBILDOEL) DOUS0 ZOE T 000 00050 ZOE T TIXVL VOO 1W10L  0000F
000 %000 00000 060 00000% 000 00'000°E. 3SD%3 yUed  0CE0F
000 %96°S ¥5°641°7 (9b'bs) 00°052'T 000 00°0S2°T JBLRO 53X JO NI Ul JuDLARY £910b
{00°206"¥2) %b8'STST (E¥'85T'vT) (e4'851°52) 00°000°T 000 00'000°T AN 18207 S9XE1 4O N3N ul JuawAed 910%y
(1€°2€) %b9'Th 947002 (bT6bT) 00°0S€E 00°0 00°0S€ WAL Saxel Jo nar ul sjudwAed 1910%
(£9°0t2'T) %Lt v bI0Y (85'58%°€) 00°005°Z 000 00°005°¢ Ajeuad B 159193] oF10b
(28'168) %T19'8S 19'268°C {€5°20T'y) 00°000°L 000 00°000°2 FiBD WMD) 0e10b
{52°0) %b'ST 62°LE [§ 49! 00°08 000 00'0s Adjdnuyueg uonos|jo) 333sruL SCI0b
(48486} Y%L8°8S 61°557'6 (I8'bbe'el} 00°005°CC 000 00700522 134 J0HJ-SUOIIRY|0D) 5,993SNLL 0Z10b
(8b168°E8) %EE9 28'80T°THC'T (8b'168°€8) 00°000°52€E’T 00’0 00°000°SCE'T xe] Auadolg JuaLnd 0T10b
anuoARY JUaLIND pozIesy pazyjesJun pozileay LA pojewps3jelo]l  SUAWpUIWY 153 [ewibug

il S)3lo.d {elde) uonednpy LLT T pund

T 40 1 obed 20T 9qoPO pung qns Aq

JUDBWBIELS DNUDARY
WV €1:6 b202/0Z/11 wiy fajeq PUNJ-gRS AQ SINUIADY JO JUWAEIS 291 :Aq pajeal)
ploymes)) eiaey HE )] UOREINPI JO pUeOg AJUNOD BUIIIY pauydg K91 dwep djejdwal



%ISET  (£8°650°96T'T) 00°'T98'STT LU6TL'SL LLSYE'T (00'0s9’29€’t) 000 (00°059°£8€'T) oy ipuny so4 |e30L
WwIg'sT (£87°650°06T'T)  00°T98'STT LY6TL'SL LLSYE'T (00°059°£8E‘T) 000 (00°059°¢8E'T) 120}
%ISEY (£8°6S0'96T'T) 00°T9B'STT LT'6TL'SL LL'SPE'S (00'059°28¢£'T)  00°0 (00"059°£8€E°T) e300
hHIFET (£8°650'961°Y)  DOT98'STT LV6TL'SL LLSYE'T (0g-0s9°¢8e‘T) 000 (00°059°£8€°'T) DOEI6 1€30L
%00'0 {00°000°095) 000 000 000 (00°000'05S) 000 (00'000'095) wawdinby uoneycdsuer] 674
%00°00T  00°0£8'bT 00'0 00'0£8'%C 00'0 00’0 00'0 000 juawdinby asueusuey  LTL
%199 (6+'180'255) 00°9€p'0T 15°27€9'82 00°0 (000S1°165) 00'0 (00°051°165) sjuswanaudwy Guppng  £0Z
%9Z'L (FE'BY8'EE) 000 99'159'7 LLSYE'T (00°005°9£) 000 (00°005'9€) uoissiwwo) s,3asnl) 01§
%0579 (00°000°SL) 00'SZ+'S01 00°6£5'6T 000 (00°000'002) 000 (00°000'002} spampy  POE

spafoud jende) uoyeonpy  DOET6
axg souejeg seoueIqILl  seamjipuadxg  sasnypuadxy 3abpng SDWPUBILY Junowy 1306png uonddsaq JUNOJJY  JIqUINN JUNCIDY
b6png pasaqundusun  BurpueisIng 9]eQg-03-J€d) I31eg-03-\QUokl papuswy
3O %

spafold |eyide) voeonpy LLT :pund

13071 3beq $T70T 420QoR0
WY 126 ¥20Z/02/T1 taely fajeq pund Aq [qQ Aq Atewiwng SaIMIpuadxy JO JUBLLAL)S 291 :Aq pajeat)
plojmer) ejAey B uopes3Np3 J0 pieog AJunoc) auaaln pauyaqg D91 :owepn Rejdums)



6T9L 06TC6T £99 90°TS ecor 0 060¢ £06S 088CT 00Tt 089Y1T 6ECT 9¥'9S¢E 0TS LeL YC'SPTE | 65°98/T | SIVIOL
X:i Sd1 Sd1 SNOL # S1vS Sa1 Sa1 Sg1 Sdn e sg1 SNOL # # SNOL SNOL

619/ 00€90T oece oviy 4410 100

T9°eE 0LLC €07 8T 6¢ LS'V6 ¢9'80T 6C

AVAI10OH 440 %8¢

090°¢ 98’1 91 000°€ ove'zT 8¥'ST 8¢ 144 el [8'EL X4

08v’9 0ze'e L°€9 9 9374 T¢°06T L8179 9¢

08LY ovLTT 8Y'TT 8¢ 69 [A% 74" €9°LET T4

ovy'T /ST 4% [444 L19 076°01 09 68L 50°¢ 9T v S6°/01 ve'09 [44

00L°S 088°CT 659 61 6C £979S1 LS'8S 114

008'L 08€'6 [433% S¢ 9¢ [4%3" TL9S 0¢

071’9 08¥C (4} TE 9¢ S9'IvT TT°¢8 6T

0759 0TS 060°€ 07S'eT 08T'T oSy 6/C [43 TS 58°861 T'ovT 8T

ov9'T 80'6 EETA 05T 043 68°C 14" €¢ 8Lt 86'vL ST

087's €9'v¢C 8T 6¢ S9'191 S0°09 14

0S8's vy S¢ 5S¢ 90°8¢eT 99°¢8 €T

086’9 0¢ct 8’8 9¢ 4% €0°09T 6'e9 [43

L2t Vit ¢9'St x4 514 STEC 6€'T9T 17

ovS'T 005’8 095 £6'ST LT 9¢ 1°6ST 8G°€9 8

0897 L 44 S¢ 8¢'LST 8C°09 L

091's 090'8 TcLe ST €C STIvt LTSS 9

09%'s ovL'T 4% [43 LE 8¢'88T 8'6¢T 9

08.'8 ovS‘L 086 8L'L¢ 43 8 59681 9 0vT 14

079'T 090°TT 008°T ve9 LT S¢ 86'€CT S01T T
TdIM 1331S 1HDIAM | 1INNOD 10 SSvid NOILV1S ¥¢, AON

ION34  [LHOIT/NIL| HOLVIQVY JylL ELTNN a3asn 1lvd WNTY ‘d’N'O 000 JILSV1d | /43d4d0OD | OWa3d ‘snd SAVO1 |¥34SNVYL| SNOL Jivd

S140d34 AON MSDD

A1SVM QIT0S ALNNOD INIIUD




96'9S

96°9S

V101 ANVYD

9'S

9'S

SANId 1SIM

AN33FYO 1SIM

NMOLYINTYM

€89

€89

AAISANNNS

SIINVT "LS

o

(oE 10} ]

o

JNVE3H0

d1vNOGQdIN

¢c9

(44

A334D ISHOH

QYVNY3H 1VH

ANOLSAIYD

LLTT

LLTT

Asngad

(4

(48]

HOHONY SSOY)

SONIHAS YVITD

NO.lAITIVE

c'te

(44

NOldVv

Tv1i01

AValdd

AVASYNHL

AVASINGIM

Avasani

AVANOW L ERLE

vzoz/t1/11

vZ/T/TT 40 X3IM

HLSVA AI'TOS ALNNOD ANHAIAD

AVQd ¥3d SNOL HO1OVdINOD




sceve LT6E 9L'1Y 81°8¢ ety ¢L98 V101 ANVYD
L 'L SANId LSIM
LE'LE LT°8T cel IN33YD 1SIM
S5°al 589 L8 NMOLYINTYM
(49" LS9 ST°S 3AISANNNS
ST°L ST°L SINVT 1S
TE'ET €T’'s 81’8 O3N0N
89°S 89°S JNVE3HO
LLTT T€'S 9’9 AIVNOQAA
9T'vT 68V LT°6 N334 ISYOH
Evve (404" A4’ QYVN3H 1VH
€9°'6 €9°6 ANOLSATYD
1€°LC 911 TL'ST Asng3a
v8°L v8'L HOHONY SSOYD
SL'S SL’S SONIUdS ¥V31
6'¢CT 96°S v6°9 NO.1ATTIVE
96'9¢ rte 98'Sl NOl4Vv
1v1i01 Avaiyd AVASYNHL| AVASINAIM Avasani AVANOW 431N
veoz/8/t1 veoe/L/TT vzoz/9/11 veoz/s/T1 veoz/v/11 vZ/v/1T 40 ¥3am

AVQd ¥3d SNOL HO1OVdINOD

HLSVA dI'TOS ALNNOD ANHHAD




€V T9C S6'0S Ly OY 21'8¢ €6°CY 96'86 1V101 ANVYD
6'CT 88'Y 20°8 SANId 1SIM
80°8€ 991 91T ANIIYD 1SIM
€T°ST €8°'S €6 NMOLYINTYM
CE'TT L9°S €9'S JAISANNNS
¥0°6 v0°6 SANVT °LS
9S°€T z's 9¢'8 O3NnoY
w's 474 MNVEIYO
1201 GE'E 98'9 d1vNOQ>IN
89'8T 6'9 26'C 98’8 MN33Y4D ISYOH
6L°€T 8v'TT 1€°CT A¥VN3H TvH
LLET ¥8'v €6'8 ANOLSAIYD
G6'SC 68°0T 90'ST sng3aa
SEYT LS°S 8.8 YOHONY SSOHD
€T'S €T'S SONIYdS V31D
26°0T veEv 85'9 NO.1ATIIVE
8T'€€E v0°LT vT°91 NO.1dv
V1ol AVAIYd| AvASYNHL| AVASINGIM AVasinL AVANOW ETTNE®)]
v20Z/ST/IT |v20Z/v1/IT  |vZOC/€T/IT  |vZoZ/TT/TIT  |v20Z/1T/TT vZ/TT/TT 40 ¥3IM

AVd ¥3d SNOL HOLOVdINOD

HLSVA dI'TOS ALNNOD ANTHIOD




v€09¢ 9Z'8t STov CE'EE 6°TY 65°S6 Tv10L1 ANVYD
6L 6'L SANId 1SIM
L9°S€E 18°9T 98'8T ANIIYD 1SIM
LS'VT 1L'S 98'8 NMOLYINTYM
LL'TT £€'9 'S IAISANNNS
LLTT €v'S vEL SANVT°LS
LT €SV v6°L O3NOoY
L8°'S L8'S MNVE3IH0
IT'€T 8T°S ¥S°T 6€9 d1vNOa2IN
GS'6T 79°S €T’V 8'6 M33YD ISHOH
19'€2 8€'CT €TIT QYVN3H 1VH
6 we 869 INOLSAIYD
¥S"0€ 29'TT 26°LT Msng3aa
w8 w8 YOHDNV SSOYD
TS s SONIYdS ¥VI1D
LS'ET 88'S 69°L NO.LATIVE
1°9€ 9Z°8T v8'LT NO.Ldv
V10l AVAIYd| AVASYNHL| AvaASINAIM AVasint AVANOW YIINTD
veoz/ee/1T  |veoz/ie/1T  |veoz/oz/TT  |veoZ/61/TIT  |¥20Z/ST/TI vZ/8T/TT 40 X3IM

AVQ ¥3d SNOL HOLOVdINOD

HILSVA dI'TOS ALNNOD ANHAAD




T¥°89¢ ¢6°08 0 L8'VS €81V 6,°06 TV101L ANVYD
15°L 1S°L SANId 1SIM
8y cs've TAVA AN3IFYO 1SIM
29°'st 80°L vs'8 NMOLYINTYM
159°01 1€'S [ IAISANNNS
L9°8 L9°'8 SINVT °1S
9L°€El 9 veEL O3NOY
89°S 85°S JNVE3IHO
¢Sl e8’s L9 JIVNOMIN
€6'T¢C L8'8 140 4 (AR N33O ISHOH
18°S¢ 6L°ST ¢0°01 QYVN3H TVH
6’8 c6'8 ANO1SAIYD
98'v¢E 1€°8T SS°9T AsSng3aa
8'0T 18°¢€ 66’9 HYOHONV SSOYHD
88t 88'v SONIHS 4V3ITD
L6°ET 19°L AVAINOH 9¢'9 NOL1lA3ITIVE
6L°0€ 440(9T'¥T €9'91 NO14V
V101 Avaidd AVASYNHL| AVASINQIM Avasini AVANOW 431N3D
veoz/6z/1T  |veoT/8t/1T  |vzoz/Lz/iT  |veoe/9z/TtT  (vezoz/st/Ti v2/ST/TT 40 X3IM

AVQ ¥3d SNO1 HOLOVdINOD

HLSVA AI'TOS ALNNOD ANTHTTD




6€°9601 TV101 ANVYD
€9°'1Y S3INId 1SIM
v'eqt AN33YO 1SIM
L8°09 NMOLYINTVM
ST°¢s JAISANNNS
€9°LE SIINVT "LS
T°€S O3NOY
55°¢CC JINVE3HO
T9°LY A1IVNOQ@ N
vSs'08 M334D ISYOH
v9°L6 QYVN3H 1VH
¢S’y ANOLSATYD
EV'0ET asngia
€S9 HOHONVY SSOYHO
86°0¢ SONIYdS ¥v31
9¢t°'1S NO.1AJ1IVY
St°8ST NOliVv

720Z YI9NIAON 404 STVLO1 HO1OVdINOD

HLSVA dI'TOS ALNNOD ANHAID




(@3asn 41) SQ¥VI XIM YO4 NMOHS ATNO LNNOWY 150D :ILON«

Le'v9e  8.9z¢ 0 1572 'S0S SIvLOL
713Nd dOHS 454 §'s
SHONYL NOILVLS HIISNYAL 59°06 8'LEeZ

S1¥Vd /AONVYNILNIVIN 80 65 9eLShL 8zivvl 052-4 QH0O4 6102 2%
JONYNILNIVIA /DINYHOIW 868 601 16€02) 667611 052-4 Q404 1102 ov
IONVNILNIVIN /OINYHO3N LSLL zZ8lL GE6291 ¥8.19L 052-4 QY04 8102 6€
S1¥vd /XINNY 009 L'LS zi2L TIS1L 052-4 QY04 zz0z 8¢
YOSIAYIANS 8621 8604 965PE 862<E 052-4 @404 2202 LE
IONYNILNIVN ¥ILNID 61 b SE0gl 98521 0S2z-4 QY03 zzoz 9€
440 110y 8e'gl 9gez L1y 1181 LO¥9L MOV zz0z sg
440 T10Y y9ph 1122 6'ClY 90962 seeLl MOvIA ze0z ve
HIAMOW 98 $699¢ 60992 05€-4 GHO4 220z £¢
¥3AavOoT LNOuS 6LV 1862 819 LE¥ZOL 05766 MOV (444 4>
MONYL I1ddVED TYLIW /OW3A 6'S 00gl 1812 ££589 £€2.9 TYNOILYNYILNI 1202 Le
¥3avOT LNOYA /8 /£6851 058851 MOV £L0Z o¢
¥3AVOT INOYH 0 6vpE8e 6vPE8E MOVIN ¥102 62
IONVYNILNIVIAN /OINVHOIN ¥58 z'68 £01.2€ 64292 0554 2002 8z
IYLIN /OW3A LOvL L'gEL 80868 L0t88 0s€-4 0Z02 1z
IYL3N /OW3A ¥y 122 zv #0089 €829 0se-4 0Z0Z ve
(¥Ivd3d NI) ¥3av01 LNO¥S 0 S/8¥eY S/8¥EY MOV L00Z £C
JONVYNILNIVIN ¥31N3O 0 £L162 €162 SS3¥dXI AAIHO| 6664 [
SILVIANI NVA 0 090621 09062} NYA AATHOD 1002 0z
(STV3IAA0D NO TTVS ONIANId) LNIVIN /DINVHOIW 0 £569¢Z £569¢2 X ¥ 052-4 1002 6l
440 110 vL9L £vze £'€09 ve98 L6ES OATOA ¥z0z sl
440 T70¥ 665 €90l 998691 192691 MOVIN ¥L02 L)
440 110y 8’8 (4%} 14 850121 9vS0/LL MOVIN vL0Z ]8
440 110y el 112 1622 /£/061 0z5681 MOVIN vioz SlL
440 T70d LS S5L 568l 818281 £90Z81 MOV 7102 4!
MONYL I1ddvHD TVLIN /OWAA 6LL 681 6'%0€ 8829l 60vvL TYNOILYNYILNI ¥20Z L
NOILYLS ¥IJASNYHL L€ 62 £5/661 721661 ¥ X ¥ 05Z-4 8002 zL
I10AD3Y /HIAVOT LNONS ¥5'62 8LEE 8°G€9 zevez ¥LL0Z MOV ¥20z L
MONYL dOHS 1L 8'92 €5 siot yooy MOV €202 oL
440 110y £02 (2% 0/£88 /9188 MOVIN 9002 6
I1OADTH /43GV0OT LNOHS ve 8992 Z'609 ¥65.81 9z6v8lL MOVIN 810z 8
AY3AITAA YIANIVINOD Ll 09.9 €99 TYNOILYNYIINI| 6002 L
JONVYNILNIVIN /OINVHOIW 34 ze6Ll2 688./2 05¢-4 1661 9
(STYIAAOD NO TTvS ONIANI) INIVIN ¥3LNID i€ z0¥v0Z S9£0Z 0St-d4 100z ]
MONAL MO0 0 9250/2 9250.2 dWNA HI G861 4
HOSIAYIINS 085 62¢ S6v691 516891 0524 €102 ¢
¥3avOT LNOYH ¥0'e (k44 L2 zelzsl LLez8l MOV 6102 L

¥OLo3uIa €9 L'¥S 617152 908¥2 ayo- zzoe 00

s|eb CIEL\CT sjeb sjeb abeo)t abes|
asn A"__m_n_v Moo |Pseoten _mmm_r_w:“_ whm_\_mw,"_ bupuz | buuuibeg e UVIA | #0NNL

1¥0d3¥ 3I9VITIIN /SVD ILSYM QIT0S ALNNOD INIIFYD

YIGWIAON S¢, YV3IA TVISId




Greene County Budget and Finance Committee
Meeting-Minutes November 6th, 2024
Greene County Annex Conference Greene County Annex Conference Room, Greeneville,

Tennessee
MEMBERS PRESENT:
Mayor Kevin Morrison- Budget & Finance Chairman Robin Quillen — Commissioner
Tim Smithson — Commissioner Brad Peters — Commissioner
Paul Burkey-Commissioner
ALSO:
Danny Lowery — Director of Finance Erin Elmore — HR Director
Gary Rector- Highway Dept. Wesley Holt — Sheriff
David Beverly — Chief Deputy Kevin Swatsell - Road Superintendent
Roger Woolsey- County Attorney John Waddle- Commissioner
OTHERS:
Spencer Morrel- Greeneville Sun
Kayla Crawford -Greene County Schools Budget Director Jeff Taylor — Greene County Partnership Director

CALL TO ORDER:
Mayor Kevin Morrison called the Budget and Finance committee meeting to order on Wednesday, November 6th,
2024 at 8:30 AM in the Greene County Annex Conference Room. A quorum was present.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:
Motion to approve the Budget & Finance minutes for the September 4th, 2024 meeting was made by Commissioner
Quillen and was seconded by Commissioner Peters. Motion was approved with no opposition.

BUDGET AMENDMENTS:
For their review, the Committee received budget requests that had already been previously approved by Mayor
Morrison.

RESOLUTIONS:

A. A resolution to amend the 2024-2025 fiscal year Greene County Schools General Purpose
budget. Motion was made to approve by Commissioner Burkey and was seconded by
Commissioner Smithson. Motion carried.

B. A Resolution to amend the 2024-2025 fiscal year Greene County Schools General Purpose Fund
budget for changes in revenue & expenditures. Motion was made to approve by Commissioner
Quillen and was seconded by Commissioner Peters. Motion carried.

C. A resolution of the Greene County Legislative Body appropriating a total of $5,828 to the
Maintenance Department for the FYE June 30, 2025. Motion was made to approve by
Commissioner Smithson and was seconded by Commissioner Quillen. Motion carried.

D. A resolution of the Greene County Legislative Body appropriating a total of $26,000 from the
Sheriff's Restricted Account to the Sheriff's Department and Jail for the FYE June 30, 2025.
Motion was made to approve by Commissioner Quillen and was seconded by Commissioner
Peters. Motion carried.

E. A resolution of the Greene County Legislative Body to appropriate funds to the Sheriff's s
Department in the amount of $92,965 for the annual allocation of the THSO Traffic Safety, THSO
Network Coordinator grants, and Alternative Electronic Monitoring Fund grant for the FYE June
30, 2025. Motion was made to approve by Commissioner Burkey and was seconded by
Commissioner Quillen. Motion carried.



Greene County Budget and Finance Committee
Meeting-Minutes November 6th, 2024
Greene County Annex Conference Greene County Annex Conference Room, Greeneville,
Tennessee

F. A resolution to declare County owned property surplus, obsolete, or unusable pursuant to T.C.A.
§ 5-14-108. Greene County Solid Waste Department. Motion was made to approve by
Commissioner Peters and was seconded by Commissioner Burkey. Motion carried.

G. Resolution of the Greene County Legislative Body to accept and consent to the transfer of
all assets, liabilities, management, and operations of North Greene Ultilities, Inc. subject to
approval by the necessary regulatory agencies. Motion was made to approve by Commissioner
Peters and was seconded by Commissioner Burkey. Motion carried.

H. A resolution of the Greene County Legislative Body to appropriate funds to the Jail in the amount
of $15,640. Motion was made to approve by Commissioner Quillen and was seconded by
Commissioner Smithson. Motion carried.

|. Consideration of a memorandum of understanding between Greene County Commission and
Greene County Mayor. Motion was made to approve by Commissioner Peters and was seconded
by Commissioner Quillen. Motion carried.

J. Consideration of a resolution authorizing the Greene County Sheriff's Department to sell and transfer a 2010
Chevrolet HHR automobile previously declared as surplus property to the Greene County Anti-Drug
Coalition for the sum of $3,000. Motion was made to approve by Commissioner Burkey and was
seconded by Commissioner Smithson. Motion carried.

DISCUSSIONS:

Commissioner John Waddle, president of the North Greene Utilities, Inc handed out a letter to the customers of
North Greene Utilities, declaring a special meeting to be held on November 16, 2024 at the Baileyton Elementary
School. He stated in the letter that the only order of business was the resolution to be voted on to transfer the
control of North Greene Utilities to Greene County. He feels that the financial pressures have increased, making
it harder for North Green Utilities Inc to continue take care of it. Therefore, he thinks that Greene County should
take control.

NEXT MEETING:

The next regular scheduled Budget & Finance Committee meeting will be on Wednesday, January 8th, 8:30 A.M.
held in the Greene County Annex Conference Room, Greeneville, Tennessee.

AJOURNMENT:

Motion to adjourn was made by Commissioner Burkey at 9:50 A.M. seconded by Commissioner Peters.

Respectfully submitted,
Regina Nuckols
Budget & Finance Secretary



Greene County Insurance Committee
Regular Meeting-Minutes Open Session
October 23, 2024
Greene County Annex Greeneville, Tennessee

Members Present:

Kevin Morrison — Mayor Danny Lowery-Budget Director Erin Elmore- HR
David McLain-School Director Brad Peters-Comm. Kathy Crawford-Comm.
Roger Woolsey- County Atty.  Wesley Holt — Sheriff William Dabbs — Comm.

Also, Present:

Kim Peterson-TSC John Mcinturff-MM&B Tammy Cutshall- Atty Assist.
Chris Poynter-Baldwin Leslie Jones — Clinic Gary Rector — Highway

April Humphreys-GCECU

Call to Order:
Mayor Morrison called meeting to order in the conference room at the Greene County Annex.
Quorum was present.

Minutes:
Motion was made by Commissioner Crawford and was seconded by Commissioner Dabbs to
approve the minutes from September 25, 2024. Motion was approved with no opposition.

Reports:

Clinic - Leslie Jones gave the clinic reports for September 2024. There were 304 patients, which
was 76 more than last year in September. There were 15 no shows (9 provider visits — 4 of those
were either spouse or dependent and the other 5 (employees) Leslie sent out to department heads
to let them know. Leslie stated the clinic gave out 930 prescriptions. Leslie stated that there were
a lot more visits this year compared to last year and a lot of those were nurse visits. Attorney
Woolsey asked how the 7:00 a.m. start time was working and Leslie said great.

Financial - Danny Lowery emailed the financial reports for September, 2024 to the Insurance
Committee on October 18, 2024. The good news is there is really nothing to report good or bad.
Sheriff Holt mentioned the August Workers Comp and Liability revenue of 358 and asked if that
was a typo? Danny said it's not going to be much at the beginning of the fiscal year because it’s
funded mostly by taxes and TVA. Attorney Woolsey asked if we received any other forms of
revenue for Workers Comp and Liability? Danny stated that those two sources are mostly it except
for an occasional reimbursement. A motion to approve the financial reports was made by Attorney
Woolsey. Motion was seconded by Commissioner Dabbs. Reports were approved with no
opposition.

Discussion:

Other Business.

April Humphreys from GCECU came back this month for an answer to her inquiry at last month’s
meeting about Greene County Government adding the Credit Union employees to the county’s
health insurance plan. Chris Poynter from Baldwin stated that if we take in those employees
Greene County would have to create a MEWA (Multiple Employer Welfare Arrangement) and that
is not what Greene County Government is doing today and if Greene County accepts them then



Greene County Insurance Committee
Regular Meeting-Minutes Open Session
October 23, 2024
Greene County Annex Greeneville, Tennessee

Greene County is becoming an insurance company for that group of people. Chris stated from a
funding standpoint there is not a number that we could charge that would be an appropriate
number to bring them in if they are not Greene County employees. Also, Chris stated if we take
those people in, our plan documents would have to change because it would not be the same as
what Greene County has today. Chris stated if there are reasons that Greene County would want
to accept that group of people then he could do it but we need to know what we are up against if
we go down that road. Commissioner Peters stated when he first talked to April on the phone
about this and that the majority of her members are Greene County Government, Town of
Greeneville, Greene County and Greeneville City Schools, GEA, Greeneville Water Commission
and Cross Anchor Utility District, and the fact Greene County and the City are self-insured, it
would be difficult to come up with a number to charge, but with the Greeneville Water Commission
being fully insured it may be easier for them to add the credit union. Chris agreed that would
probably be a better option if he can get BCBS to approve it. Chris stated that Greene County is
not set up for us to add people who are not employees of Greene County Government and not
set up for that to flow under our self-insured plan. Chris agreed that he thought it was a great idea
to get with another entity that is fully insured and get those employees added to that plan. Chris
then asked how many employees April is talking about and she stated 3. Chris then asked why
they weren’t looking for just a small group health plan and April stated she is just under the
direction of her Board of asking if her employees can join Greene County’s plan. Chris then stated
that he thinks she needs to look at a small group plan first. Sheriff Holt then raised the issue that
if we accept the employees from the credit union then possibly Cross Anchor and Glen Hills would
come and ask to join our plan also and then what would we do. Chris said he would help April
look for a small group plan first. Chris also stated he would discuss different options with April.
Chris stated Greene County would be taking on a tremendous risk if it adds those 3 employees
to its insurance plan.

Chris Poynter presented a hand out to the members of the Insurance Committee concerning
Pharmacy costs and changes. Chris stated that we can’t control cancer and some of the things
that happen but we can control where we get prescriptions and how we get prescriptions. Chris
stated that Pharmacy costs have increased significantly over the past few years driven mainly by
specialty and GLP1 drugs. Chris stated we have an opportunity to diminish some of these
increases by a couple of different ways. He has worked with BCBS to bring two different scenarios
to Greene County: 1. Implement biosimilars strategy for Humira for 2024 through BCBS; and 2.
Option to implement SHARx — BCBS has agreed to interface with SHARX for specialty drugs.
This process will incorporate a broader list of specialty drugs and require deeper employee
cooperation and involvement. On page 2 of the handout, Chris shows the specialty prescriptions
(of 16 drugs) from August 2022 to July 2024 for Greene County. Humira is the one that is super
popular but super expensive. Leslie stated that these are not prescribed through the clinic, they
are specialty drugs. Attorney Woolsey then asked Budget Director, Danny Lowery, what is the
percentage of pharmacy costs versus medical costs? Woolsey seemed to think the percentage
used to be about 25% pharmacy. Danny stated it was about half and half now. Danny also stated
that we just got our quarterly rebate for Pharmacy and it was 300K. The good news is that we are



Greene County Insurance Committee
Regular Meeting-Minutes Open Session
October 23, 2024
Greene County Annex Greeneville, Tennessee

on a contract that gets us the full Pharmacy rebate. The bad news is it's the expensive drugs that
are getting the rebates in the first place. Chris stated that Humira is coming off formulary January
1, 2025 and going to a biosimilar process. In layman’s terms, biosimilars are the generic of these
specialty drugs. Chris stated when they did the carve out of pharmacy for some of his other clients
and switched to the biosimilars, there was a 98% conversion to biosimilars with no complaints or
issues. The next page of the handout Chris shows the savings we can see with the change to the
biosimilar. The switch to the biosimilar will reduce the cost of the prescription to around $1,200.00.
Chris explained the communication process for the Humira change is as follows: October 14:
Pharmacies notified of change so they can secure the correct products; October 15: Member
letters started to be mailed where members are told Humira will no longer be covered and are
told their Humira prior authorizations will be transitioned to one of the three covered biosimilars:
and December 1: Targeted provider communications to the providers that have written Humira.
Chris stated for a member to stay on Humira, it would be a very strict protocol, but the majority of
members will switch to a biosimilar. Humira is step 1 and the next step is illustrated on page 5 of
Chris’ handout. Chris stated that BCBS has now agreed to interface with SHARx. Chris
recommends letting the first change happen with Humira and then see where we are at early next
year before we move to the next step with SHARx. The SHARX process is as follows: 1. Member
seek prescription from local Pharmacy; 2. Pharmacy checks insurance coverage: 3. Prior
authorization rejection placed with custom rejection message; 4. Pharmacy informs member to
contact SHARx; 5. PBM notifies SHARXx of decline; 6. SHARX invites member to on-board; 7.
Member completes on-boarding; 8. SHARx advocates review new member profile; and 9. SHARXx
advocate begins advocacy process. Chris says everyone will get their drug but it will be more
invasive. This will be for the expensive specialty drugs. Attorney Woolsey asked Chris that if we
do both of these steps then the County will save about 75% on these drugs and Chris said yes.
Attorney Woolsey clarified with Chris to let step 1 go first and then wait on step 2 and Chris
confirmed, yes. Chris said let step 1 pass and then look at the conversion in the first quarter of
next year and see where we are at. At that point, Chris could re-run the numbers and bring that
information back to the committee to see the actual savings and see if we want to continue with
step 2. Chris stated this only affects very few drugs (specialty). Chris also stated this is a BCBS
thing, as far as changing to biosimilar process. Chris stated the biosimilar change is an easy
change and will save the County lots of money. Mayor Morrison stated that some people will not
notice a change at all because a lot of these biosimilars are just as good as the name brand.
Mayor Morrison went on to say that the research and development of drugs is so much more
improved now compared to earlier years.

Chris stated the issue with Delta Dental was due to some old language in our contract and when
Chris talked with Delta they were going to charge us 15% to get the contract back with correct
language and Chris said no, we aren’t going to do that. Ironically, Chris stated they will change
the contract to the better language retroactively (to cover the patient in question), if Chris will get
us to renew with Delta for the next year. So, the problem is fixed and with a 2nd year rate
guarantee.



Greene County Insurance Committee
Regular Meeting-Minutes Open Session
October 23, 2024
Greene County Annex Greeneville, Tennessee

Motion to adjourn and go into closed session was made by Sheriff Holt. Motion was seconded by
Commissioner Dabbs. There was no opposition.

Claims:
Motion was made by Commissioner Dabbs and seconded by Commissioner Peters to approve
TSC-0002331. Claim was approved with no opposition.

At the end of the meeting, it was decided by the Committee to reschedule November and
December’s Insurance Committee Meetings to November 20, 2024 and December 18, 2024,
respectively.

Motion to adjourn was made by Commissioner Crawford and seconded by Sheriff Holt. There was
no opposition.

Respectfully Submitted,
Beth McNeese



Minutes of the Greene County Regional Planning Commission

A meeting of the Greene County, TN Regional Planning Commission was held on Tuesday,
September 10, 2024, at 1:00 p.m.

Members Present/Absent Staff Representatives Present/Absent
Sam Riley, Chairman feevin-Merrson—{ounty- Mavor

Gwen Lilley, Vice-Chairman Roger Woolsey, County Attorney
Crary-Reetor-Secretary Amy Tweed, Planning Coordinator
Lyle Parton, Alternate Secretary Tim Tweed, Building Official

Edwin Remine Kevin Swatsell, Road Superintendent
Stevi Misener Lyn Ashburn, Planning Department
Phillip Ottinger Bax-SipeBuilding Inspeetor

Jason Cobble Fohn-StHsButlding nspector

Also participating: Interested citizens
The Chairman called the meeting to order and welcomed attendees.

Approval of Minutes. The Chairman asked if members had received the draft minutes of the
August 13, 2024 meeting. A motion was made by Phillip Ottinger, seconded by Edwin Remine,
to approve the minutes with changes to who made the motion and second. The motion carried
unanimously.

Replat of Gunter Property. The Planning Commission reviewed and considered approving the
Replat of Gunter Property, for one lot totaling 2.01 acres, located adjacent to Red Hill Road in the
2" civil district. Charles Johnson, project surveyor, represented the property owner. Staff stated
a Certificate of Completion had been submitted for the existing septic system, and recommended
granting approval, subject to the addition of signatures, as the plat met all other applicable
regulations. A motion was made by Lyle Parton, seconded by Edwin Remine, to grant approval,
subject to the addition of signatures, as the plat met all other applicable regulations. The motion
carried unanimously.

Survey of a Portion of Lot 2 of the Maggie Parton Farm. The Planning Commission reviewed
and considered approving the Survey of a Portion of Lot 2 of the Maggie Parton Farm, for one lot
totaling 0.115 acres, located off South Greene Street in the 18% civil district. Daniel Coffey,
project surveyor, represented the property owner. He stated the proposal was to add approximately
five thousand (5,000) sq. ft. to Lot 8, which was a legal, nonconforming lot of 15,000 sq. ft.
Adding the 0.115 acres would bring Lot 8 to 0.46 acre, less than the 0.5 acres required. Amy




Tweed stated that, although County policy was not to approve lots that did not meet minimum lot
size requirements, the proposal was actually decreasing the degree of nonconformity for the
existing Lot 8. It would improve the situation, as it would provide additional land for septic system
duplication area. Staff recommended approval, subject to the addition of signatures, as the plat
met all other applicable regulations. A motion was made by Phillip Ottinger, seconded by Edwin
Remine, to grant approval subject to the addition of signatures, as the proposal decreased the
degree of nonconformity, and the plat met all other applicable regulations. The motion carried
unanimously.

Michael Blaylock Property plat. The Planning Commission reviewed and considered approving
the Michael Blaylock Property plat, for one lot totaling 1.00 acres, located at the intersection of
Boles Lane and Stone Dam Road in the 14" civil district. Michael Grigsby, project surveyor,
representing the property owner, stated that a deed for the lot had been recorded in 2006. The
bank holding the mortgage wanted the survey recorded, which did not happen in 2006 because the
plat did not have signatures. Staff stated a Certificate of Completion had been submitted, all
signatures had been obtained, and recommended approving the plat as it met all applicable
requirements. A motion was made by Gwen Lilley, seconded by Edwin Remine, to approve the
plat, as it met all applicable requirements. The motion carried unanimously.

Waddell 2.34 ac. Property Partition plat. The Planning Commission reviewed and considered
approving the Waddell 2.34 ac. Property Partition plat, for one lot totaling 2.34 acres, located
adjacent to Shiloh Road in the 13" civil district. Charles Johnson, project surveyor, represented
the property owner. Staff stated a Certificate of Completion had been submitted, the plat had all
signatures, and recommended approving the plat as it met all applicable requirements. A motion
was made by Phillip Ottinger, seconded by Gwen Lilley, to approve the plat, as it met all applicable
requirements. The motion carried unanimously.

Division of a Portion of the Justin and Michelle Matthews Property. The Planning
Commission reviewed and considered approving the Division of a Portion of the Justin and
Michelle Matthews Property for one lot totaling 1.90 acres, located adjacent to Greystone Road in
the 22" civil district. Daniel Hopson, project surveyor, represented the property owner. He stated
the proposal was to create a single lot division out of a 40-50 acre tract. The only issue he saw
with the proposal was that, while the original structure (a barn) met setback requirements, changing
the use to residential required that the Board of Zoning Appeals grant a front yard setback variance.
Discussion ensued about how long the barn had been on the property. Roger Woolsey asked if the
property owner had gone through the permitting process. Tim Tweed stated the last inspection on
the property, performed on 11/4/21, was based on the permit stating an old barn was being
renovated for use as a shop or garage. The inspection revealed there was no sheetrock or insulation
installed at the time, and inspectors had not been in the structure since. Questions were raised
about the possibility of someone living in the structure, and if it was actually classified as a house.




Amy Tweed stated the building was identified as a “Residence” on the plat, and the Certificate of
Completion, approved by TDEC/Division of Water Pollution Control, stated it was for a residence
(one bedroom).

Tim Tweed stated that, if the use was being changed to residential, the property owner would have
to hire a structural engineer to go in and sign off on all the work that had been done. Roger
Woolsey stated his concern that the County was having more and more people trying to skirt the
building codes by submitting a permit for an “accessory” building, then using it as a residence. In
addition to safety concerns, there was the potential for someone to buy property like this to live in
it, only for the County to prohibit any residential use. The new property owner would then come
back on the County.

The Planning Commission began to discuss options. Staff stated the plat could be approved subject
to submission of the engineering report, obtaining all signatures on the plat, and obtaining the
setback variance. An option to deny would be that the Board of Zoning Appeals should first
consider approving the change in use and the setback variance before the plat should be approved
by the Planning Commission. Daniel Hopson suggested postponing action until the October

Planning Commission meeting, to allow the owner the opportunity to submit a variance request to
the BZA.

After discussion, a motion was made by Lyle Parton, seconded by Phillip Ottinger, to deny
approval of the plat, based on the following rationale:

1. Concerns over safety of the structure, as it had not been inspected for use as a residence.
2. A variance should be granted by the BZA before the plat was approved.
3. The Building Inspectors needed access to the structure to perform an inspection.

The motion carried unanimously.

Replat of Lot 12, Red Cedar Farm Subdivision. The Planning Commission reviewed and
considered approving the Replat of Lot 12, Red Cedar Farm Subdivision, for one lot totaling 4.04
acres, located adjacent to Mt. Zion Road in the 14™ civil district. Michael Grigsby, project
surveyor, represented the property owner. Amy Tweed stated there were a few clerical changes

staff believed should be made in order to decrease confusion over what, exactly, was being
subdivided.

1. Change the name of the plat to add lot numbers, i.e., “Replat of Lots 12, 15, 16 & 17, Red
Cedar Farm Subdivision”.
2. Remove all notes located under the location map.



3. Remove the lot identifiers to create Lot 12R and Lot 17R, as shown on the plat provided
in the Planning Commission packet.

Staff recommended approval of the plat, subject to the addition of signatures, and the plat being
revised as discussed, as it met all other applicable regulations. A motion was made by Gwen
Lilley, seconded by Phillip, Ottinger, to approve the plat, subject to the addition of signatures, and
the plat being revised as discussed, as it met all other applicable regulations. The motion carried
unanimously.

Lloyd H. Jeffries Property plat. The Planning Commission reviewed and considered approving
the Lloyd H. Jeffries Property plat, for two lots totaling 3.44 acres, located adjacent to Bertie Patton
Road in the 7" civil district. Michael Grigsby, project surveyor, represented the property owner.
Staff stated the two empty lots needed soil evaluation, and recommended approval, subject to the
addition of signatures, as the plat met all applicable requirements. A motion was made by Phillip,
Ottinger, seconded by Edwin Remine, to approve the plat, subject to the addition of signatures, as
the plat met all applicable requirements. The motion carried unanimously.

David Tipton Property plat. The Planning Commission reviewed and considered approving the
David Tipton Property plat, for one lot totaling 0.84 acres, located adjacent to Rheatown Road in
the 15" civil district. Daniel Coffey, project surveyor, represented the property owner. Staff stated
the Certificate of Completion had been submitted, all signatures had been obtained, and
recommended approval, as the plat met all applicable requirements. A motion was made by Lyle
Parton, seconded by Edwin Remine, to approve the plat as it met all applicable requirements. The
motion carried unanimously

Replat of Lot 1, Silas Seaton Property plat. The Planning Commission reviewed and considered
approving the Replat of Lot 1, Silas Seaton Property plat, for six lots totaling 4.54 acres, located
adjacent to Doyle Davis Road and Cedar Creek Cave Road in the 18" civil district. Staff stated
there had been a question about the possibility of an existing house located on adjacent property,
crossing over into one of the new lots. Mr. Grigsby stated it had been verified that the house did
not intrude on the property being subdivided. Staff recommended approval, subject to a change to
the lot numbering style, i.e., Lot R1, Lot R2, etc., and to the addition of signatures, as the plat met
all other applicable requirements. A motion was made by Gwen Lilley, seconded by Phillip
Ottinger, to approve the plat subject to changing the lot numbers as proposed by staff, and subject
to the addition of signatures, as the plat met all other applicable requirements. The motion carried
unanimously.

Administrative minor subdivisions. The Planning Commission was informed the following
subdivisions had been approved since the last meeting.



e Tammy Barnes Property for one lot totaling 0.75 acres, located adjacent to Dykes Hill
Road in the 15" civil district.

e Division of a Portion of the Colt H. Reaves Property for one lot totaling 0.23 acres,
located off Pigeon Creek Road in the 25" civil district.

e Division of a Portion of the Gale T. Johnson Property for one lot totaling 1.42 acres,
located off Wines Road in the 11" civil district.

e Survey of a Portion of the David Ooten et ux Property for one lot totaling 0.796 acres,
located adjacent to North Mohawk Road in the 6" civil district.

e Gentry Property and James A. Tolliver for one lot totaling 0.25 acres, located off Oasis
Road in the 6™ civil district.

e Lynda Williams Klepper Property for one lot totaling 1.41 acres, located adjacent to
Horton Highway in the 11 civil district.

e Survey of a Portion of the Silas Seaton Property for one lot totaling 2.00 acres, located
adjacent to Cedar Creek Road in the 18™ civil district.

¢ Division of a Portion of the Fillers Property for one lot totaling 1.79 acres, located off N.
Wesley Chapel Road in the 21% civil district.

e Division of the Swift Property for one lot totaling 1.01 acres, located adjacent to Pleasant
Hill Road in the 1% civil district.

A motion was made by Phillip Ottinger, seconded by Gwen Lilley, to accept the list. The motion
carried unanimously.

Monthly activity report for Building/Zoning/Planning Office. Tim Tweed discussed the
monthly department activity report. A motion was made by Gwen Lilley, seconded by Lyle Parton,
to accept the report. The motion carried unanimously.

TDEC/Water Pollution Control regulations concerning subsurface s disposal requirements.
Staff stated the TDEC Environmental Specialists that worked in Greeneville had recently attended
an educational workshop in Nashville. During the work session, they were informed that the

Johnson City office was using an incorrect method to approve plats with existing septic systems.
According to TDEC, Certificates of Completion, which have been used for years, should not have
been used, and would no longer be approved. Instead, property owners would have to submit a
request for an Inspection Letter, which was a more involved process than the C of C. Surveyors
would only be informed of the policy change when they submitted a plat to TDEC.

Staff placed discussion of the new process on the agenda so as to increase awareness of the change.
This intention was to decrease the incidence of plats being submitted to TDEC for approval, only
to find out that the property owner would have to submit a different application and additional
fees, and the surveyor would have to basically redraw the plat.



An outline of the process, and how it was expected to work with the Planning plat review process,
was provided.

1.

10.

11.

The property owner or their representative submits an application and fee for a TDEC
inspection letter at www.tdec.tn.gov/septic-service-request/.

Upon receipt of the application, a TDEC Environmental Specialist will schedule a site
inspection to locate the existing septic tank and field lines. If the system is found, it will be
flagged. If it cannot be located, the property owner will need to work directly with TDEC to
resolve the situation.

The surveyor begins work on the survey and includes the location of the septic tank and field
lines, as flagged by the TDEC inspection.

The surveyor submits the plat to the Greene County Planning Coordinator for initial review.
The property owner/representative hires a soil scientist to perform a soil evaluation in order to
identify a duplication area for the septic system. The lot will be evaluated for the duplication
area only. The existing septic system will not be evaluated, and plat approval by TDEC will
not constitute approval of the existing septic system.

The property owner/representative completes a TDEC Subdivision Evaluation form at
www.tdec.tn.gov/septic-service-request/. The form must be accompanied by a digital copy of
the plat, the soil evaluation study, and submission fee.

TDEC returns a list of requirements and restrictions to the surveyor.

The surveyor revises the plat to add the requirements and restrictions required by TDEC, and
submits a digital copy to TDEC.

TDEC electronically signs the plat and returns it to the surveyor in a digital format.
The property owner/representative submits the plat to the agencies required to sign it.

Six paper copies of the signed plat are provided to the Planning Coordinator by 9:00 a.m. on
the day of the Planning Commission meeting.

Several surveyors asked questions about the process. Amy Tweed stated this was the only
information she had been provided, and recommended that the surveyors contact the local
TDEC/Water Pollution Control office.

Proposed Changes to the Greene County Subdivision Regulations. Staff stated that changes

to the Subdivision Regulations were being considered for the following areas:

1. Eliminating easements where lot lines have been removed.



2. Addressing boundary surveys and if they should be approved.
3. Changes to the subdivision plat checklist.

Planning Commission Bylaws. Staff stated that bylaws were near completion, and should be
submitted to the Planning Commission for their review in the near future.

There being no further business, a motion was made by Edwin Remine, seconded by Lyle Parton,
to adjourn. The motion carried unanimously. The meeting adjourned at 2:20 p.m.

Approved as written: /=1~ A OR 17‘

Secretary: % / Z—f
ChHN-

Chairman/Vice Chairman:

Ruth Morrison Property plat. The Planning Commission reviewed and considered approving
the Ruth Morrison Property plat, for two lots totaling 13.721 acres, located adjacent to Lick Hollow
Road in the 9™ civil district.




Minutes of the Greene County Regional Planning Commission

A meeting of the Greene County, TN Regional Planning Commission was held on Tuesday,
August 13, 2024, at 1:00 p.m.

Members Present/Absent Staff Representatives Present/Absent
Sam Riley, Chairman hevinMorsson-County-Mavor

Gwen Lilley, Vice-Chairman Roger Woolsey, County Attorney

Gary Rector, Secretary Amy Tweed, Planning Coordinator
Lyle Parton, Alternate Secretary Tim Tweed, Building Official

Edwin Remine Kevin Swatsell, Road Superintendent
Phillip Ottinger Bax-Sipe-Building-Inspeetor

Jason Cobble Joha-StillsBuilding Inspeetor

Becky Rideout

Also participating: Interested citizens
The Chairman called the meeting to order and welcomed attendees.

Approval of Minutes. The Chairman asked if members had received the draft minutes of the
July 9, 2024 meeting. Phillip Ottinger stated the minutes erroneously recorded him as having
made the motion to approve the June 11, 2024 minutes. The Planning Commission was informed
that the motion was instead made by Gary Rector and seconded by Edwin Remine. A motion was
made by Gary Rector, seconded by Lyle Parton, to approve the minutes with changes to who made
the motion and second. The motion carried unanimously.

Approval of the minutes of the May 14, 2024 meeting. The Planning Commission reviewed
and considered a correction to the May 14, 2024 minutes. Staff stated that the section titled
Division of the Linda Leblanc Trust Property needed to be changed to Division of the Katherine
Camacho Property. The Leblanc Trust subdivision had been on the original Planning Commission
agenda, but the plat had been replaced by the Camacho plat prior to the meeting. A motion was
made by Gary Rector, seconded by Lyle Parton, to approve the minutes with the revisions as noted.
The motion carried unanimously.

Replat of Lots 7, 8, and 9 of the Carpenter-Clemmer Property. The Planning Commission
reviewed and considered approving the Replat of Lots 7, 8, and 9 of the Carpenter-Clemmer
subdivision plat for five lots totaling 16.12 acres, located adjacent to Weems Chapel Road in the
6th civil district. The Planning Commission was informed that extra high-intensity soil mapping
would be needed for the property. Staff stated the plat had all signatures except for TDEC, and




recommended approval subject to the addition of the signature, as the plat met all other applicable
requirements. A motion was made by Gary Rector, seconded by Lyle Parton, to approve the plat
subject to the addition of a signature by TDEC, as the plat met all other applicable requirements.
The motion carried unanimously.

Survey of a Portion of the Kelly Gregg-GRNO Property. The Planning Commission reviewed
and considered approving the Survey of a Portion of the Kelly Gregg-GRNO Property subdivision
plat, for one lot totaling 2.00 acres located adjacent to Sinking Springs Road in the 5th civil district.
Staff stated soil work would have to be performed on the property as the TDEC septic approval
form had not been located. Staff recommended approval, subject to the addition of a signature by
TDEC, as the plat met all other applicable requirements. A motion was made by Becky Rideout,
seconded by Gwen Lilley, to approve the plat subject to the addition of a signature by TDEC, as
the plat met all other applicable requirements. The motion carried unanimously.

Part of the Kenneth and Angela Pinkston Property. The Planning Commission reviewed and
considered approving Part of the Kenneth and Angela Pinkston Property subdivision plat, for one
lot totaling 0.82 acres located adjacent to Murray Bridge Road in the 4th civil district. Staff stated
that a Certificate of Completion had been submitted, all signatures obtained, and recommended
approval, as the plat met all applicable regulations. A motion was made by Gwen Lilley, seconded
by Phillip Ottinger, to approve the plat as it met all applicable requirements. The motion carried
unanimously

Division of the Randall Tilson et ux Property, (Replat of Lot 2R-A-1R of the Tilson & Burk
Property). The Planning Commission reviewed and considered approving the Division of the
Randall Tilson et ux Property, (Replat of Lot 2R-A-1R of the Tilson & Burk Property) plat, for
two lots totaling 4.86 acres, located adjacent to Golf Trace Drive and Mountain River Drive in the
9th civil district. A Certificate of Completion had been submitted for Lot 1, and soil work
completed for Lot 2. Staff stated that all signatures had been obtained, the plat met all applicable
requirements, and recommended approval. A motion was made by Phillip Ottinger, seconded by
Becky Rideout, to approve the plat as it met all applicable requirements. The motion carried
unanimously

Replat of Lots 14 & 15 Revision of Rob Mysinger Subdivision. The Planning Commission
reviewed and considered approving the Replat of Lots 14 & 15 Revision of Rob Mysinger
Subdivision plat, for one lot totaling 1.815 acres located adjacent to White Sands Road in the 2nd
civil district. Staff recommended approval, subject to the addition of signatures, as the plat met
all other applicable requirements. A motion was made by Gwen Lilley, seconded by Lyle Parton,
to approve the plat subject to the addition of signatures, as it met all other applicable requirements.
The motion carried unanimously




Replat of Lot 1 M. J. Blake House Tract. The Planning Commission reviewed and considered
approving the Replat of Lot 1 M. J. Blake House Tract for two lots totaling 4.76 acres, located at
the intersection of Kingsport Highway and Blake Lane in the 20th civil district. Michael Grigsby,
surveyor for the project, stated that public water was not available to Lot 1-2R, but the lot met
requirements to be approved for private water supply and was already served by a well. Staff
recommended approval, subject to the addition of signatures, as the plat met all other applicable
requirements. A motion was made by Lyle Parton, seconded by Phillip Ottinger, to approve the
plat subject to the addition of signatures, as it met all other applicable requirements. The motion
carried unanimously

Replat of King Property Lots 3-5. The Planning Commission reviewed and considered
approving the Replat of King Property Lots 3-5 subdivision plat, for three lots totaling 2.33 acres
located adjacent to Old Baileyton Road in the 12th civil district. Staff stated revised plats had not
been submitted as required, and recommended denial as the requirements of the Greene County
Subdivision Regulations had not been met. A motion was made by Gary Rector, seconded by
Phillip Ottinger, to deny approval, as revised plats had not been submitted as required. The motion
carried unanimously.

Replat of Lots 5 & 6 of the Martha Weems Property. The Planning Commission reviewed and
considered approving the Replat of Lots 5 & 6 of the Martha Weems Property plat, for two lots
totaling 5.210 acres, located adjacent to Logwood Lane in the 21st civil district. Soil work had
been completed for Lot SR and Lot 6R had a Certificate of Completion. Staff recommended
approval, subject to the addition of signatures, as the plat met all other applicable requirements. A
motion was made by Phillip Ottinger, seconded by Gary Rector, to approve the plat subject to the
addition of signatures, as it met all other applicable requirements. The motion carried
unanimously.

Red Tail Ridge Phase I preliminary plat. The Planning Commission reviewed and considered
approving the Red Tail Ridge Phase I preliminary plat, for 16 lots totaling 13.56 acres, located off
Whirlwind Road in the 10th civil district. Daniel Coffey, project surveyor, stated that the property
fronted on both Whirlwind Road and Old Asheville Highway, but the presence of a substantial
flood zone adjacent to Old Asheville Highway made it difficult to construct a through street. The
street (24” wide in a 50° right-of-way) proposed in Phase I was approximately 1,450 feet long,
with a maximum grade of 12%, gravel shoulders, and no curbs. Drainage would be routed from
the road through drainage easements to one of three detention basins, located on Lots 9, 16, and
17. The basins would discharge near the westerly property line. Since more than one acre was
being disturbed for the project, the developer would have to meet requirements for storm water
and soil erosion control as enforced by the State of Tennessee.




The road shown on the preliminary plat was proposed to end in a temporary cul-de-sac. Mr. Coffey
stated the developer was requesting that he be permitted to gravel the temporary turn-around,
instead of paving it as required in the Regulations. This would be a temporary measure intended
to prevent having to remove pavement from the area of the cul-de-sac if the street was extended
as normal in the short term. The cost to pave the cul-de-sac would be included in a bond submitted
with the final plat.

The concept plan for the entirety of the 37.88 acre site showed a road with a total length of more
than 2,000 feet. A side street identified as “Future Road” would be stubbed to the easterly property
line in the area of a power line easement. The new road would provide frontage for 32 new lots.
A single lot (Lot 33) would front on and be accessed from Old Asheville Highway.

Staff recommended approving the Phase I preliminary plat, as it met all applicable regulations. A
motion was made by Gary Rector, seconded by Lyle Parton, to approve the preliminary plat as it
met all applicable requirements. The motion carried unanimously.

Combination Plat of Lots 3-5 of the John Dearstone Subdivision and Lot 2 of the Ted Carter
Subdivision. The Planning Commission reviewed and considered approving the Combination
Plat of Lots 3-5 of the John Dearstone Subdivision and Lot 2 of the Ted Carter Subdivision, for
one lot totaling 2.52 acres located at the intersection of Newport Highway and Warrensburg Road
in the 8th civil district. Staff stated all signatures had been obtained, the plat met all applicable
requirements, and recommended approval. A motion was made by Lyle Parton, seconded by
Gwen Lilley, to approve the plat as it met all applicable requirements. The motion carried
unanimously

Administrative minor subdivisions. The Planning Commission was informed the following
subdivisions had been approved since the last meeting.

e Combination plat of Lots 34 and 35 of the Rex A. Cobble and Wife Ann Cobble Property
for one lot totaling 1.56 acres, located adjacent to Dogwalk Road in the 12 civil district.

e Subdivision plat for William Brown for one lot totaling 1.10 acres, located adjacent to
Jeffers Lane in the 15" civil district.

e Combination plat of Lots 18 & 19 of Red Cedar Farm (Survey for Michael Hearl) for one
lot totaling 2.32 acres, located adjacent to Mt. Zion Road in the 14™ civil district.

e Replat of the Shirley M. Rodgers Property Lot 8 for Amanda Wells and Lynda Dawson,
for two lots totaling 1.35 acres, located adjacent to Kingsport Highway in the 16" civil
district.

e Division of a Portion of Tract 4 of the Seaton Farm (Survey of a Portion of the Dennis
Seaton Property) for one lot totaling 1.115 acres, located adjacent to Cedar Creek Road in
the 18 civil district.



e A 2 Lot Subdivision of the Helen Robinette Property for two lots totaling 13.16 acres,
located adjacent to Ragon Hollow Road and Mink Creek Road in the 19" civil district.

e Division of Lot 7 of the Danny Jones Subdivision (Portion of the Russell Wimmer et ux
Property) for two lots totaling 7.34 acres, located adjacent to Blackhorn Lane in the 12
civil district.

e Division of Tract 2 of the Late Bertha M. Turner Property for two lots totaling 5.00 acres,
located adjacent to Blue Springs Parkway in the 23" civil district.

e Subdivision Survey for Jason Ricker for two lots totaling 3.629 acres, located adjacent to
Amity Road in the 9" civil district.

e Combination Plat of Lots 18 & 23 of the B.T. & Mable Walters Property (Survey for Darrel
Frederick, II et ux) for one lot totaling 4.433 acres, fronting on both Warrensburg Road
and Fishhook Road in the 5™ civil district.

e Replat of Lots 33, 34, 35 of the Doyle Subdivision for Cathy Esser for one lot totaling 0.78
acres, located adjacent to Cannon Road in the 15% civil district.

e Subdivision Survey for Larry Cutshall for one lot totaling 1.800 acres, located adjacent to
Jennings Creek Lane and Walters Road in the 22 civil District.

e Recombination Survey for Anthony J. Owens for one lot totaling 0.192 acres, located off
Gilbreath Road in the 7" civil district.

A motion was made by Gwen Lilley, seconded by Becky Rideout, to accept the list. The motion
carried unanimously.

Monthly activity report for Building/Zoning/Planning Office. Tim Tweed discussed the
monthly department activity report. A motion was made by Gwen Lilley, seconded by Phillip
Ottinger, to accept the report. The motion carried unanimously.

Proposed water bottling plant. Greene County Commissioner Brad Peters stated he had been
contacted by Brook Cutshall, a property owner concerned about an out-of-state water bottling
company that was considering locating along Middle Creek. Commissioner Peters stated that
TDEC was aware of the proposal, which could negatively impact surrounding water bodies, the
water table and private wells in the area. Tim Tweed stated he was had been contacted by Ms.
Cutshall as well, and a review of the zoning regulations showed that they did not prohibit the
proposed use. Commissioner Peters asked the Planning Commission to consider recommending
that the County Legislative-Body approve a moratorium on bottling operations. The moratorium
would provide time for the County Attorney to review the appropriateness of bottling operations
in the County, the appropriate zone for such uses, and the potential impacts. A motion was made
by Becky Rideout, seconded by Gwen Lilley, to recommend the County Legislative Body approve
a six month moratorium on bottling operations, to allow the County Attorney to research and
prepare regulations addressing the issue. The motion carried unanimously.



Complaint about unhoused persons. Laura Samples of 3300 Marvin Road stated that people
were living in cars and tents in her area, which created health and safety issues. Ms. Samples
stated she had to obtain a building permit and meet code requirements, and so should they. Amy
Tweed stated that staff was working on new campground regulations that addressed unhoused
persons living in tents and cars. Roger Woolsey and Tim Tweed agreed that the County needed
to address the issue. A motion was made by Lyle Parton, seconded by Gwen Lilley, to recommend
that the County Attorney and Planning Commission staff to create a proposal addressing the
unhoused living in tents and cars. The motion carried unanimously.

Request for additional staff. Amy Tweed requested the Planning Commission support hiring an
employee to assist the Planning Coordinator with the increasing volume of work. Ms. Tweed
stated much of her day was spent doing clerical work and answering the phone, which limited her
ability to perform her planning work. As a result, she was taking work home at night and on
weekends. The Planning Commission was informed that an employee had been approved for her
for in the previous budget cycle, but she moved the position to the front office. This was because
the front office was also experiencing a drastic increase in the work load, and the department clerk
was overwhelmed. Moving the position also allowed time for the clerk, who planned to retire, to
train the new employee. A motion was made by Becky Rideout, seconded by Gwen Lilley, to
recommend an employee be hired to assist the Planning Coordinator. The motion carried
unanimously.

There being no further business, a motion was made by Gary Rector, seconded by Edwin Remine,
to adjourn. The motion carried unanimously. The meeting adjourned at 2:45 p.m.

Approved as written: T-Jp- Q4

Secretary:

A .
Chairman/Vice Chairman: IN




Minutes of the Greene County Board of Zoning Appeals

A meeting of the Greene County Board of Zoning Appeals was held on Tuesday, August 27, 2024,

Members Present/Members Absent Staff Representatives Present/Absent
Kathy Crawford, Chairman Tim Tweed, Building Commissioner
Beth Douthat, Vice-Chairman Amy Tweed. Planning-Coordinator
Holly Brooks, Secretary Deborah Collins, Building Dept.
Robert Wilhoit, Member Roger Woolsey, County-Attorney
Bill Dabbs, Associate Member

Also Present: Interested citizens
The Chairman called the meeting to order and welcomed attendees.
Approval of Minutes. The Chairman asked if members had received the draft minutes of the May 28,

2024 meeting. A motion was made by Bill Dabbs, seconded by Beth Douthat, to approve the minutes
as written. The motion carried unanimously.

Swearing in of witnesses. Chairman Crawford swore in Jerry Ayers, Ivan Hoyt and Building
Commissioner Tim Tweed.

2750 S Wesley Chapel Road. The Board considered a request to decrease the front yard setback
requirement for 2750 S. Wesley Chapel Road (tax parcel: 034-064.02), from 55° from road centerline to
43 feet from the centerline, a variance of twelve (12) feet. Tim Tweed stated that the existing residence
was built prior to zoning and the owners wanted to build an addition. At the time the house was built it
complied with setbacks but, under today’s requirements, extending the structure at the same setback as
the existing home would create a setback violation. Mr. Tweed passed out pictures of the residence to
the board, and discussed the notes and options in the memo provided in the packet. It was noted that:
the existing home is located 38” feet from the front property line, and the proposal would extend the

addition at the same setback as the existing home. The septic system was located to the left of the
structure, so they couldn’t build there, and an addition to the rear would be too close to an existing free-
standing garage.

Mr. Tweed stated the options were to approve or to deny the request. The justifications for approval
were:
A. The presence of the septic system, free-standing garage, and existing building creates
“extraordinary or exceptional situations or conditions”.



B. It would result in “exceptional practical difficulties to or exceptional and undue hardship upon
the owner of such property” to have to relocate the garage or septic system in order to construct
the addition without a variance; and

C. “Relief may be granted without substantial detriment to the public good and without
substantially impairing the intent and purpose of the zoning resolution; and _

D. Special circumstances are attached to the property (house built in 1949) which do not generally
apply to other property in the neighborhood.

Robert Wilhoit asked if there was another residence on the property. Tweed stated the second structure
on the property was a garage. The Chairman asked if there was anyone present to speak for or against,
Property owner Ivan Hoyt stated he had removed his existing deck so he could add the addition to the
house, which were make it more accessible, and poured the footers 55 ft. from the center of the road.
After discussion, a motion was made by Beth Douthat, seconded by Bill Dabbs, to grant the variance, as
the request met all the requirements of the Zoning Resolution. The motion carried unanimously.

185 Chuckey Ruritan Road South. The Board considered a request to decrease the right side yard
setback for an existing home, located at 185 Chuckey Ruritan Road South (tax parcel 077-020.05),
decreasing the setback from twelve (12) feet to nine (9) feet, to allow subdivision of the 16.35 acre
property. Information was provided regarding the proposed subdivision and the history of the property.

1.  The tract was created by subdivision prior to the adoption of zoning (1984).

2. It fronted Chuckey Ruritan Road S., Chuckey Point, and Chuckey Highway.

3. The property owner wanted to divide the property into three lots.
e Lot 1: Chuckey Hwy; 6.59 acres; 50’ of frontage; contains the Ayers home.
e Lot 2: Chuckey Ruritan Rd S; pipestem lot; 7.96 acres; 50° of frontage; vacant.
e Lot 3: Chuckey Ruritan Rd S; 0.87 acres; 100° of frontage; existing mobile home.

4.  All three lots would meet lot size and lot frontage requirements.

The variance would be for the existing mobile home on Lot 3.

6. In 2008 the mobile home was placed 21° from the left lot line and 59° from the right lot
line, to make room for the proposed pipestem for Lot 2 along the right lot line.

7. If, in 2008, the Ayers had not intended to subdivide, the mobile home would likely have
been centered on the property and located 40” from the side lot line, not 21°.

8.  The mobile home was placed less than 200” from the road, on property that exceeds 1,300
feet in depth, another indication of the intention to subdivide in the future.

9.  Ifthe pipestem width requirement was still 40°, there wouldn’t be an issue with subdividing.

10. The Ayers didn’t realize that the pipestem width had increased from 40’ to 50° in 2003.

11. Because of this, either a side yard variance or a variance to lot frontage requirements must
be approved in order to subdivide the property.

12. As policy, variances to decrease lot frontage requirements are not considered.

wn



Mr. Tweed stated that the situation being considered was one never before brought before the Board. In
the past, when someone sought a side yard setback variance in a situation like this, it would be because
the property just wasn’t wide enough for what they wanted to build. In this instance, each proposed lot
met lot width/lot frontage requirements. If the home had been placed three feet to the left, there wouldn’t
be a need for a variance.

Jerry Ayers, the property owner, attempted to use the property frontage on Chuckey Pointe to provide
frontage for Lot 2, but, although that would meet County requirements, the buyers’ bank would not
accept that proposal. Not subdividing, or moving the mobile home were the only two options left, and
moving the home would create a financial hardship for his Mr. Ayers sister, who lived in the home.

Beth Douthat asked if it was possible to approve the variance for the existing mobile home, but to require
the setbacks to be met if the home were ever removed. Mr. Tweed stated that the Board had the authority
to add conditions such as that to the variance request.

A motion was made by Bill Dabbs, seconded by Beth Douthat, to grant the variance as it met Criteria A,
B, and C, as listed in the packet memo, and therefore met the conditions of the Zoning Resolution.

A. The location of the mobile home, which was placed on the property several years ago,
constituted an extraordinary or exceptional situation or condition. It would result in an undue
hardship upon the owner of the property to move the home; and

B. Relief may be granted without substantial de8triment to the public good and without
substantially impairing the intent and purpose of the zoning resolution; and

C. Special circumstances attached to the property do not generally apply to other property in the
area (creation of the tract before the enactment of zoning, and placement of the home on the
property making it clear that there had always been an intent to subdivide the property).

The motion was revised to add the condition that, if the home were to be moved or replaced, the setback
requirements would have to be met.

The motion carried unanimously.

There being no further business, a motion was made by Bill Dabbs, seconded by Beth Douthat, to adjourn
the meeting. The motion carried unanimously.

The meeting adjourned at 8:58 a.m.

Approved as written (date) [OFXT-DO74

Secretary
t )‘;‘( ""/

=7 7
Chairman/Vice Chairman ,7{ \ﬂc’f #e, 6’?_.57,5

/ 7




Minutes of the Greene County Board of Zoning Appeals

A meeting of the Greene County Board of Zoning Appeals was held on Tuesday, October 29, 2024,

Members Present/Members Absent Staff Representatives Present/Absent
Kathy Crawford, Chairman Tim Tweed, Building Commissioner
Beth Douthat, Vice-Chairman Amy Tweed, Planning Coordinator
Helly Brooks. Secretary Dreberah-CothnsButbdine Pept
Robert Wilhoit, Member Reger-Woolsey; County-Attorney

Bill Dabbs, Associate Member
David Crum, Associate Member

Also Present: Interested citizens
The Chairman called the meeting to order and welcomed attendees.
Approval of Minutes. The Chairman asked if members had received the draft minutes of the August

27,2024 meeting. A motion was made by Bill Dabbs, seconded by Beth Douthat, to approve the minutes
as written. The motion carried unanimously.

Swearing in of witnesses. Chairman Crawford swore in Byron Pitcher, Sheila Pitcher, and Building
Commissioner Tim Tweed.

1885 Old Mountain Road. The Board considered a request to decrease the front yard setback for a
proposed garage to be constructed at 1885 Old Mountain Road (tax parcel 147-040.00), from fifty-five
(55) feet to forty-two (42) feet. Tim Tweed stated the proposal was to install a 24 x 40> garage to the
side of, but in front of, the home located on the property. Issues limiting where the garage could be
located included: the location of a power line on the property, the septic system, and the location of both
rock and a slope on the property. A letter from Bradley Holt of the Greeneville Energy Authority was
presented, stating that the garage would be in violation of the National Electrical Safety Code (NESC)
if 1t was built to County setback standards. David Crum asked what the regulations were for uses
permitted in garages in rural areas of the County, and if the required public notice had been provided.
Staff stated that businesses were not permitted in garages, and notice had been provided as required.
After discussion, a motion was made by David Crum, seconded by Bill Dabbs, to grant the variance,
based on the following rationale:

1. The presence of rock, the location of the septic system, and the power line, constitute
“exceptional topographical conditions or other extraordinary or exceptional situations or
conditions that would result in exceptional practical difficulties to or exceptional and undue
hardship upon the owner of such property” if the variance were not granted; and



2. “Relief may be granted without substantial detriment to the public good and without substantially
impairing the intent and purpose of the zoning resolution”; and

3. “Special circumstances are attached to the property which do not generally apply to other
property in the neighborhood”. Specifically, meeting the setback requirement is only possible if
the garage is constructed in violation of the NESC.

The motion carried unanimously.

There being no further business, a motion was made by Bill Dabbs, seconded by David Crum, to adjourn
the meeting. The motion carried unanimously.

The meeting adjourned at 8:45 a.m.
Approved as written (date) / / 79?2”:)25;\7 L/’L

Secretary

Chairman/Vice Chairman 4 ﬁ%/q 4@(}/94/4’




Greene County Agriculture Committee
Minutes — November 7, 2024

Attendance List

e Commissioners: Gary Shelton, John Waddle

e Other Committee Members: Kim Casteel, Vera Ann Myers, Chair, Rusty Ottinger, Ryan Ricker

o Guests: Eldon Myers, Karen Ottinger, Debbie Shelton

« UT/TSU Extension Staff: Christian Dalton, Amy Franklin, Milton Orr, Katelynn Rector, Sylvia Reynolds,
Melody Rose, Anthony Shelton (County Director), Debbie Strickland, Lamanda Weston

Vera Ann Myers opened the meeting with a welcome and introductions. Katelynn Rector, recently
hired TSU 4-H Agent and new Administrative Assistant, Amy Franklin were introduced.

Kim Casteel led prayer prior to beginning the meal.

After the meal Vera Ann opened the floor for the UT/TSU Extension Agents to give a brief update of
their programs which included., 4-H, Agriculture, Horticulture and Family and Consumer Sciences.

Christian Dalton, 4-H Agent reported he is presently going into 6-8 classrooms per day. New TSU 4-H
Agent, Katelynn Rector has been accompanying him to the classrooms to become familiar with the
program. Greene County’s shotgun team has 25 members currently. Greene County’s land judging
team won 3rd place in the state. Our forestry judging team placed 3rd. Greene County’s dairy judging
teams won 1t place in the senior-high and the junior-high division, with Greene County 4-H’er Bailey
Ricker receiving the top score overall in the senior division.

Milton Orr, Ag Agent reported between 300-350 people attended the Northeast Tennessee Beef
Expo in October and more than 65 earned their Master Beef Producer certificate. A pregnancy
ultrasound has been purchased through a $25,000 grant received. This equipment will be available
for educational programs. He announced a Flood Recovery Forum set for Monday, November 11th
at the Caney Branch Volunteer Fire Department. university specialists, extension agents, and
representatives from NRCS & FCS will answer producer questions. The Genetics by Design workshop
is planned for November 14th.

Melody Rose, Ag Agent reported the large Master Gardener project, Davy Crockett Birth Place was
heavily damaged in the flood and she is aiding with flood relief and flood distribution here and in
North Carolina.

Lamanda Weston, FCS Agent reported that Home Instead has placed a Senior Christmas tree in the
Extension office. One hundred and one tags were placed on the tree.

Anthony Shelton asked Debbie Strickland, Expanded Food & Nutrition Education Program Assistant to
share a brief update with the group. Debbie reported that she has completed 25 classrooms and has
approximately 85 more classrooms to provided lessons for this school year.



Anthony Shelton gave updates regarding the new UT Extension office and Extension Pavilion.

The office is primarily complete. The parking lot was recently resealed and striped. Installing doors
separating the meeting room from hallway and front office is a future planned project.

The pavilion should be complete in the next few weeks. The pavilion will include heat and two
restrooms. Vera Ann Myers asked what the primary use would be for the pavilion. Anthony said
Extension programing would be first priority. County Government will have access if available when
requested as well as community partners. It will not be made available to the general public for
private events.

Anthony Shelton then gave a budget update, stating that as no surprise expenditures have been
greater recently due to the move and new building needs, but he feels the budget is stable.

Vera Ann Myers reminded the committee members that meetings will continue to be held February,
May, August and November in 2025. Dates will be shared when scheduled. She then adjourned the
meeting and those present stayed a bit to visit with one another.

This 4th quarter meeting was held at the Clyde Austin 4-H Lodge Thursday, November 7, 2024 from
6:00 pm to 8:00 pm.



RANGE OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE
October 15, 2024

Members Present:

Tim Ward, Wesley Holt, James McAfee, Tommy Whitehead, Dave Peurifoy, Kevin Morrison,
Tanner Collins, Biran Click, Roger Woolsey and Tim Davis. Quorum was present.

Others Present:
Frank Waddell, Randy Weems and Krystal Justis

Motion made by Tim Davis and seconded by James McAfee to approve minutes from the August
13, 2024 meeting. Motion carried with no opposition.

Update on the roof, waiting on the judge to make a decision.
Mountain Motor Sports is coming by to see the range operation in hopes of a sponsorship.

Motion to approve grant project request of a 50 x 75 covered training pavilion, paving and
expanding parking lot, adding an additional small boar range for practice and competition was
made by Dave Peurifoy and was seconded by James McAfee. Motion carried with no opposition.
Range usage report turned in with grant application.

Greene County Partnership is making trifold brochures for the range. Prices for advertising
banners/ads will be discussed next meeting.

Meeting was set for December 10, but moved to December 3, 2024 due to conflict on date.

Meeting was adjourned.



alvda

Hede-1 - Cf

GZ62-8€9-€2Y

§506-62¢-€cv
LLIP-6E£9-€2Y
095€-9€9-¢cv
§506-62¢-¢ev

LevL-LL9-E2Y

31 ‘ANIIUD 40 ALNNOD FHL 40 31D

62905Y.2.€ NL ITIAINIIO

AMH NOSNHO M3YQNV 3 118¢

6GYEEYLLE NL ITHUAINIIO
AMH LY0OdM3N 5182

€v8.¢ NL ITTASLLOYHY
ay MOTT1OH NYIWEZHS 8007
GSZYSP.LE N1 ATNAINIIEO
¥d NYWHOVE 00E

€v22€ NI STIAINIIUO

1S NIVW M 2011

€00¥SPZLE NL I3TNAINIZIO
¢ 31INS A8 WNTNOSNL L6
V8¢ NL ITUASLLONHYd
ay MOTTOH NYIWEIHS 800¥%
€v2.€ NL STUIAINIUO

1D ¥3IMONL 89

296.4-2712-698
8.12-2.6-€TV
§506-62£-€2Y
Sl8s-6cc-cCy
82zg8-€ce-eey
9£08-029-¢2v
v262-62¢-€2y

bEVL-L29-CTY

22S9SY.LLE N1 ITNAINIIUO
1S HOMNHOD 3 ¢evi
65YEEYLLE NL ITTAINIRAD
AMH 18OdM3N §18¢

Sv2.¢ N1 ITNAINIZHO

QY 39V1IS AT0 516
2268¢¥.L.¢ N1 ITTIAINIZHD
TH1 VIOND3S Ly

€¥2.¢ NL ITNAINIO

gy SMY1 6Ly

9Zovev.LL€ NL ITNAINITIO
dQ L13MO0¥ID AAVA 012
688L€P22€ N1 ITNAINITIO
ay AIMONHOITTON 502
ev..¢ N1 3THAINIINO

1D ¥3MoNnl 89

HO13M NVHLVNOr '8
440H3IN vV AIAva "L

YALSIT NIMMNVHS ANNVL °9
1H397TIO VANVIY 'S
SNITT0D NOAIA AL ¥
T33LSVI T NATIVE'E
SH3IMO04d 3 NOYVHS ‘¢

dOHSIE NNAT IHEIHS 'L

ALFINS 3INOHJ SSENISNS

SS3AAv ssaANISNg

3INOHd JNOH

SS34aaV INOH

JNVN

: X009 ONINJIAOD HHI 0 ONIIITN $20¢ ‘9T YIGWHDEA HHI ONI¥NA DITENd XAVILON
J0 HOIAAO HHI OI CHIDHETH HIHM SNIMOTIOL HHL LVHIL HLVLS A0 XIVLHIOHES HHL
Ol XAIIMED XgHMEH I HISSHENNAL ‘ANIATID J0 XINQOD HHI 40 MJIATD V¥ SY
2ITdNd SHEIYVYION 40 NOILOHTH J40 HLVDIATILIHD



A RESOLUTION OF THE GREENE COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY
APPROPRIATING A TOTAL OF $3,600 TO THE SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENT
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

WHEREAS, the Greene.County Sheriff's Department (Department) received funding for
a total of three thousand six hundred dollars ($3,600), and;

WHEREAS, the Department requests those funds be allocated to Law Enforcement
Supplies, and;

NOW, THEREFORE; be it resolved by the Greene County Legislative Body meeting in
regular session this 16" day of December 2024, a quorum being present and a majority
voting in the affirmative, that the budget be amended as below.

INCREASE IN REVENUES
43190 Other General Service Charges 3,600
Total Increase in Revenues $ 3,600

>

INCREASE IN APPROPRIATIONS
54110 SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENT
431 Law Enforcement Supplies $ 3,600
Total increase in Other Public Safety Appropriations $ 3,600

Total Increase in Appropriations $ 3,600

Budget and Finance Committee
County Mayor Sponsor

County Clerk JCounty Attorney




A RESOLUTION OF THE GREENE COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY
APPROPRIATING A TOTAL OF $420,000 TO THE EMERGENCY MEDICAL
SERVICES DEPARTMENT (EMS) FOR THE RE-MOUNT OF TWO AMBULANCES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

WHEREAS, the Greene County Emergency Medical Services Department (EMS) is in
need of two new ambulances due to an aging fleet that must be able to pass
state inspection; and

WHEREAS, EMS has determined that the best use of available resources is to have two
presently owned ambulances be remounted with a new truck chassis of the
ambulances at a total cost of four hundred twenty thousand doliars $420,000
rather than the purchase of two new vehicles at a cost of four hundred
thousand dollars ($400,000) each, and

WHEREAS, EMS has been informed that even remounted ambulance chassis may take
up to thirty (30) months until delivery, and

NOW, THEREFORE; be it resolved by the Greene County Legislative Body meeting in regular
session this 16" day of December, 2024, a quorum being present and a majority voting in the
affirmative, that the budget be amended as below.

DECREASE IN UNASSIGNED FUND BALANCE:

39000 Unassigned Fund Balance $ 420,000
Total Decrease in Unassigned Fund Balance $ 420,000

INCREASE IN APPROPRIATIONS:
55130 EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES
718 Motor Vehicles $ 420,000
Total Increase in Appropriations $ 420,000

”»

Budget and Finance Committee

County Mayor Sponsor
'_ 3 e v Q) ;
/
County Clerk County Attorney



ﬁ Outlook

Fw: Remount Quote
From T.J. Manis <TJManis@greenecountytn.gov>
Date Tue 11/26/2024 11:28 AM

To Danny Lowery <dlowery@greenecountytn.gov>

U 1 attachment (111 KB)
Greene County EMS F450 Q111324.pdf,

Get Outlook for iOS

From: Jim Perry <jperry@arvambulance.com>
Sent: Thursday, November 14, 2024 1:37:05 PM
To: T.J. Manis <TJManis@greenecountytn.gov>
Subject: Remount Quote

Director Manis,

Thank you for allowing Northwestern Emergency Vehicles the opportunity to serve Greene
County EMS and the citizens of Greene County. The purpose of this email is to provide a
budgetary number for ambulance remounts. NWEV will refurbish and remount your existing
Type-1 ambulance modules from the existing chassis to new Ford F-450 diesel chassis with
utilizing liquid spring for the rear suspension. The remount also includes new paint, floor
covering, upholstery, HVAC system, Inverter, graphics, replacing outriggers, mounting bushings,
hardware, door latches, console, siren, electrical switches, panels, custom alterations to the
action area, cabinet “L” , siren speakers, chassis warning lights, running boards, rear bumper,
skirt rails, kick panels, etc. Attached is a document that provides more in-depth detail of what
will be included with the refurbishment and remount. This document will be reviewed with
Greene County for any alterations, additions, or deletions prior to moving forward. NWEV will
provide this service as presented for approximately $210,000.00 per each ambulance, utilizing
the Savvik purchasing cooperative. | will be glad to provide an official proposal and sales
agreement upon request.

Please feel free to reach out with any questions you may have.

Regards,

Jim Perry

Regional Sales Representative

NWEV dba Northwestern Emergency Yehicles
268 NWEV Dr.

West Jefferson, NC 28694

SN W EY







Greene County EMS, TN
NWEV -Jim

NWEV REMOUNT
QUOTE

Quote#111324 FA50

11/14/2024

CHASSIS

]

1
PAINT

1

STANDARD PRICE - TYPE | |

MOUNT
1
1
1
10
10
10
10
D/P PACKAGE

N =2 N S = = e = =2 NN -

12
AC SYSTEMS

| 2026 Ford, F-450 4 x 2 Reg Cab, 169.3" WB |

Chassis 84" CA, XLT Diesel
Chassis Liquid Spring

Paint Paint Box - White
Mount Rear Window insert
Mount Adhesive, Betaseal
Mount Silicone, White
Mount Qutrigger - Tl
Mount Bushing, Lower Tl - Small
Mount Bushing, Upper Tl - Large
Mount Mount Kit
Mount | Running Boards w/ Grip
Mount Stone Guards
Mount Corner Caps
Mount Front Skirt Rails
Mount Rear Skirt Rails
Mount Rear Bumper
Mount DOT Tape, Red/White
Mount Kickplate
Mount Tag Holder
Mount Fuel Fill
Mount | Urea Fill
Mount Undercoating
Mount Wheel Simulators
Mount Mud Flaps
Mount Fenderettes Rubber (ft)

A/C Air/Heat Sys - Horz Danhard

A/C Tie End Block

A/C Fit #6 90 For Clip

AC Fit #10 90 For Clip

A/C Universal Y Fitting

A/C Heater Hose 5/8

A/C Freon

A/C BoosterPump

A/C Dryer

A/C Electronic Water Valve

A/C Drain Hose - White

AIC Hose Insulation

A/C Hose, AC #10

A/C Hose, AC #8

A/C Hose, AC #6

Page 1 of 4



Greene County EMS, TN

NWEV REMOUNT

Quote#111324 F450

NWEV - Jim QUOTE 11/14/2024
LIGHTING
2 Lights 700 SLED Red
19 Lights 900 LED Flange
2 Lights 700 LED Flange
7 Lights 600 LED Flange
4 Lights Lite Lin6 - Red/White/Clear
4 Lights Flange, LING - Chrome
3 Lights Clearance - Amber - LED
3 Lights Clearance - Red - LED
2 Lights AEV Corner - Red/White- LED
2 Lights AEV Corner - Red/Amber - LED
ELECTRICAL-U/H
1 Elect Harness, Hood
1 Elect Speaker, Driver side
1 Elect Speaker, Passenger side
1 Elect 300 Amp Terminal Buss
1 Elect 300 Amp Terminal Fuse
1 Elect Backup Alarm
1 Elect LED Tag Lite
3 Elect Ground Strap
1 Elect AutoGard Antitheft System
1 Elect 20 Amp Auto Eject
1 Etect Cover, 20 amp, Yellow
ELECTRICAL-CAB
1 Elect Front Switch Panel
2 Elect Illum. Strip 8"
1 Elect IUtum Strip Inverter
1 Elect Battery Pwr. Lite
2 Elect Compt. Open/Low Volts Lites
1 Elect Door Open Lite
1 Elect Smart Volt Meter
8 Elect On-Off LED Switch
2 Elect On-Off-On LED Switch
2 Elect On-Off LED Emerg Master Switch
1 Elect On-0Off Single Momentary
1 Elect Battery Switch
1 Elect Battery Switch Plate
1 Elect Siren, Whelen SA1 '
ELECTRICAL-ROT
1 Elect Rear Switch Panel
2 Elect Itlum. Strip 14"
1 Elect Illum. Strip Inverter
6 Elect On-Off LED Switch
1 Elect On-Off-On LED Switch - Hi/Low
1 Elect On-Off-On LED Switch - AC
1 Elect On-Off LED Emerg Master Switch
1 Elect Stepwell Light

Page 2 of 4



Greene County EMS, TN NWEV REMOUNT Quote#111324 F450
NWEV - Jim QUOTE 11/14/2024
1 Elect Inverter |
DOORS
7 Doors Replace Door Handles |
1 Doors Replace D/P Door Panels as Needed
1 Doors Recoat Antimicrobial Grab Handles/Rails ‘
4 Doors Door Holds - Cast Grabbers
145 Doors Door Gasket ‘
1 Doors Drip Rail, 18’
50 Doors Dri Deck ‘
CABINET SHOP
1 Cabinet | New Console |
UPHOLSTERY/LEXAN
5 Uph/Lex Upholstery Cab/ Sqg. Yd. |
12 Uph/Lex Gasket, Bellows
10 Uph/Lex Upholstery ROT |
4 Uph/Lex Lexan ROT (Clear)
TRIM ,
13 Trim Flooring Optima Smooth
1 Trim Misc. Trim !.
1 Trim Sharps
1 Trim Trash ‘
1 Trim Suction
1 Trim Fire Extinguster ‘
1 Trim 02 Regulator
3 Trim 02 Straps
1 Trim Attendant Seat EVS 1880 Child Safety Seat
1 Trim EVS Swivel Base |
1 Trim Cot Mount - Relnstall Powerload
Options
1 Option Graphics
1 Option Underbody Light (under C/S Door) !
1 Option Underbody Condenser
1 Option Digital Thermostat (AA) |
1 Option Overhead Cab Lights
Move existing sharps and Add a drawer |
1 Option below the AA |
Cabinet L - Change to Dual Lexan Doors w/
1 Option black lever latches
1 Option | Clock, Digital - Intellitec |
1 Option Reinstall 2 Way Radios in new cab
* ! Backup Camera OEM |
*

Reuse all warning/flood/tail lights
| We are currently scheduling starts dates '
in Q1 of 2026 |

Page 3 of 4



Greene County EMS, TN NWEV REMOUNT Quote#111324 F450

NWEV -Jim QUOTE 11/14/2024
Sales Rep Please Include this quote with
* your PO Submitted to NWEV
| Anything Not Included in the Quote will
* | be an Additional Charge '
Quote Pricing held for 60 days from Date
* of Quote

| Any Sharps and Waste left in Unit upon
| Delivery to NWEV will result in $100 |
* | Disposal Fee

Any and All Equipment such as O2 Tanks
Etc Needs to be removed Prior to
3 Delivery to NWEV
NWEYV will not be responsible for any
| Equipment not removed prior to
x Production

Page 4 of 4



A RESOLUTION OF THE GREENE COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY AUTHORIZING THE
ACCEPTANCE AND EXECUTION OF THE TENNESSEE EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY
(TEMA) HELENE EMERGENCY ASSISTANCE LOAN (HEAL) PROGRAM
FOR THE FYE JUNE 30, 2025

WHEREAS, on Friday, September 27, 2024, due to severe storms having inflicted
substantial flooding in Greene County, causing significant damage to property, infrastructure, and
endangering the safety and wellbeing of our citizens, Greene County issued an Executive Order
declaring a Local State of Emergency in Greene County and the Greene County Emergency
Management Operations Center was activated and;

WHEREAS, the impact from the flooding continues to pose a grave threat to public health,
safety, and welfare, requiring immediate action to protect and assist Greene County residents,
and;

WHEREAS, Greene County applied for and was approved for a TEMA loan under the
HEAL program to provide a no-interest loan to address the health and welfare needs that have
arisen due to the damage caused by the severe storms, and,

WHEREAS, Greene County has the authority to re-lend the loan proceeds to a “Second
Borrower’, and;

WHEREAS, Greene County wishes to re-lend fourteen million one hundred forty-seven
thousand six hundred forty-five dollars ($14,147,645) to the Greeneville Water Commission based
on the “work plan” submitted with the HEAL application, and;

WHEREAS, Greene County wishes to re-lend one million five hundred seventeen
thousand dollars ($1,517,000) to the Chuckey Utility District based on the “work plan” submitted
with the HEAL application, and;

WHEREAS, Greene County wishes to re-lend five hundred forty-five thousand five
hundred dollars ($545,500) to Glen Hills Utility District based on the “work plan” submitted with the
HEAL application, and;

WHEREAS, Greene County wishes to use one million four hundred thirty-two thousand
seventy-seven dollars for debris removal ($1,432,077) based on the “work plan” submitted with
the HEAL application, and;

WHEREAS, since loan agreement requires all loan proceeds to be held in a separate bank
account, Greene County wishes that interest earned on these funds also be deposited into the
Capital Projects Fund - #171 to prevent use on recurring expenditures, and;

WHEREAS, Greene County will sign agreements with all outside organizations prior to re-
lending any funds based on the stipulations set forth in TEMA HEAL Program loan agreement
made between Greene County and TEMA (Exhibit “A”), and;

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the county legislative body of
Greene County, meeting in regular session this 16" day of December 2024, a quorum being present
and a majority voting in the affirmative, that the budget for the Capital Projects Fund - #171 be
amended as follows:



A RESOLUTION OF THE GREENE COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY AUTHORIZING THE
ACCEPTANCE AND EXECUTION OF THE TENNESSEE EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY
(TEMA) HELENE EMERGENCY ASSISTANCE LOAN (HEAL) PROGRAM
FOR THE FYE JUNE 30, 2025

INCREASE IN REVENUE

49500 Other Loans Issued $ 17,642,222
Total Increase in Revenue $ 17,642,222

INCREASE IN BUDGETED APPROPRIATIONS

54430 DISASTER RELIEF

590 Transfers to Other Funds ' § 17,642,222
increase in Appropriations - Disaster Relief $ 17,642,222
Total Increase in Appropriations $ 17,642,222

| Budget and Finance Committee

County Mayor Sponsor
'. __.f [ [ [ >
o _ _’b Sy & _@\_“‘H-""' "5‘5_&&4"-'“\

County Clerk County Attorney \._\

)



Greene County

Chuckey Utility District

Glen Hills Utility District
Greeneville Water Commission

TOTAL

“© B B P

1,432,077
1,517,000
545,500
14,147,645

17,642,222



Tennessee Emergency Management Agency
HELENE EMERGENCY ASSISTANCE LOAN (HEAL) PROGRAM

This loan agreement (“Agreement”) dated as of is between the
Tennessee Emergency Management Agency (hereinafter called “TEMA”) and
(hereinafter
called "County") (collectively “The Parties”). In consideration of the mutual covenants
and agreements contained herein, and other adequate consideration, the Parties
agree as

follows:

1. Purpose.

1.1 The purpose of the Helene Emergency Assistance Loans ("HEAL") Program is
to provide a loan (the “Loan”) to the County for health and welfare needs that have
arisen due to the damage caused by Tropical Storm Helene. The Loan will provide
immediate access to funds for the limited purposes outlined in this Agreement. This
Agreement is being made under the authority of Comp. Rules and Regs., Chapter
0690-03-01 and may only be modified by a written amendment duly authorized and
approved by the Parties in accordance with Section 14.1.

2. Loan Terms and Conditions:

2.1 The County agrees to apply for a public assistance grant (“PA Grant") from the
Federal Emergency Management Agency (“FEMA") within ___days of the Effective
Date, as that term is defined in Section 2.2., and comply with all requirements, rules,
and regulations pertaining to the PA Grant process. The County and any second
borrowers (“Second Borrowers” as defined in Section 30.4., which shall also include
Cities and Municipalities) shall comply with all TEMA requirements, including
attending any respective TEMA-hosted PA Applicant Briefings.

2.2 TEMA agrees to loan the principal sum of to the County. The
Loan will bear no interest or late charges provided the County repays the Loan in full
in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. This Agreement shall be effective
on (“Effective Date") and extend for one hundred twenty (120)
months after the Effective Date, unless earlier terminated in accordance with this
Agreement, or the occurrence of a PA Grant outcome as set forth in Section 2.3.
(the “Term"). The principal unpaid balance of the Loan shall become due and
payable to TEMA within thirty (30) days from the end of the Term.

2.3 The foliowing shall constitute a PA Grant outcome as referenced in Section 2.2.:
1) The County receives final payment from FEMA, 2) all appeals to FEMA are
exhausted, or 3) arbitration with FEMA is complete.



2.4 The County's obligation to repay the unpaid principal amount of the Loan is
absolute and not conditioned on reimbursement from FEMA in whole or in part. in
the event that the County, or any Second Borrower, is denied reimbursement from
FEMA in whole or in part, the County shall repay the unpaid principal balance of the
Loan to the State in accordance with this Agreement.

2.5 The County shall pay up to fifty percent (50%) of the non-federal share, as
applicable, if FEMA does not reimburse one hundred percent (100%) of the cost.

2.6 The County agrees to use the Loan solely for expenditures that are
reimbursable under the PA Grants related to the management and disposal of
hazardous debris and repair of water and wastewater systems as a result of
Tropical Storm Helene. The County shall conduct debris removal in accordance
with FEMA's Debris Removal Monitoring Guide 2021. The specific activities shall be
set forth in the County's HEAL Program application, including the Work Plan
submitted to TEMA (including any supplements or modifications thereof agreed to
by both parties), in accordance with this Agreement, and any other rules and
regulations (as they may be adopted or amended from time-to-time during the
Term) pertaining to PA grants.

2.7 The County shall pay a late charge of ten (10) % of the principal unpaid balance
of the Loan if payment is not made to TEMA in accordance with Section 2.2. Any
unpaid late charge shall be added to the principal balance. The imposition of a late
charge by TEMA does not constitute a waiver of TEMA's rights to declare the
County in default under this Agreement and seek any remedies available to TEMA
at law or in equity.

2.8 The County shall only use the proceeds of this loan in accordance with Work
Plan. If any portion of the Loan has not been used by the County within ten (10)
years from the Effective Date, TEMA miay demand return of ali or part of the unused
portion of the Loan. TEMA also reserves the right to request return of any Loan
proceeds that were not used in accordance with the Work Plan.

2.9 The County must obtain prior approval of TEMA before making any changes in
forms or policy relating to this Agreement, including any changes to its Work Plan.

3. Organization:

3.1 The County agrees that it will not change its articles of incorporation, charter, or
by-laws without the written consent of TEMA.

4. Re-lending:

4.1 In order to further the purposes of this Agreement, County
government may only re-lend these loan proceeds to the following Second
Borrowers: 1) cities and municipalities for hazardous debris management and



removal and 2) publicly and privately operated utilities for repairs to water and
wastewater systems required as a result of Tropical Storm Helene.

4.2 The terms and conditions of this Agreement shall be binding on any Second
Borrowers as though set forth verbatim in any agreements between the County and
any Second Borrowers.

4 3 Second Borrower shall only use any proceeds of the Loan it receives from the
County in accordance with this Agreement and shall not make any further loans of

the same.

4.4 The County shall only make and service loans to a Second Borrower in
accordance with this Agreement and in such a manner that will fully protect the
interests of the County and TEMA.

4.5 The County must obtain written TEMA approval of all forms to be used for
relending purposes, including application forms, loan agreements, promissory
notes, and security instruments between the County and any Second Borrowers.

4.6 The County shall report all loans made to Second Borrowers to TEMA.
Information reported to TEMA shall include the Second Borrower's Work Plan, the
amount of the Loan, and terms and conditions of loans made to Second Borrower.

. Disbursement Procedure:

5.1 TEMA shall only disburse the Loan proceeds to the County after this Agreement
is duly authorized and binding on the Parties.

5 2 TEMA shall allow the County to draw down up to one hundred (100%) percent
of the funds at loan closing, in TEMA's sole and absolute discretion.

5.3 The County shall maintain a separate ledger and segregated bookkeeping and
bank accounts for all HEAL funds and maintain adequate documentation supporting
the County's use of the Loan proceeds in accordance with Section 17.1.

. Procurement:

6.1 The County shall procure all goods and services paid for through Loan
proceeds using competitive procurement methods or such other methods
authorized under the state or local procurement laws binding on the County. The
County shall maintain documentation for the basis of each procurement for which
reimbursement is paid pursuant to this Agreement. In each instance where it is
determined that use of a competitive procurement method is not practical,
supporting documentation shall include a written justification for the decision and for
use of a non-competitive procurement. The County shall comply with 2 C.FR. §§



200.317—200.327 when procuring property and services under a federal award.
These same requirements shall also be binding on any Second Borrower.

6.2 The County or any Second Borrower must follow established procurement
policies in existence as of the Effective Date of this Agreement when contracting for
goods or services. Any changes to County or Second Borrower procurement
policies after the Effective Date may result in a denial of FEMA funding, and thus
could limit the County's ability to repay this loan to TEMA.

. Reporting Requirements:

7.1 The County shall submit quarterly reports to TEMA, including reports from
Second Borrowers, from the time of project approval until notification of completion.
Failure to submit quarterly reports may result in a withholding of payments from
FEMA and affect the County’s ability to repay the unpaid balance of the Loan. The
County, and any Second Borrowers, shall work with TEMA PA staff to complete the

required TEMA quarterly reports.

7.2 The County shall be audited in accordance with applicable Tenn. Code Ann. §
4-3-301. Information for Audit Purposes (‘IAP") form online (accessible through the
Edison Supplier portal) to notify the State whether or not the County is subject to an
audit. The County should submit only one, completed form online during the
County’s fiscal year. Immediately after the fiscal year has ended, the County shall
fill out the End of Fiscal Year (“EOFY") form, which is accessible through the Edison
Supplier portal.

When a federal single audit is required, the audit shall be performed in accordance
with U.S. Office of Management and Budget's Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards.

A copy of the audit report shall be provided to the Comptroller by the licensed,
independent public accountant. Audit reports shall be made available to the public.

The County shall comply with 2 C.F.R. Part 200 — Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards. The
County shall also require any Second Borrower to comply with the same.

. Default:

8.1 Upon an event of default, TEMA may declare all unpaid principal and late
penalty to be immediately due and payable as well as pursue any remedies
available to TEMA at law or in equity. The County shall be responsible for all costs
that TEMA incurs in enforcing the provisions of this Agreement after an event of
default, including, but not limited to court costs, expert, and reasonable attorney
fees.



8.2 Any of the following occurrences will immediately characterize a default by the
County and require immediate repayment of the Loan:

a. Continued failure to make payment on or before the required due date per the
Agreement,

b. Failure to provide TEMA with the required deliverables and reporting
requirements as mentioned under Section 6 of this Loan ,

c. Providing false or misleading information to TEMA or FEMA,

d. The Use of Funds for ineligible and unapproved expenditures,

e Failure to obtain all appropriate federal, state, and local environmental
permits and clearances, or

f. The filing of a Bankruptcy by the County.

9, Security:

9.1 The County pledges to seek reimbursement from FEMA for all eligible PA
projects. The County shall repay all funds to TEMA it receives as reimbursement
compensation from FEMA for all work included in the Work Plan. If the County is
denied or partially denied reimbursement by FEMA, the County shall go through the
Appeals Process with FEMA.

9.2 The County further pledges its full faith and credit and such other additional
available sources of revenues as are necessary 1o meet the Obligations of the
County under this Agreement.

a. In the event of a default of this Agreement, TEMA shall send notice to the
County, whereupon the County shall have sixty (60) days (the “Cure Period”)
from the receipt of TEMA's notice of default to cure the County's default.
TEMA shall also notify the Commissioner of Finance and Administration of the
State of Tennessee of the default of the County and the assignment of
Unobligated State-Shared Taxes under this Agreement. Upon receipt of such
notice, the Commissioner shall withhold such sum or part of such sum from
any State-Shared Taxes which are otherwise apportioned to the County and
pay only such sums necessary to liquidate the delinquency of the County to
TEMA for deposit into the fund. The County acknowledges that it has no claim
on State-Shared Taxes withheld as permitted under this Agreement.

b. In the event the County is unable to cure the default within the Cure Period,
this Agreement shall be terminated at the discretion of TEMA and entitle
TEMA to any remedies available to it at law or in equity.

10. No Third-Party Beneficiary:

10.1 This Agreement is not for the benefit of third parties. TEMA shall not be under
any obligation to any such parties, whether directly or indirectly interested in the



Agreement, to pay any charges or expenses incident to compliance by the County
with any of the duties or obligations imposed hereby.

41. Termination for Convenience:

11.1 TEMA may terminate this Agreement without cause for any reason. A
termination for convenience shall not be a breach of this Agreement by the TEMA.
TEMA shall give the County at least thirty (30) days written notice before the
effective termination date. The County shall be entitled to compensation for
authorized expenditures and satisfactory services completed as of the termination
date, but in no event shall TEMA be liable to the County for compensation for any
service that has not been rendered. The final decision as to the amount for which
TEMA is liable shall be determined by TEMA. The County shall not have any right
to any actual general, special, incidental, consequential, or any other damages
whatsoever of any description or amount for TEMA's exercise of its right to
terminate for convenience.

12. Subject to Funds Availability:

12.1 This Agreement is subject to the appropriation and availability of State or federal
funds. In the event that the funds are not appropriated or are otherwise unavailable,
TEMA reserves the right to terminate this Agreement upon written notice to the
County. TEMA's exercise of its right to terminate this Agreement shall not constitute
a breach of contract by TEMA. Upon receipt of the written notice, the County shall
cease all work associated with this Agreement. Should TEMA exercise its right to
terminate this Agreement due to unavailability of funds, the County shall have no right
to recover from TEMA or from the State any actual, general, special, incidental,
consequential, or any other damages of any description or amount.

13. Successors and Assigns:

13.1 This Agreement shall be binding upon County and its successors and assigns
and upon TEMA and its SUCCessors and assigns and shall survive the closing of the
loan and disbursement of proceeds.

13.2 The County will require each ultimate recipient to provide workmen's
compensation insurance in accordance with State law.

13.3 The County is responsible for determining if a project is located in a special
flood or mudslide hazard area anytime TEMA loan funds are involved. The County
agrees that if a project location, or any part thereof, is in a Special Flood Zone Area,
the County will ensure participation in the National Flood Insurance Program for the
life of the Loan. The County shall abide by 44 CFR § 9. The County shall require
the Second Borrower to comply with the same.



13.4 The County will acquire and maintain such insurance coverage, including
fidelity bonds, as may be required by TEMA.

14. Modification and Amendment:

14.1 Any modifications, amendments, renewals or extensions shall be in writing,
signed, and approved by all Parties who signed and approved this Agreement.

15. Access to Records:

15.1 The County agrees to provide TEMA, the FEMA Administrator, the Comptroller
General of the United States, or any of their authorized representatives access to
any books, documents, papers, and records of the County which are directly
pertinent to this Agreement for purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts,

and transcriptions.

15.2 County agrees to permit any of the foregoing parties to reproduce by any
means whatsoever or to copy excerpts and transcriptions as reasonably needed.

15.3 County agrees to provide the FEMA Administrator or their authorized
representatives access 10 construction or other work sites pertaining to the work

being completed under this Agreement.

15.4 In Compliance with the Disaster Recovery Act of 2018, TEMA and the County
acknowledge and agree that no language in this Agreement is intended to prohibit
the audits or internal reviews by the FEMA Administrator or the Comptroller General

of the United States.

16. Applicable Laws:

16.1 Interpretation of this Agreement shall be governed and enforced in accordance
with applicable Tennessee and federal Law, including without limitation any
environmental laws. The U.S. Office of Management and Budget's Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards is
available here: hitp://www.ecfr.gov/cai-bin/text-
idx?SID=c6b2f053952359bag94470ad3a7c a975&tpl=/ecfrorowse/Title02/2cfr200

main 02.tpl

17. Compliance:

17.1 The County hereby represents, agrees, and covenants with TEMA as follows:

a. To comply with all applicable federal and state statutes, rules, regulations,
procedural guidelines, and grant loan conditions;

b. To comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant
to the Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 7401, et seq., and the Federal
Water Pollution Control Act, as amended, 33 U.S.C. §§ 1251, et seq.;



c. To report any violation of Tennessee or federal law to TEMA and any other
entities legally required to be notified. Moreover, the County understands and
agrees that TEMA will, in turn, report each violation as required to assure
notification to the Federal Emergency Management Agency, and the
appropriate Environmental Protection Agency Regional Office. The County
agrees to include these requirements in any agreement with a Second
Borrower financed in whole or in part with the Loan;

d. To provide for County's share of the cost in accordance with this Agreement;

e To advise TEMA before applying for federal or other state assistance for any
projects for which the Loan proceeds are used; and

£ To establish and maintain adequate financial records for the projects in
accordance with generally accepted government accounting principles; to
cause to be made an annual audit acceptable to the Comptroller of the
Treasury of the financial records and transactions covering each fiscal year;
and to furnish a copy of such audit to the Authority. In the event of the failure or
refusal of the County or any Second Borrower {0 have the annual audit
prepared, then the Comptroller of the Treasury may appoint an accountant or
direct the Department of Audit to prepare the audit at the expense of the County
or the Second Borrower as applicable.

18. Nondiscrimination:

18.1 The County hereby agrees, warrants, and assures that no person shall be
excluded from participation in, be denied benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to
discrimination in the performance of this Agreement or in the employment practices
of the County on the grounds of handicap or disability, age, race, color, religion, sex,
national origin, or any other classification protected by federal, Tennessee state
constitutional, or statutory law. The County shall, 1ipon request, show proof of
nondiscrimination and shall post in conspicuous places, available to all employees

and applicants, notices of nondiscrimination.

19. Title VI Compliance

19.1 The County shall comply with requirements of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of
1964, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d-1, pursuant to the guidelines established by the
Tennessee Human Rights Commission’s Title VI Compliance Office, by completing
all of the following items:

a. Provide name and contact information of Local Government's Title VI
Coordinator to State.

b. Ensure Policies and Procedures Manual contains a Title VI section with
information on: (a) Filing a complaint; (b) Investigations; (c) Report of findings;
(d) Hearings and appeals; (e) Description of Title VI Training Program;, ()
Limited English Proficiency (LEP) procedure; and (g) Retaliation.



c. Train all staff (regular, contract, volunteer) on Title VI upon employment and
annually thereafter. Training documentation shall be made available upon
request of State and include: 1) dates and duration of each training; 2) list of
staff completing training on each date.

d. Annually complete and submit a Title VI self-survey as supplied by Department
of Military.

e. Implement a process and provide documentation to ensure service recipients
are informed of Title VI and how to file a discrimination complaint.

f  Additional Title VI resources may be found at: Title VI Compliance Program
Website.

20. Public Notice:

20.1 All notices, informational pamphlets, press releases, research reports, signs,
and similar public notices prepared and released by the County in relation to this
Loan shall include the statement, “This project is funded by the Helene Emergency
Assistance Loans ("HEAL") Program.” All notices by the County in relation to this
Loan shall be approved by the TEMA.

21. Licensure:

21.1 Any person performing work funded through this Agreement shall be licensed
pursuant to all applicable federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, rules, and
regulations and shall upon request provide proof of all licenses.

22. Davis-Bacon Act and Copeland Anti-Kickback Act:

22.1 As a condition for receipt of the Loan and as applicable, the County agrees to
comply with the Davis-Bacon Act, 40 U.S.C. § 3141 et seq., and the Copeland Anti-
Kickback Act at 18 U.S.C. § 874 et seq., as those sections are amended from lime
to time during the term.

23. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standard Act.

23.1 As a condition for receipt of the Loan and as applicable, the County agrees to
comply with the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standard Act at 40 U.S.C. § 3701
et seq., as that section is amended from time to time during the term.

24. Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA):

241 This Agreement requires the County to provide goods or services that are
funded in whole or in part by federal funds that are subject to FFATA. The County is
responsible for ensuring that all applicable FFATA requirements, including but not
limited to those below, are met and that the County provides information to the
State as required.



The County shall comply with the following:

a. Reporting of Total Compensation of the County’s Executives.

(1) The County shall report the names and total compensation of each of its
five most highly compensated executives for the County's preceding
completed fiscal year, if in the County’s preceding fiscal year, it received:

i. 80 percent or more of the County’s annual gross revenues from
federal procurement contracts and federal financial assistance
subject to the Transparency Act, as defined at 2 CFR § 170.320
(and sub awards); and

ii. $25,000,000 or more in annual Qross revenues from federal
procurement contracts (and subcontracts), and federal financial
assistance subject to the Transparency Act (and sub awards); and

ii. The public does not have access to information about the
compensation of the executives through periodic reports filed under
section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15
U.S.C. § 78m(a), 780(d)) or § 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code
of 1986. (To determine if the public has access to the compensation
information, see the U.S. Security and Exchange Commission total
compensation filings at

versiexecorp.nicn).

As defined in 2 C.FR. § 170.315, “Executive” means officers,
managing partners, or any other employees in management positions.

(2) Total compensation means the cash and noncash dollar value earned by
the executive during the County's preceding fiscal year and includes the
following (for more information see 17 CFR § 229.402(c)(2)):

i. Salary and bonus.

i, Awards of stock, stock options, and stock appreciation rights. Use
the dollar amount recognized for financial statement reporting
purposes with respect to the fiscal year in accordance with the
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (Revised
2004) (FAS 123R), Shared Based Payments.

ii. Earnings for services under non-equity incentive plans. This does
not include group life, health, hospitalization or medical
reimbursement plans that do not discriminate in favor of
executives and are available generally to all salaried employees.

iv. Change in pension value. This is the change in present value of
defined benefit and actuarial pension plans.



v. Above-market earnings on deferred compensation which is not tax
qualified. :

vi. Other compensation, if the aggregate value of all such other
compensation (e.g. severance, termination payments, value of life
insurance paid on behalf of the employee, perquisites or property)
for the executive exceeds $10,000.

b. The County must report executive total compensation described above to the
State by the end of the month during which this Agreement is established.

25. Build America, Buy America (BABA) Act:

25 1 |n accordance with the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (IlJA), Public
Law No. | 17-58, the County must comply with all federal requirements applicable to
receiving assistance from I1JA funding, which includes that all iron and steel,
manufactured products, and construction materials used in the Project are
produced in the United States unless:

a. The County has requested and obtained a waiver from the State pertaining to
the Project, or the Project is otherwise covered by a general applicability
waiver; or

b. All of the contributing Agencies have otherwise advised the Local Government in
writing that the BABA requirements are not applicable to the Project.

25 2 EPA's BABA implementation memorandum includes specific instructions for
product coverage, waivers, co-funding, and documenting compliance. For more
information on the BABA requirements, visit the EPA Office of Water's website at
https://www.epa.gov/cwsrf/build america-buy-america-haba or you may also email
questions to RARBA-OW@epa.gov or contact the State. For information on

approved waivers, visit "1os [

i = -3 =

26. Severability:

26.1 In the event that any covenant, condition or provision of this Agreement is held
to be invalid or unenforceable by a final judgment of a court of competent
jurisdiction, the invalidity thereof shall in no way affect any of the other covenants,
conditions, or other provisions of this Agreement.

27. Debarment and Suspension:

27.1 The County certifies, to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it, it shall not
use any contractor or subcontractor to perform work using the proceeds of the Loan
who:



a. |s presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible,
or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any federal or state
department or agency;

b. Has, within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement, been convicted
of, or had a civil judgment rendered against them from commission of fraud, or
a criminal offence in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or
performing a public (federal, state, or local) transaction or grant under a public
transaction: violation of federal or state antitrust statutes or commission of
embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification, or destruction of records,
making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

c. Is presently indicted or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a government
entity (federal, state, or local) with commission of any of the offenses detailed in
section b. of this certification; and

d. Has within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement had one or more
public transactions (federal, state, or local) terminated for cause or default.

The County shall provide immediate written notice to TEMA if at any time it learns
that there was an earlier failure to disclose information or that due to changed
circumstances, its contractors or subcontractors are excluded or disqualified, or
presently fall under any of the prohibitions of sections a-d.

28. Miscellaneous:

28.1 Expenses incurred by the County prior to the start date of Declaration Incident
Period are not eligible for disbursement of funds.

28.2 Following the successful completion of the Project, TEMA will conduct a

closeout inspection. The County will provide access to TEMA upon reasonable
notice by TEMA.

28.3 TEMA reserves the right to conduct programmatic and financial audits of the
Work Plan. The County will be required to maintain all pertinent records and
evidence pertaining to the Work Plan and Agreement. TEMA must be provided with
access, upon reasonable notice, to all documentation. The County will provide
proper facilities for such access and inspection. All records must be maintained for
five (5) years after the County has repaid TEMA.

29. Section Headings:

29.1 Section headings are provided for convenience of reference only and shall not
be considered in construing the intent of the parties to this Agreement.



_30. Definitions:

30.1 Cities and Municipalities: Defined pursuantto 2 C.F.R. §§200.1, 200.64 and
Tenn. Code Ann. § 6-51-101.

30.2 Publicly and Privately Operated Utilities: Defined pursuant to Tenn. Code Ann.
§ 65-4-101.

30.4 Second Borrower: Refers to Cities and Municipalities and Publicly and
Privately Operated Ultilities who enter into loan agreements with the County.

30.5 Work Plan. The description of the work to be completed, the identification of
Second Borrowers to whom the County intends to re-lend funds, and the estimated
costs for the proposed work.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, TEMA and County have executed this Agreement as of the
date first above-mentioned.

COUNTY:

BY:

(Signature)

(Name typed or printed)

Title:

Date:

TEMA:

BY:

(Signature)

(Name typed or printed)

Title:

Date:




RESOLUTION OF THE GREENE COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO FILE A REQUEST FOR A 2024
HOME HOMEOWNER REHABILITATION EAST TENNESSEE RECOVERY
FUNDS GRANT WITH THDA IN THE AMOUNT OF $1,000,000

WHEREAS, Greene County recognizes the devastation caused by the effects of Hurricane Helene
and the need for disaster recovery housing rehabilitation for low-income residents within the County;
and

WHEREAS, the County desires to provide these services to their residents, including residents of
the municipalities within the County; and

WHEREAS, the Greene County Commission understands that the U.S, Department of Housing and
Urban Development allows for assistance through the HOME program, administered by the
Tennessee Housing Development Agency (THDA), to provide housing rehabilitation for low-income
persons.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Greene County Commission does hereby
authorize the County Mayor to file a request for 2024 HOME Homeowner Rehabilitation East
Tennessee Disaster Recovery funds with THDA in the amount of $1,000,000. There are no county
funds required to match the program.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Greene County Commission does hereby authorize the
County Mayor to sign any and all documents, contracts, assurances, and forms of compliance
necessary to effectuate the completion and submittal of the application and that the First Tennessee

Development District administer this disaster recovery grant and grant funds on behalf of the
County.

This Resolution was duly considered and adopted by the County Commission, in and for
Greene County, Tennessee, this the day of 2024,

Kevin C. Morrison
Greene County Mayor

Attest:

Greene County Clerk



